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Fower of Water

ventv-five percent
of the earths surface

is co/wad with 326 nlii.ion c.uhc mIles of

water flae OS alone uses 349 bili.ior gal

lons ot fresh water day Vater is evervwherein

many ways we barei notice It nourishes Tt hy

drates It cleans \Ve use it for heat and
energy

It

keeps our industries operating
Our own bodies are

made up of more than 60 percent water yVequite

literaiivcannot live without it

At \Vatts Vater Iechnologcs we take water very

seriously because were acutely aware oits impor

tance flse core of our busiricss is in the safe convey

ance conservation and control ef water From water

ouality products to water saibty and flow control

drainage rainwater harvesring and radiant heat our

products help to hydrate our bodies cook our food

run our industries and heat and cool our buildings

Our suite of brands fdcuses on water-based products

because we realize that water is poised to be the

most critical resource of our future

Ve Ocus our attention on the future in part

because of what we have learned from our past

Our company has been at the forefront of change

in our industry leading the way and setting stan

dardsand we have weathered the worst the

economy has thrown our way Ve have overcome

downturns recessions and even depressions
And

each marker challenge or difficult year has ulti

mately been benefit to us because it has taught

us something ihe truth is lean times create lean

companiesand lean conspanies are strong com

panies disc ream at Vatrs \ater Technologies

understands that prisciple \Ve are leveraging the

lessons of our last century of prosperity
and

using

them to rake on the next century

In that spirit \Vatts Vater Technologies has

embraced the economic challenges of recent years

using them as an opportunity to focus our eflbrrs on

improving
and strengthening our core capabilities

and mcthodicdiv building
culture of continuous

impmoveusenr
Ve have enhanced our strengths re

duced and eliminated inef ciencies and reenergized
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our eEorts in areas requiring improvement In 2011

we concentrated much of our attention on tile hrst

of three key goals hr creating shareholder value

operational excellence

In 2011 we also reexansined our ace to the

customer which drove us to refhcus our selling

ekorts into lour strategic
roduct lines Residential

Commercial Flow lILAC Gas \Mirer Qial

it md ter Em usc Di no CC Ba let ci hi no

our product
lines and sales channels we expect to

drive herrer performance in meeting customer needs

and idenrilhing opportunities
for incremental sales

growth 11sis action is an example of second key

goal pursuing leverage points through our One

Eitts IVater initiatIve hv sharing strengths leverag

mo synergles
and huildmg orgaruzational capalili-

ties across our company

OLe anticipate that in 2012 we will increase our

tocus on the third key goal accelerating the growth

oforir
business and putting our competencies

to

work around the world Ve have already taken steps

in this regard hv recruiting new and experienced

leadership
hr our geographic segments 0v open

ing new sales offices and strategic lorurcost plants

globally and 1w establishing inroads into previouslY

untapped markets such as Asia Eastern Europe the

Middle East and Latin America

2111 proved to be challenging year or our

entire industry hut ave have taken advantage of the

cliownturn to hens on our key priorities OLe have

played to our strengths
Ve have seized the op

portunitv to enhance our continuous improvement

capahlities and streamline our business we have

reinforced the focus on our customers needs by

realigning our product lines and ave have taken steps

to accelerate our orgamc growth ihese initiatives

we believe will
position

usasa key resource to our

customers in ensuring that their key resource water

is used safely and efficiently around the world
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To Our Shareholders
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50 iid 0pei atin aiid 1111001 al teults
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Growing Watts Water

2011 soc continued to gross otgon is Oh in

toduc ng ness pi odoets atti attn nO 05 tistonicI

arid ertel nig ness ni ii kets \e also gtex through

out r1nisition
of 000lcO

Out loud tern gral is cur car of our huinexes

ssoi lOss ide to gi ow ía ti than the local econo Ti\ ha

30 oi more each ear 010 10 \Ve ippioaeh

01 tile 1row
tli ippOl ts ntl tel ms 111 cidt

depth and redo

2011 we ntroduced new products offered

mare systems and everaged exsthig

products new ways

ast sear wo launo lied out BR \1 hi and of rain

so uei usesting sastens as put of our atei Reuse

Dramage product line BR \L ofleis colliplete

cniiic eied sasteins well is pie huilt sasteins that

Igaturt the font main olnponelits of unso at

hai estilig solution inlet filtration ahos 01 helms

win slot age inks nun ns cotitiols id water

twatnient pioduct

intl orlur ed blahl eat undei oni att Radi

ant hi and rs part of our HVAC Gas
pt

xli et line

kahl feat allosvs electric adiant heating dc

inents to he inh dded dii eetla in conclete and is in

cart tn ig ne so eapansion
out cvi sting

electric Or

hr ating p1
odurt lire lliis new product pros

ides

olutioir for Intel lOt slah heatin appli atiolis in

hoth icsidenti al and 01 rmercial applir cotions

In oi \mei IC ocr eral states and local ow niri

1xrlitics
has adopted plunihing code cli inges rcqwi

in die spllnklei sasterns in new honirs In 2011

soc ti oclo cod line of Rest dcnti il Ptoter 101

Products as
pat

of otir Residential Commercial

1o product line pical re idential plote two

so stenrs requiie separate plunihlng hut or piodurts

in to ltd 50 itli homes potahle cold watci plninh

ilif
st stem tot easier installation and cost cOo ctn

in ln 2011 we Iso eapcindc 001 One low

anti so aIr offer 1110 lode lnodels Or use wit lr

tanklcss water heatci One1 low pai oif our %Vatcr

Q_uality prOduCt hnc
pt

events scale ha Ions urns ng

diss Is ed hai dncss nsinci als into harniless inactir

nricr
xcopir cia stal

pat
tides It Is an ens ironii en

ilh friendls altern itis to traditional salt hased

watel sortet eis

In Luropc our BLI If Ill dir Ision introduced

st unless steel oof di ainige stein consisting 01

tc sits so steri and stplxosie so stem svorking It

rornhination with ow LuioPipe push fit pipers
OtIs

st ni phonlc drins ire technologo that al

loss for Orstot more clix icti svatet es acuatlon

\dditionalla in ave launched new iange
of

fan coil actuated units ese units pius Or higlrei

floss late which xc believe will enable us to h6

come mat ket leadet in the Ieuiopecun fan coil aloe

nrc Oct

Last year we introduced more of our products

to existing customers

1ut itig 2011 sse 50 001 sstiilh inttoduced ci
selee

ttOti Of \ctt nality pi
ocluctc to 001 phIl ihing

so hubs tle customers ho ciOtiChItIf the Pore \\ater

lini of Wc tel lilt1 ation cOld onditionmng pm odncts

Ito Vcttt5 Our ater lallt husitiess has tradi
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nonalle bee cc on the cc ater deale niai ket hut see

Ieiliifie ci cii iheant OjjOi tunities the pleinibme

se holecale market

Pm \\ iter eon ists 01 ioth shelf goods to he

stoc and as chic on wholesaler slieR iriel

clip inee red piodue ts that it per
used he

enpineei

id plnmhinp decigne Vattc is nose the onh wa

cc hnolo1 pCi ci cc itli ctiong cc itei tie atinent

pr ci cii the ndepe ideni is atei dealer re cad and

iF ninhing char ne is

11 iui tle scar ice also espanded our relation

ch ci ith leadinc .5 iii uthc one ot recidentid

and oinnIe re ci cc ate heat ig eclnipnient
tin one

in tiitne in hr ii \Vatt \Vatei in Cliii ceork

nip
with erceions in Cci ni cue arid It air leer raped

tc teehnologe lot he etig piodoets id eleCgneel

aioieei cc stein lint on for adi or and undei

flooi lee it ing \pee lain tin new piocinet

hI inc irIs 2012

In ed lition see lo ked for
oppoitni

itie den ing

to cisc more or out ii odi etc in nia pro

it or es nnple ice secure en or der for one of

the loge double containment pipinf ycte mc in

enadi ii hotor to protect
the cc tier in nd around

ic tori ii uhor in Btiti Ii olnmha tiers
project

iii ole ed hr iugtig get
Ieee mane of out e1 here ret

ht ends to or oc ide or npr
ehe isis solutior

2011 we expanded gcographcaHy in

number of reqons

aci rear cc gnrheanth ectendeel
piece nce

in ester ii Fin our puerhe
dl in Russ nd Poland

tins ire
ii or pan proce

tie and the
e1cncitroue

of Soda

nneral sales
greec or panic

il more than 22 iii

Poland arrd 4Oe Rersca

In Perpnict ice opene \irddle act sum oRice

re eai nahli
ng en to gre cc mit husrne cc ii tile

Fiddle act he re ore than 20
pete ci it in 201 \e

now base staff in place
ti at understand both the

regional irket arid oni product
arid can maintain

be ii cupph of proelue \e heirec the lidelle

Fact iC ior is era aecrae tree marker ror is

In October ice ect ehlrclie Icc oticee in Ban0alore

redia for ir III ctairde cc ted di arreage

piodei is On initial beers cciii he or cc inerets ne

whir BLP LI hR has long anelim histor

of wee ss lie Itieli coninieteial
proj ts ne Ii ic

ntports and hote is arid inducti iai projects iris iris

ood
1ci

oehiet ion and
proc ccci up \e hel ieee India is

pr
0CC rh ii arket ceith enor reioeis pote

utial

Ve also ieposrtioreed oen ceh cc with eec relation

hip nd euetomeic ire the Pacific Rim \Ve now

rae Diteeteir of Sales uketir lot Semtheast

5ii ho is helping crc grocv our business in Singa

eoie tedonec lalac sic the Phdipprreec Ihail nd

mu \ietnaiee

In mdehtiore during 2011 ocu Irter reatioi ii des

eerIe cc or lcd closeR cc ith cece tal cecil stahirs ccci

lea an seater pr ocieiets ma cub ceturers Our intent

to leceecge the hreeelth creel dc ptle of the Watts

\V cier chum opies
hr mets to ectahlich gre iter

Irsti Ihution iret oik not ordc in NIeie liii ri

enti ci creel outle Pr eerie as cc eli





In \pril ii tequied Soda one of 1ett op

idi plulnltnp ntinufhct Ut Cl fiotn Danfoaa

Based ttt habit sn Stone in hc llrgttnda

Cpu it of ram Soelt as tt ong pt enLe

dli 51 all of Put
ope at mit pie tO in Chin

55 uth Sol Lu ise sip 11111 auth sti ngthened

out plumb up 5jul55 in ut pe bet Soda

It itO onstdcr thie hi atid iCC000itt tt in hal kflmi

pie en rs asatl pt essurl iii 1101 and butterlia

tl5 also pain Cd lid and tel html

oi that Could he used tti eon IUl tiOti oit other

55 atts WPt btattd piod Ct other eptons

In
1itta

the nthitiat ton of \\dtts and Sod

10l1t1 ts pmttuou is us ici Ia to pat ttet patl in but

lountra tIlt roavitap plutt hinp and heat inp

ni ttkt

it th eat il dO bcpm 111k lead
tug

to

the
111 ttsittOt tt jattltari 012 ottekrnat ontrol

SIsterns 11 hmat whtelt is lmated it hi ttsh Co

bun ho autada tttd had 2011 enute of
approxi

tttateh 511 mtllton designet and tuaanut dl Ott ci

of em rpx saa tug Ill route 10 trOl sllttto for

IS SC tents whteh 151 heluei avill ompleni

itt owtt oIL Ct otlcrtngs

Putting ie lgnthC tula

stt ttgthet ed otr pondl leadet slttp

itns in Not th Stnerie itid

Iti Oetobct Sri na as BK Bagepahi

jot
ned \VPtts \Vat as Prestdent orth

Smet teu BK is ri spotasthlc Ct the tul

tegie
lci

eloptiuent
of otr Not th Stneri

Cdii hutsinesse BK ehatgcd ith den

ttf ung
and dea ehpttg market segments

and mgt aphie cap utision oppot titt tim

aml
Cotitimtltittg Oltt dri for Opel ational

151 elI 1111 lIt his mnotc thata Cdt5 of pI al

tnatultf dl tttm uug expel
ienl it id tecord of delia ci

ing
osvtlt ita both tat all re tttd

etnetping
tnatkets

for leading tnanitfaet Itt

lettriis an te 31
otip

Sliti lCttiI lurel tot

eontttt ted tI 01 Ct OCtI ope tt ons itu

mope the Sltddle Fast and Sf tCCt Tndct iett

nil le det shtp aie hail aperietteed stptu ltean

ci emil pro tlt tn urope
dltt

tip
till last 10

Ttì lItl Cite Sic lltctn joined 55 is 55 am ch

1111 as Pm esidetut of \sta lie his ieat

ears capet II Cl helptnr Intel national onip

tute tta Clitna ttnpll enent neas sit atepies delta

intuoa Ia sobuttons aebutl IC sale C01 th at II

itnp lou ptohts lie ts apet
eneed ita the fields of

IVAC pbutnbtta mute qttalita attd iteatin

iid is wot king to tt trodul Olt ater talits an

floot heattn0 procb1t ts to thc \s an ni at ket

Vi
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DrMng Operational Excellence

se ir sc contins od to ad am Opc stional

P0CC ttiiCitIi0iit OC oipn i/ation Snee OO9

his dCplo\
Cd 001 Continuous Impios nnc nt

llsc itioct
tncn 105 an eflort to Ines

he class pCi foi in no in oni aCtoric and ke

ho mess
pi ocesses OS is focused on di is in

iiispi
os ni nts iii Pea pertoi mu cc ineti Cs such is

ssorker afcts on inie delicra qoaliti oodc is its

and on spit
il

si tools such as can \I niofac to rio and

SC Si ii OC isc hccn ahk to ols piohlems

win LtC wastc md onpros spccd \Vc has niadc

qni0 ant pi oi css om iIopr in safcts milL ca iim

toInCi fill atcs pros irs qm alita \pandoifl nor

pi ts and nlian nip oor cash floss

ii soitlm Snierics ow \\clistc \ahc facilits ii

Ii anklo C55 1impslni COO ti moos to lcad Cc

\s as ii nnprosip pi foi mance in ow kcs cm toniei

loon opci atop metro \hout too dozcn Kuicn

ci cots occ it at \Vchstci also tc scai Ii addi

tiOO 55 00 CC
infl pi o0rc ss iii nuinbci other

No tIm \nmcriean flicilitics

In coopC fwmctior ano at plant

Bnlpa iiio ark Ciimaims nd Pals mdci took

gnihcmnt cO ii Ia scam related to 105 Ilici

ocsclol C10S tioim li05 icdncs production

md times and
impros piodnc tivits ssmtlnn ii di

ii In ml p1 irit sod itc imkap acioss mope

01 special not an achic ement at om plant

lisilp salsich ii was the first opei mtion

ttn iinpans global fkmil of conipan Cs to he

ascmeditcd to 150 11001 status ISO 1101 us an en

oon coinplianc prop oi tandarcl

In boa am cliorts at oco \ingho faci its hase

ic tic1 desi0n ins ros incus and
pi OCC55 iOcIifiCi

tioii rcsnltmp iii hc ttcr cqoipiiieisi sitilia ltiOim

medso ton in lahoi and loss er inatci costs Ooi

Niogho tc anm cpplicd aloe .nals is aloe

neerine fV\ Lean and Process LngoiCc nng

methoclolo sic to achics these
onpros

men

Coin rt \lls ice Pi esident Co mmicious

linpo scinent ontnines to lead Continnou Inipi Os

on ot svorldss ide In 2011 sac appointed Nigel \ood as

Director of 0pem at ioimd Ixcelleimc or spo to sers

overall leadvi lom ontiim ious Impros nent mtiatis es

ni mope It \Vatt ater wc auc cons nitted to cnn

ont nuous Iniproacnic it lP am

part ot Opei ation il acellcncc we continued

to qito oie coo plcmhal nianofacturing fCtpiint

di ocighocit 1011

In \pril sac hcg us opci ations at ness inano

lactnnng
f1icilit Nogalcs \Iexieo Ba sen end

his plant irs oi Cci Iexico svas it kill
opci

at on

prods mg cmi uded tubing and flesihlc is atci con

oc cmi Ilie bc ation ssl ic li is close to ooi Noi tls

rneric an Ostonieis otici mis thc hem fits of loss

otc cud ilso Ccssciioics us di
1iotut

ul 001 in

atm Iii ci ic oi inai Pets

In 2011 lye co olidatecl lie nancifa tcn ii

opec atioims of ocn RChtrol plant in Spiimdalc oi Is

arolmi into othci misting lacili ics bc ited 01

Ii anl lirm Ness Iampshire Nogalcs Mexie and

Kans is hits Misscmicri

In mope ss completed thc eommsi lida mon of

maims mu turing mod drstnhmition lootminot iaimcc

recboc in opci ations froimi fise locaticins to to mm boc

tions Acldit iooalla is reduced ie svoikfbrc at mscir

ficilits in Bma sono It mIs usd closed plant om 11

iaimo It ala
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In r01 continued our cftoct to intcoratc our

sutcsi Ii lUl coinp 01cr fltO iificd 01 toni iiatiOn

Onc 1\ atts ctc appioach is nabling us to

1k to tomei channel pai tner about cli of

on oduc ts uid Icr era prod ic uid shi oIoc

pahihtics cci oss eo aphi

nu those Inics in 2011 Watts \\arcr in

aiiada ctehr cied 40 linc cr 14 of st unle tcc

ti ncli drac is totaling loon than 20000
cli 1ii osnic tic niui iCc tui ug co upanc cc ith

hc issi ci cc of III ri jenmirk

In We lesigiced ird hegan produst on oii

hoilci narnfold ccoi kin4 losek cc itli one of the

in lu gest
boilci mann fcc turci Puce of oii

hnsinesscs pioc
idcd then

erpeltise
and choi mci

cc ole unufolil usc ctts \Vitei

produxts

in roi th \nici our Olki iles team cv

icit

pie
cm the cmeimn field of

Ge ne gi
Lxfiill\ sillin pci

in ii

ons lex troni control cud aceessoi icc to leadi ig

rc sidential and comnicici il ohi them al hc atnig

stc or iders IIcc product cccre pi
oduc ed hr

III \Vitt Radi nit ic tc \Iissonn in Witts

Indn tries Fciropc opei at in jerni iii 14 inc

mci \cisrri

In cclchtion \V ltts \\ atci ii rum supplied

niajor real estarc dcc elope cc itl in cnifolds

and he in ng cc upoicc ii ts air ccl at 22 000 foi

ndei Oooi lie Iting ni km project iii ianjin IC

crodc cts cv elco ci duc to the c1ualitc md icli

ihilit the inilolds minnf cc cured at our Cciii tc

One \Vitts atei ako mi bc cis opci at ion ii

\Ve ne st uidanliyin1x Cc prceses md implement

mg onmnioi iteiprise
Resocnce Planning RItm

sm steni Gui goal is liar ocn llRP stem in pl cc

lob dim cci hin bbcir \eais nicl in 2011 ccc hee ui

Ic to ike this happen

lo
cnppoi

this nd other glohat sc stciiic

\pnl \dun \Fic slim toinc cl ccii cinpinr cs

fi lnef nforinat ion Oflmeei claiii 11 is more than 20

ccii of
erperiens

in trat cgic 4loha tec hi nilogi

cn 1einen and sc stem Icc elopnient
lie lc cci

fbi ts to xti cngtlien oii tech nologc nfl isti cie

true imcl sci rice clehr ci apah iii ties curl
niproc

sti ctegie opc
ritional rfoi nittice

ecent cc us ccc his cF nirple mienrecl Sh ned

Sc is icc Cci tl \n ciii for ccc ocii ts ci en

ih icc oin ts is chIc niirkc tin coni nunic atioiic

PG iOll cud okic cclnn mistritic fin eticmns cud thit

woOs ontincn in 2011

In idciiti on ii Sepreinhei Ecmcs Steinplc

oinecl \\ atm \Vitei icc Prcsidc ut of cliii

hon cnigj ni ctifieci Pcirch ii \lai 1cr

CP Sir Sigma Bla Belt in an c\pci

cnc ccl son rc uulg quali tc id pi oc ess ncpi or enceict

leader us lou to ins iiiu tlcc Sourci icg unc

non nt sti Itega cli ii cii pm oictic ii ci uitc

Ii

atecl
pioc css rhi ocighocit rtlc \nmcric Scm

and cc entciilh
uiopc

ni Get nm inc and he
ippoi provided hr oc rc cnc

in cirope



Looking Ahead

Jr 0l2 art tat 10 itt sip ito node

upt heft iii In \oi it ii iii Rt ii It utial
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PART

Item BUSINESS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements that are not historical facts and are considered

forward-looking within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-

looking statements contain projections of our future results of operations or our financial position or state

other forward-looking information In some cases you can identify these forward-looking statements by

words such as anticipate believe could estimate expect intend may should and

would or similar words You should not rely on forward-looking statements because they involve known
and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control These risks

uncertainties and other factors may cause our actual results peiformance or achievements to differ

materially from the anticipated future results performance or achievements expressed or implied by the

forward-looking statements Some of the factors that might cause these differences are described under

Item IARisk Factors You should carefully review all of these factors and you should be aware that

there may be other factors that could cause these differences These forward-looking statements were based

on information plans and estimates at the date of this report and except as required by law we undertake

no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or

factors new information future events or other changes

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K references to the Company Watts we us or our
refer to Watts Water Technologies Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries

Overview

Watts Regulator Co was founded by Joseph Watts in 1874 in Lawrence Massachusetts Watts

Regulator Co started as small machine shop supplying parts to the New England textile mills of the

19th century and grew into global manufacturer of products and systems focused on the control

conservation and quality of water and the comfort and safety of the people using it Watts Water

Technologies Inc was incorporated in Delaware in 1985 and became the parent company of Watts

Regulator Co

Our Water by Watts strategy is to be the leading provider of water quality water conservation

water safety and water flow control products for the residential and commercial markets in North

America and Europe with presence in Asia Our primary objective is to grow earnings by increasing

sales within
existing markets expanding into new markets leveraging our distribution channels and

customer base making selected acquisitions reducing manufacturing costs and advocating for the

development and enforcement of industry standards

We intend to continue to introduce products in existing markets by enhancing our preferred

brands developing new complementary products promoting plumbing code development to drive sales

of safety and water quality products and continually improving merchandising in both the do-it-yourself

DIY and wholesale distribution channels We continually target selected new product and geographic
markets based on growth potential including our ability to leverage our existing distribution channels

Additionally we continually leverage our distribution channels through the introduction of new

products as well as the integration of products of our acquired companies

We intend to continue to generate growth by targeting selected acquisitions both in our core

markets as well as new complementary markets We have completed 36 acquisitions since divesting our

industrial and oil and
gas

business in 1999 Our acquisition strategy focuses on businesses that

manufacture preferred brand name products that address our themes of water quality water

conservation water safety water flow control and comfort and related complementary markets We

target businesses that will provide us with one or more of the following an entry into new markets an

increase in shelf
space with existing customers strong brand names new or improved technology or

an expansion of the breadth of our Water by Watts offerings



We are committed to reducing our manufacturing and operating costs through combination of

manufacturing in lower-cost countries using Lean Six Sigma to drive continuous improvement across

all key processes and consolidating our diverse manufacturing operations in North America Europe

and Asia We have number of manufacturing facilities in lower-cost regions such as Mexico China

Bulgaria and Tunisia In recent years we have announced several global restructuring plans to reduce

our manufacturing footprint in order to reduce our costs and to realize additional operating

efficiencies

Our products are sold to wholesale distributors and dealers major DIY chains and original

equipment manufacturers OEM5 Most of our sales are for products that have been approved under

regulatory standards incorporated into state and municipal plumbing heating building and fire

protection codes in North America and Europe We have consistently advocated the development and

enforcement of plumbing codes and are committed to providing products to meet these standards

particularly for safety and control valve products These codes serve as competitive barrier to entry by

requiring that products sold in select jurisdictions meet stringent criteria

Additionally majority of our manufacturing facilities are ISO 9000 9001 or 9002 certified by the

International Organization for Standardization

Our business is reported in three geographic segments North America Europe and Asia The

contributions of each segment to net sales operating income and the presentation of certain other

financial information by segment are reported in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements and in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations included elsewhere in this report

Products

We have broad range of products in terms of design distinction size and configuration In 2011

we began classifying our many products into four universal product lines These product lines are

Residential commercial flow control productsincludes products typically sold into plumbing

and hot water applications such as backflow preventers water pressure regulators temperature

and pressure relief valves and thermostatic mixing valves In 2011 2010 and 2009 residential

commercial flow control products accounted for approximately 53% 51% and 51% respectively

of our total sales

HVAC gas productsincludes hydronic and electric heating systems for under-floor radiant

applications hydronic pump groups for boiler manufacturers and alternative energy control

packages and flexible stainless steel connectors for natural and liquid propane gas in

commercial food service and residential applications In 2011 2010 and 2009 HVAC gas

products accounted for approximately 33% 34% and 34% respectively of our total sales

HVAC is an acronym for heating ventilation and air conditioning

Drains water re-use productsincludes drainage products and engineered rain water

harvesting solutions for commercial industrial marine and residential applications In 2011 2010

and 2009 drains water re-use products accounted for approximately 9% 10% and 10%
respectively of our total sales

Water quality productsincludes point-of-use and point-of-entry water filtration conditioning

and scale prevention systems for both commercial and residential applications In 2011 2010 and

2009 water quality products accounted for approximately 5% 5% and 5% respectively of our

total sales

Customers and Markets

We sell our products to plumbing heating and mechanical wholesale distributors major DIY

chains and OEMs



Wholesalers Approximately 68% 64% and 65% of our sales in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

were to wholesale distributors for commercial and residential applications We rely on commissioned

manufacturers representatives some of which maintain consigned inventory of our products to

market our product lines Additionally various water quality products are sold to independent dealers

throughout North America

DIY Chains Approximately 13% 16% and 16% of our sales in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

were to DIY chains Our DIY chains demand less technical products but are highly receptive to

innovative designs and new product ideas

OEMs Approximately 19% 20% and 19% of our sales in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively were

to OEMs In North America our typical OEM customers are water heater manufacturers and

equipment and water systems manufacturers needing flow control devices and other products Our sales

to OEMs in Europe are primarily to boiler manufacturers and radiant system manufacturers Our sales

to OEMs in Asia are primarily to boiler and bath manufacturers including manufacturers of faucet and

shower products

In 2011 2010 and 2009 no customer accounted for more than 10% of our total net sales Our top

ten customers accounted for approximately $290.4 million or 20% of our total net sales in 2011

$273.6 million or 22% of our total net sales in 2010 and $306.4 million or 25% of our total net sales

in 2009 Thousands of other customers constituted the balance of our net sales in each of those years

Marketing and Sales

For product sales we rely primarily on commissioned manufacturers representatives some of

which maintain consigned inventory of our products These representatives sell primarily to plumbing

and heating wholesalers or service DIY store locations in North America We also sell products for the

residential construction and home repair and remodeling industries through DIY plumbing retailers

national catalog distribution companies hardware stores building material outlets and retail home

center chains and through plumbing and heating wholesalers In addition we sell products directly to

wholesalers OEMs and private label accounts in Europe and to lesser extent in North America

Manufacturing

We have integrated and automated manufacturing capabilities including bronze foundry

machining plastic extrusion and injection molding and assembly operations Our foundry operations

include metal pouring systems automatic core making yellow brass forging and brass and bronze

die-castings Our machining operations feature computer-controlled machine tools high-speed chucking

machines with robotics and automatic screw machines for machining bronze brass and steel

components We have invested in recent years to expand our manufacturing capabilities to ensure the

availability of the most efficient and productive equipment We are committed to maintaining our

manufacturing equipment at level consistent with current technology in order to maintain high levels

of quality and manufacturing efficiencies

Capital expenditures and depreciation for each of the last three
years were as follows

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Capital expenditures $22.7 $24.6 $24.2

Depreciation $33.3 $30.5 $33.7

Raw Materials

We require substantial amounts of raw materials to produce our products including bronze brass

cast iron steel plastic and components used in products and substantially all of the raw materials we



require are purchased from outside sources The commodity markets have experienced tremendous

volatility over the
past several years particularly with respect to copper The market prices of many

commodities increased throughout 2009 and 2010 During 2011 spot copper prices increased to historic

highs early in the year and then trended downward in the second half of 2011 Bronze and brass are

copper-based alloys The average monthly copper spot price decreased approximately 17.7% from

December 2010 to December 2011 The fact that we source internationally significant amount of raw

materials means that several months of raw materials and work in process are moving through our

business at any point in time We are not able to predict whether commodity costs including copper

will significantly increase or decrease in the future If commodity costs increase in the future and we

are not able to reduce or eliminate the effect of the cost increases by reducing production costs or

implementing price increases our profit margins could decrease If commodity costs were to decline

we may experience pressures from customers to reduce our selling prices The timing of any price

reductions and decreases in commodity costs may not align As result our margins could be affected

With limited exceptions we have multiple suppliers for our commodities and other raw materials

We believe our relationships with our key suppliers are good and that an interruption in supply from

any one supplier would not materially affect our ability to meet our immediate demands while another

supplier is qualified We regularly review our suppliers to evaluate their strengths If supplier is

unable to meet our demands we believe that our inventory of raw materials will allow for sufficient

time to identify and obtain the
necessary

commodities and other raw materials from an alternate

source We believe that the nature of the commodities and other raw materials used in our business are

such that multiple sources are generally available in the market

Code Compliance

Products representing majority of our sales are subject to regulatory standards and code

enforcement which typically require that these products meet stringent performance criteria Standards

are established by such industry test and certification organizations as the American Society of

Mechanical Engineers A.S.M.E the Canadian Standards Association C.S.A the American Society

of Sanitary Engineers A.S.S.E the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross-

Connection Control USC FCC the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials

I.A.P.M.O Factory Mutual EM the National Sanitation Foundation N.S.E and Underwriters

Laboratory U.L. Many of these standards are incorporated into state and municipal plumbing and

heating building and fire protection codes

National regulatory standards in Europe vary by country The major standards and/or guidelines

that our products must meet are AFNOR France DVGW Germany UNI/ICIN Italy KIWA
Netherlands SVGW Switzerland SITAC Sweden and WRAS United Kingdom Further there

are local regulatory standards requiring compliance as well

Together with our commissioned manufacturers representatives we have consistently advocated for

the development and enforcement of plumbing codes We maintain stringent quality control and testing

procedures at each of our manufacturing facilities in order to manufacture products that comply with

code requirements

We believe that product-testing capability and investment in plant and equipment is needed to

manufacture products that comply with code requirements Additionally majority of our

manufacturing facilities are ISO 9000 9001 or 9002 certified by the International Organization for

Standardization

New Product Development and Engineering

We maintain our own product development staff design teams and testing laboratories in North

America Europe and Asia that work to enhance our existing products and develop new products We
maintain sophisticated product development and testing laboratories Research and development costs



included in selling general and administrative expense amounted to $21.2 million $18.6 million and

$17.8 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

California Maryland and Vermont have recently implemented laws that require all pipes pipe and

plumbing fittings and plumbing fixtures sold in those states that convey or dispense water for human

consumption to contain virtually no lead content which is generally referred to as lead-free Louisiana

has enacted similar legislation that goes into effect in 2013 On January 2011 the federal government

enacted similar law that will take effect nationwide in January 2014 We have invested considerable

resources over the past several years to develop lead-free versions of our plumbing products to comply

with the new laws and we have successfully introduced our lead-free product offerings in Maryland

California and Vermont

Complying with these new requirements on nationwide basis will pose significant challenge for

us The transition to comply with the expected requirements may cause our material costs to increase

as suppliers of alternative lead-free metals are currently limited We may not succeed in passing

through these cost increases to our customers We may also experience technical challenges in our

manufacturing process
in converting our present manufacturing operations to 100% lead-free products

In addition we could have difficulty providing sufficient quantities of our lead-free compliant products

to meet nationwide demand and we could be left with potentially obsolete traditional leaded product

inventories if customers convert to lead-free offerings faster than anticipated

Competition

The domestic and international markets for water safety and flow control devices are intensely

competitive and require us to compete against some companies possessing greater financial marketing

and other resources than ours Due to the breadth of our product offerings the number and identities

of our competitors vary by product line and market We consider quality brand preference delivery

times engineering specifications plumbing code requirements price technological expertise and

breadth of product offerings to be the primary competitive factors We believe that new product

development and product engineering are also important to success in the water industry and that our

position in the industry is attributable in
part to our ability to develop new and innovative products

quickly and to adapt and enhance existing products We continue to develop new and innovative

products to enhance market position and are continuing to implement manufacturing and design

programs to reduce costs We cannot be certain that our efforts to develop new products will be

successful or that our customers will accept our new products Although we own certain patents and

trademarks that we consider to be of importance we do not believe that our business and

competitiveness as whole are dependent on any one of our patents or trademarks or on patent or

trademark protection generally

Backlog

Backlog was approximately $81.4 million at February 10 2012 We do not believe that our backlog

at any point
in time is indicative of future operating results and we expect our entire current backlog to

be converted to sales in 2012

Employees

As of December 31 2011 we employed approximately 5800 people worldwide None of our

employees in North America or Asia are covered by collective bargaining agreements In some

European countries our employees are subject to traditional national collective bargaining agreements

We believe that our employee relations are good

Available Information

We maintain website with the address wwwwattswatecom The information contained on our

website is not included as part of or incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on



Form 10-K Other than an investors own internet access charges we make available free of charge

through our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-0 and current

reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we
have electronically filed such material with or furnished such material to the Securities and Exchange

Commission

Executive Officers and Directors

Set forth below in alphabetical order are the names of our executive officers and directors their

respective ages
and positions with our Company and brief summary of their business experience for

at least the past five years

Executive Officers Age Position

Srinivas Bagepalli 45 President North America

Dennis Cawte 61 Group Managing Director EMEA

David Coghlan 52 Chief Executive Officer President and Director

Kenneth Lepage 41 General Counsel Executive Vice President of Administration

and Secretary

William McCartney 57 Chief Financial Officer

Elie Melhem 49 President Asia

Non-Employee Directors

Robert Ayers23 66 Director

Bernard Baert13 62 Director

Kennett Burnes13 69 Director

Richard Cathcart23 67 Director

Ralph Jackson Jr.23 70 Director

Craig Kissel23 61 Director

John McGillicuddy13 68 Chairman of the Board and Director

Merilee Raines13 56 Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Compensation Committee

Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Srinivas Bagepalli joined our Company in October 2011 and was appointed President of North

America From 2006 to September 2011 Mr Bagepalli was the President and General Manager of

three global companies within Danaher Corporations Industrial Technologies Group including Setra

Systems Inc Sonix Inc and Portescap During his time with Danaher Mr Bagepalli also served as

the President of Sensors Controls Asia Danaher Corporation is global business that designs

manufactures and markets professional medical industrial and commercial products and services

Mr Bagepalli worked for General Electric Company from 1994 to 2006 While with General Electric

Mr Bagepalli served as the Executive Vice President and Segment Manager at GE Infrastructure

Sensing and Inspection Technologies from 2003 to 2006 Manager Mergers and Acquisitions at GE
Industrial Systems from 2001 to 2003 Manager Business Development Strategy and Growth at GE
Corporate from 2000 to 2001 and Process Integration Manufacturing Group Leader at GE
Corporate Technology Center from 1994 to 1999



Dennis Cawte joined our Company in 2001 and was appointed Group Managing Director

EMEA Prior to joining our Company he was European President of PCC Valve and Controls

division of Precision Castparts Corp manufacturer of components and castings to the aeronautical

industry from 1999 to 2001 He had also worked for approximately 20 years for Keystone Valve

International manufacturer and distributor of industrial valves where his most recent position was

the Managing Director Northern Europe Middle East Africa and India

David Coghlan was appointed Chief Executive Officer President and Director in January 2011

He previously served as our Chief Operating Officer from January 2010 to January 2011 and as

President of North America and Asia from June 2008 to January 2010 Prior to joining our Company

Mr Coghlan served as Vice President Global Parts for Trane Inc global manufacturer of

commercial and residential heating ventilation and air conditioning equipment from April 2004

through May 2008 He also held several management positions within the Climate Control Technologies

segment of Ingersoll-Rand Company Limited manufacturer of transport temperature control units

and refrigerated display merchandisers from 1995 to December 2003 Before joining Ingersoll-Rand

Mr Coghlan worked for several years
with the management consulting firm of McKinsey Co in both

the United Kingdom and United States

Kenneth Lepage was appointed General Counsel and Secretary of the Company in August 2008

and Executive Vice President of Administration in December 2009 Mr Lepage originally joined our

Company in September 2003 as Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary Prior to joining our

Company he was junior partner at the law firm of Hale and Dorr LLP now Wilmer Cutler Pickering

Hale and Dorr LLP

William McCartney joined our Company in 1985 as Controller He was appointed our Vice

President of Finance in 1994 and served as our Corporate Controller from 1988 to 1999 He was

appointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in 2000 He served as Secretary of the Company from

January 2000 to November 2005

Elie Meihem joined our Company in July 2011 as President Asia Mr Melhem was previously the

Managing Director of China for Ariston Thermo Group global manufacturer of heating and hot

water products from 2008 to July 2011 Prior to joining Ariston Mr Melhem spent eleven years with

ITT Industries in China where he held several management positions including serving as President of

ITTs Residential and Commercial Water Group in China and President of ITTs Water Technology

Group in Asia

Robert Ayers has served as director of our Company since October 2006 He was Senior Vice

President of ITT Industries and President of ITT Industries Fluid Technology from October 1999 until

September 2005 Mr Ayers continued to be employed by ITT Industries from September 2005 until his

retirement in September 2006 during which time he focused on special projects for the company

Mr Ayers joined ITT Industries in 1998 as President of ITT Industries Industrial Pump Group Before

joining ITT Industries he was President of Suizer Industrial USA and Chief Executive Officer of Suizer

Bingham pump manufacturer Mr Ayers served as director of T-3 Energy Services Inc from

August 2007 to January 2011

Bernard Baert was elected as member of our Board of Directors in August 2011 Mr Baert has

served as Senior Vice President and President Europe and International of PolyOne Corporation since

January 2010 Mr Baert served as Senior Vice President and General Manager Color and Engineered

MaterialsEurope and China for PolyOne Corporation from 2006 to December 2009 and as Vice

President and General Manager Color and Engineered MaterialsEurope and China from 2000 to

2006 From 1995 to September 2000 Mr Baert was General Manager ColorEurope for M.A Hanna

Company the predecessor to PolyOne Corporation PolyOne Corporation is worldwide provider of

specialty polymer materials services and solutions Prior to joining M.A Hanna Mr Baert was General

Manager Europe for Hexcel Corporation and spent 17 years with Owens Corning where he served as

plant manager and held various positions in the areas of cost control and production



Kennett Bumes became director of our Company in February 2009 Mr Burnes is the retired

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of Cabot Corporation global specialty chemicals

company He was Chairman from 2001 to March 2008 President from 1995 to January 2008 and Chief

Executive Officer from 2001 to January 2008 Prior to joining Cabot Corporation in 1987 Mr Burnes

was partner at the Boston-based law firm of Choate Hall Stewart where he specialized in

corporate
and business law for nearly 20 years He is director of State Street Corporation member

of the Dana Farber Cancer Institutes Board of Trustees and board member of the New England

Conservatory Mr Burnes is also Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Schepens Eye Research

Institute

Richard Cathcart has served as director of our Company since October 2007 He was Vice

Chairman and member of the Board of Directors of Pentair Inc from February 2005 until his

retirement in September 2007 Pentair is diversified manufacturing company consisting of two

operating segments Water Technologies and Technical Products He was appointed President and Chief

Operating Officer of Pentairs Water Technologies Group in January 2001 and served in that capacity

until his appointment as Vice Chairman in February 2005 He began his career at Pentair in March

1995 as Executive Vice President Corporate Development where he identified water as strategic area

of growth In February 1996 he was named Executive Vice President and President of Pentairs Water

Technologies Group Prior to joining Pentair he held several management and business development

positions during his 20-year career with Honeywell International Inc He is director of Fluidra S.A

Ralph Jackson Jr has served as director of our Company since 2004 He worked for Cooper

Industries Inc manufacturer of electrical products from 1985 until his retirement in December

2003 Prior to joining Cooper Industries he worked for the Bussmann and Air Comfort divisions of

McGraw-Edison from 1976 until McGraw-Edison was acquired by Cooper Industries in 1985 While

with Cooper Industries he served as Chief Operating Officer from 2000 to December 2003 Executive

Vice President Electrical Operations from 1992 to 2000 and President Bussmann Division from the

time McGraw-Edison was acquired by Cooper Industries to 1992 He served as member of the Board

of Directors of Cooper Industries from 2000 to December 2003

Craig Kissel was elected as member of our Board of Directors in November 2011 Mr Kissel

previously was employed by Trane Inc formerly known as American Standard Companies Inc from

1980 until his retirement in September 2008 During his time at Trane Mr Kissel served as President

of Trane Commercial Systems from 2004 to June 2008 President of WABCO Vehicle Control Systems

from 1998 to 2003 President of Tranes North American Unitary Products Group from 1994 to 1997

Vice President of Marketing of Tranes North American Unitary Products Group from 1992 to 1994

and held various other management positions at Trane from 1980 to 1991 Trane is leading worldwide

supplier of air conditioning and heating systems and WABCO is leading worldwide supplier of

commercial vehicle control systems From 2001 to 2008 Mr Kissel served as Chairman of Tranes

Corporate Ethics and Integrity Council which was responsible for developing the companys ethical

business standards Mr Kissel also served in the U.S Navy from 1973 to 1978 Mr Kissel has served as

director of Chicago Bridge Iron Company since May 2009 Chicago Bridge Iron Company

engineers and constructs some of the worlds largest energy infrastructure projects

John McGillicuddy has served as director of our Company since 2003 He was employed by

KPMG LLP public accounting firm from 1965 until his retirement in 2000 He was elected into the

Partnership at KPMG LLP in June 1975 where he served as Audit Partner SEC Reviewing Partner

Partner-in-Charge of Professional Practice Partner-in-Charge of College Recruiting and

Partner-in-Charge of Staff Scheduling He is director of Brooks Automation Inc and Cabot

Corporation

Merilee Raines has served as director of our Company since February 2011 Ms Raines has

served as Chief Financial Officer of IDEXX Laboratories Inc since October 2003 Prior to becoming

Chief Financial Officer Ms Raines held several management positions with IDEXX Laboratories

including Corporate Vice President of Finance Vice President and Treasurer of Finance Director of



Finance and Controller IDEXX Laboratories develops manufactures and distributes diagnostic and

information technology products and services for pet and animal health water quality and milk safety

and human point-of-care diagnostics

Product Liability Environmental and Other Litigation Matters

We are subject to variety of potential liabilities connected with our business operations including

potential liabilities and expenses associated with possible product defects or failures and compliance

with environmental laws We maintain product liability and other insurance coverage which we believe

to be generally in accordance with industry practices Nonetheless such insurance coverage may not be

adequate to protect us fully against substantial damage claims

Contingencies

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Settlement

On October 13 2011 we entered into settlement with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC to resolve allegations concerning potential violations of the U.S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

FCPA at Watts Valve Changsha Co Ltd CWV former indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Watts

in China Under the terms of the settlement without admitting or denying the SECs allegations we
consented to entry of an administrative cease-and-desist order under the books and records and

internal controls provisions of the FCPA We also agreed to pay to the SEC $3.6 million in

disgorgement and prejudgment interest and $0.2 million in penalties

The amounts paid by us in connection with the settlement were fully accrued as of December 31
2010 We anticipate that this settlement resolves all government investigations concerning CWVs sales

practices and potential FCPA violations

Environmental Remediation

We have been named as potentially responsible party with respect to limited number of

identified contaminated sites The levels of contamination vary significantly from site to site as do the

related levels of remediation efforts Environmental liabilities are recorded based on the most probable

cost if known or on the estimated minimum cost of remediation Accruals are not discounted to their

present value unless the amount and timing of expenditures are fixed and reliably determinable We
accrue estimated environmental liabilities based on assumptions which are subject to number of

factors and uncertainties Circumstances that can affect the reliability and precision of these estimates

include identification of additional sites environmental regulations level of cleanup required

technologies available number and financial condition of other contributors to remediation and the

time period over which remediation may occur We recognize changes in estimates as new remediation

requirements are defined or as new information becomes available

Asbestos Litigation

We are defending approximately 47 lawsuits in different jurisdictions alleging injury or death as

result of exposure to asbestos The complaints in these cases typically name large number of

defendants and do not identify any particular Watts products as source of asbestos exposure To date

we have obtained dismissal in
every case before it has reached trial because discovery has failed to

yield evidence of substantial exposure to any Watts products

Other Litigation

Other lawsuits and proceedings or claims arising from the ordinary course of operations are also

pending or threatened against us
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Item 1A RISK FACTORS

Current economic cycles particularly those involving reduced levels of commercial and residential starts and

remodeling may continue to have an adverse effect on our revenues and operating results

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience fluctuations in revenues and operating

results due to economic and business cycles The businesses of most of our customers particularly

plumbing and heating wholesalers and home improvement retailers are cyclical Therefore the level of

our business activity has been cyclical fluctuating with economic cycles The recent economic downturn

may also affect the financial stability of our customers which could affect their ability to pay amounts

owed to their vendors including us We also believe our level of business activity is influenced by

commercial and residential starts and renovation and remodeling which are in turn heavily influenced

by interest rates consumer debt levels changes in disposable income employment growth and

consumer confidence The current credit market conditions may prevent commercial and residential

builders or developers from obtaining the
necessary capital to continue existing projects or to start new

projects This may result in the delay or cancellation of orders from our customers or potential

customers and may adversely affect our revenues and our ability to manage inventory levels collect

customer receivables and maintain profitability The current conditions in the housing and debt markets

have caused significant reduction in commercial and residential starts and renovation and remodeling

These conditions have adversely impacted our revenue and profit Further sovereign debt concerns

within the Euro Zone are negatively impacting the overall economic vitality of the region which may

trigger recession in Europe in 2012 If these conditions continue or worsen in the future our

revenues and profits could decrease or trigger additional goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets or

long-lived asset impairments and could have material effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

We face intense competition and if we are not able to respond to competition in our markets our revenues

may decrease

Competitive pressures in our markets could adversely affect our competitive position leading to

possible loss of market share or decrease in prices either of which could result in decreased revenues

and profits We encounter intense competition in all areas of our business Additionally we believe our

customers are attempting to reduce the number of vendors from which they purchase in order to

reduce the size and diversity of their inventories and their transaction costs To remain competitive we

will need to invest continually in manufacturing product development marketing customer service and

support and our distribution networks We may not have sufficient resources to continue to make such

investments and we may be unable to maintain our competitive position In addition we anticipate that

we may have to reduce the prices of some of our products to stay competitive potentially resulting in

reduction in the profit margin for and inventory valuation of these products Some of our competitors

are based in foreign countries and have cost structures and prices in foreign currencies Accordingly

currency fluctuations could cause our U.S dollar-priced products to be less competitive than our

competitors products which are priced in other currencies

Changes in the costs of raw materials could reduce our profit margins Reductions or interruptions in the

supply of components or finished goods from international sources could adversely affect our ability to meet

our customer delivery commitments

We require substantial amounts of raw materials including bronze brass cast iron steel and

plastic and substantially all of the raw materials we require are purchased from outside sources The

costs of raw materials may be subject to change due to among other things interruptions in production

by suppliers and changes in exchange rates and worldwide price and demand levels We typically do not

enter into long-term supply agreements Our inability to obtain supplies of raw materials for our

products at favorable costs could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or

results of operations by decreasing our profit margins The commodity markets have experienced

tremendous volatility over the past several years particularly copper Should commodity costs increase
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substantially we may not be able to recover such costs through selling price increases to our customers

or other product cost reductions which would have negative effect on our financial results If

commodity costs decline we may experience pressure from customers to reduce our selling prices

Additionally we continue to purchase increased levels of components and finished goods from

international sources In limited cases these components or finished goods are single-sourced The

availability of components and finished goods from international sources could be adversely impacted

by among other things interruptions in production by suppliers suppliers allocations to other

purchasers and new laws or regulations

Government regulations could limit or delay our ability to market or sell our products

In January 2011 the President of the United States signed the Reduction of Lead in Drinking Water

Act which will reduce the permissible weighted average lead content in faucets fittings and valves

intended for use in potable water applications from 8% to 0.25% nationwide beginning in January

2014 The new law is consistent with current legislation in California and Vermont that went into effect

in January 2010 in Maryland in January 2012 and is also consistent with new legislation in Louisiana

which will go into effect in 2013 We introduced lead-free products for sale in California Vermont and

Maryland and offer large selection of lead-free compliant valves and fittings Complying with these

new requirements on nationwide basis will pose significant challenge for us The transition to

comply with the expected requirements may cause our material costs to increase as suppliers of

alternative lead-free metals are currently limited We may not succeed in passing through these cost

increases to our customers We may also experience technical challenges in converting our present

manufacturing operations to produce more lead-free products In addition we could have difficulty

providing sufficient quantities of our lead-free compliant products to meet nationwide demand and we

could be left with potentially obsolete traditional leaded product inventories if customers convert to

lead-free offerings faster than anticipated These requirements could have material effect on our

financial condition and results of operation

Implementation of our acquisition strategy may not be successful which could affect our ability to increase

our revenues or our profitability

One of our strategies is to increase our revenues and profitability and expand our business through

acquisitions that will provide us with complementary products and increase market share for our

existing product lines We cannot be certain that we will be able to identify acquire or profitably

manage additional companies or successfully integrate such additional companies without substantial

costs delays or other problems Also companies acquired recently and in the future may not achieve

revenues profitability or cash flows that justify our investment in them We have faced increasing

competition for acquisition candidates which have resulted in significant increases in the purchase

prices of many acquisition candidates This competition and the resulting purchase price increases may
limit the number of acquisition opportunities available to us possibly leading to decrease in the rate

of growth of our revenues and profitability In addition acquisitions may involve number of risks

including but not limited to

inadequate internal controls over financial reporting and our ability to bring such controls into

compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 in timely

manner

adverse short-term effects on our reported operating results

diversion of managements attention

investigations of or challenges to acquisitions by competition authorities

loss of key personnel at acquired companies

unanticipated management or operational problems or legal liabilities and

potential goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets or long-lived asset impairment charges
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We are subject to risks related to product defects which could result in product recalls and could subject us to

warranty claims in excess of our warranty provisions or which are greater than anticipated due to the

unenforceability of liability limitations

We maintain strict quality controls and procedures including the testing of raw materials and

safety testing of selected finished products However we cannot be certain that our testing will reveal

latent defects in our products or the materials from which they are made which may not become

apparent until after the products have been sold into the market We also cannot be certain that our

suppliers will always eliminate latent defects in products we purchase from them Accordingly there is

risk that product defects will occur which could require product recall Product recalls can be

expensive to implement and if product recall occurs during the products warranty period we may be

required to replace the defective product In addition product recall may damage our relationship

with our customers and we may lose market share with our customers Our insurance policies may not

cover the costs of product recall

Our standard warranties contain limits on damages and exclusions of liability for consequential

damages and for misuse improper installation alteration accident or mishandling while in the

possession of someone other than us We may incur additional operating expenses if our warranty

provision does not reflect the actual cost of resolving issues related to defects in our products If these

additional expenses are significant it could adversely affect our business financial condition and results

of operations

We face risks from product liability and other lawsuits which may adversely affect our business

We have been and expect to continue to be subject to various product liability claims or other

lawsuits including among others that our products include inadequate or improper instructions for use

or installation or inadequate warnings concerning the effects of the failure of our products If we do

not have adequate insurance or contractual indemnification damages from these claims would have to

be paid from our assets and could have material adverse effect on our results of operations liquidity

and financial condition Like other manufacturers and distributors of products designed to control and

regulate fluids and gases we face an inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims and other

lawsuits in the event that the use of our products results in personal injury property damage or

business interruption to our customers Although we maintain strict quality controls and procedures

including the testing of raw materials and safety testing of selected finished products we cannot be

certain that our products will be completely free from defect In addition in certain cases we rely on

third-party manufacturers for our products or components of our products Although we have product

liability and general insurance coverage we cannot be certain that this insurance coverage will continue

to be available to us at reasonable cost or if available will be adequate to cover any such liabilities

For more information see Item BusinessProduct Liability Environmental and Other Litigation

Matters

Economic and other risks associated with international sales and operations could adversely affect our

business and future operating results

Since we sell and manufacture our products worldwide our business is subject to risks associated

with doing business internationally Our business and future operating results could be harmed by

variety of factors including

unexpected geo-political events in foreign countries in which we operate could adversely affect

manufacturing and our ability to fulfill customer orders Although our manufacturing operations

have not been materially affected to date we can give no assurance that future operations will

not be adversely affected by unforeseen political events in foreign countries

trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements which could increase our

costs of doing business internationally
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potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws which could have an adverse impact

on our profits

difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations which could reduce our productivity

costs of compliance with differing labor regulations especially in connection with restructuring

our overseas operations

laws of some foreign countries which may not protect our intellectual property rights to the

same extent as the laws of the United States

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements which may be costly and require time to

implement and

foreign exchange rate fluctuations which could also materially affect our reported results

portion of our sales and certain portions of our costs assets and liabilities are denominated in

currencies other than U.S dollars and the percentage of our revenues denominated in

particular currency may not match the percentage of our expenses denominated in that currency

Approximately 48.4% of our sales during the year ended December 31 2011 were from sales

outside of the U.S compared to 44.1% for the year ended December 31 2010 We cannot

predict whether currencies such as the euro Canadian dollar or Chinese yuan will appreciate or

depreciate against the U.S dollar in future periods or whether future foreign exchange rate

fluctuations will have positive or negative impact on our reported results

Our ability to achieve savings through our restructuring plans may be adversely affected by local regulations

or factors beyond the control of management

We have implemented number of restructuring plans which include steps that we believe are

necessary to reduce operating costs and increase efficiencies throughout our manufacturing sales and

distribution footprint Although we have considered the impact of local regulations negotiations with

employee representatives the timing of capital expenditures necessary to prepare facilities and the

related costs associated with these activities factors beyond the control of management may affect the

timing and therefore affect when the savings will be achieved under the plans Further if we are not

successful in completing the restructuring projects in the time frames contemplated or if additional

issues arise during the projects that add costs or disrupt customer service then our operating results

could be negatively affected

Future operating results could be negatively affected by the resolution of various uncertain tax positions and

by potential changes to tax incentives

In the ordinary course of our business there are many transactions and calculations where the

ultimate tax determination is uncertain Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide

provision for income taxes We periodically assess our exposures related to our worldwide provision for

income taxes and believe that we have appropriately accrued taxes for contingencies Any reduction of

these contingent liabilities or additional assessment would increase or decrease income respectively in

the period such determination was made Our income tax filings are regularly under audit by tax

authorities and the final determination of tax audits could be materially different than that which is

reflected in historical income tax provisions and accruals As issues arise during tax audits we adjust

our tax accrual accordingly Additionally we benefit from certain tax incentives offered by various

jurisdictions if we are unable to meet the requirements of such incentives our inability to use these

benefits could have material negative effect on future earnings

We are currently decentralized company which presents certain risks

We are currently decentralized company which sometimes places significant control and

decision-making powers in the hands of local management This presents various risks such as the risk

of being slower to identify or react to problems affecting key business Additionally we are
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implementing in phased approach company-wide initiative to standardize and upgrade our

enterprise resource planning ERP system This initiative could be more challenging and costly to

implement because divergent legacy systems currently exist Further if the ERP update is not

successful we could incur substantial business interruption including our ability to perform routine

business transactions which could have material adverse effect on our financial results

The requirements to evaluate goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets and long-lived assets for impairment

may result in write-off of all or portion of our recorded amounts which would negatively affect our

operating results and financial condition

As of December 31 2011 our balance sheet included goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets

amortizable intangible assets and property plant and equipment of $490.4 million $35.7 million

$118.9 million and $226.7 million respectively In lieu of amortization we are required to perform an

annual impairment review of both goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets In performing our

annual reviews in both 2011 and 2010 we recognized non-cash
pre-tax charges of approximately

$1.4 million as impairments of the indefinite-lived intangible assets During the fourth quarter of 2011

we recognized pre-tax non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $1.2 million related to our Blue Ridge

Atlantic Enterprises Inc BRAE reporting unit within our North America segment We are also

required to perform an impairment review of our long-lived assets if indicators of impairment exist

During the fourth quarter of 2011 we recognized pre-tax non-cash long-lived asset impairment charges

of $14.8 million related to our Austroflex operations within our Europe segment There can be no

assurances that future goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets or long-lived asset impairments will

not occur We perform our annual test for indications of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets

impairment in the fourth quarter of our fiscal
year or sooner if indicators of impairment exist

The loss or financial instability of major customer could have an adverse effect on our results of operations

In 2011 our top ten customers accounted for approximately 20% of our total net sales with no one

customer accounting for more than 10% of our total net sales Our customers generally are not

obligated to purchase any minimum volume of products from us and are able to terminate their

relationships with us at any time In addition increases in the prices of our products could result in

reduction in orders for our customers significant reduction in orders from or change in terms of

contracts with any significant customers could have material adverse effect on our future results of

operations Furthermore some of our major customers are facing financial challenges due to market

declines and heavy debt levels should these challenges become acute our results could be materially

adversely affected due to reduced orders and/or payment delays or defaults

Certain indebtedness may limit our ability to pay dividends incur additional debt and make acquisitions and

other investments

Our revolving credit facility and other senior indebtedness contain operational and financial

covenants that restrict our ability to make distributions to stockholders incur additional debt and make

acquisitions and other investments unless we satisfy certain financial tests and comply with various

financial ratios If we do not maintain compliance with these covenants our creditors could declare

default under our revolving credit facility or senior notes and our indebtedness could be declared

immediately due and payable Our ability to comply with the provisions of our indebtedness may be

affected by changes in economic or business conditions beyond our control Further one of our

strategies is to increase our revenues and profitability and expand our business through acquisitions We

may require capital in excess of our available cash and the unused portion of our revolving credit

facility to make large acquisitions which we would generally obtain from access to the credit markets

There can be no assurance that if large acquisition is identified that we would have access to

sufficient capital to complete such acquisition Given the current condition of the credit markets

should we require additional debt financing above our existing credit limit we cannot be assured such

financing would be available to us or available to us on reasonable economic terms
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break-up of the Euro Zone and its common currency could have material effect on our business prospects

operations financial condition and cash flow

Approximately 44% of our annualized consolidated sales are generated in the Euro Zone

Sovereign debt concerns within certain European countries could precipitate break-up of the Euro

Zone Leaders from key European countries have proposed solutions to the issue but comprehensive

program addressing all pan European concerns has not yet been identified There are number of

scenarios that could occur as to which countries may leave the Euro Zone and its single currency

sovereign countrys decision to exit the Euro Zone would among other things trigger redenomination

of monetary assets and liabilities into new national currency interrupt that countrys banking system

and could affect various commercial contracts that were written assuming standard Euro currency

We would be exposed to potential devaluation of our asset base and our operating results we could

experience liquidity issues within given country and we could be subject to disputes over business

transactions with various third parties over how contractual obligations should be settled We cannot be

assured that the Euro Zone will continue as presently constructed nor can we determine the breadth

and scope of potential break-up of the Euro Zone

One of our stockholders can exercise substantial influence over our Company

Our Class Common Stock entitles its holders to ten votes for each share and our Class

Common Stock entitles its holders to one vote per share As of January 31 2012 Timothy Home

beneficially owned approximately 19.1% of our outstanding shares of Class Common Stock

assuming conversion of all shares of Class Common Stock beneficially owned by Mr Home into

Class Common Stock and approximately 99.3% of our outstanding shares of Class Common

Stock which represents approximately 69.8% of the total outstanding voting power As long as

Mr Home controls shares representing at least majority of the total voting power of our outstanding

stock Mr Home will be able to unilaterally determine the outcome of most stockholder votes and

other stockholders will not be able to affect the outcome of any such votes

Conversion and sale of significant number of shares of our Class Common Stock could adversely affect

the market price of our Class Common Stock

As of January 31 2012 there were outstanding 29506814 shares of our Class Common Stock

and 6953680 shares of our Class Common Stock Shares of our Class Common Stock may be

converted into Class Common Stock at any time on one for one basis Under the terms of

registration rights agreement with respect to outstanding shares of our Class Common Stock the

holders of our Class Common Stock have rights with respect to the registration of the underlying

Class Common Stock Under these registration rights the holders of Class Common Stock may

require on up to two occasions that we register their shares for public resale If we are eligible to use

Form S-3 or similar short-form registration statement the holders of Class Common Stock may

require that we register their shares for public resale up to two times per year If we elect to register

any shares of Class Common Stock for any public offering the holders of Class Common Stock

are entitled to include shares of Class Common Stock into which such shares of Class Common

Stock may be converted in such registration However we may reduce the number of shares proposed

to be registered in view of market conditions We will pay all expenses in connection with any

registration other than underwriting discounts and commissions If all of the available registered shares

are sold into the public market the trading price of our Class Common Stock could decline

Item lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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Item PROPERTIES

As of December 31 2011 we maintained approximately 31 principal manufacturing warehouse

and distribution centers worldwide including our corporate headquarters located in North Andover

Massachusetts Additionally we maintain numerous sales offices and other smaller manufacturing

facilities and warehouses The principal properties in each of our three geographic segments and their

location principal use and ownership status are set forth below

North America

Location Principal Use Owned/Leased

North Andover MA Corporate Headquarters Owned

Burlington ON Canada Manufacturing/Distribution Owned

Chesnee SC Manufacturing Owned

Export PA Manufacturing Owned

Franklin NH Manufacturing/Distribution
Owned

Kansas City KS Manufacturing Owned

St Pauls NC Manufacturing Owned

San Antonio TX Warehouse/Distribution Owned

Spindale NC Distribution Center Owned

Kansas City MO Manufacturing/Distribution Leased

Peoria AZ Manufacturing/Distribution Leased

Reno NV Distribution Center Leased

Springfield MO Manufacturing/Distribution Leased

Woodland CA Manufacturing Leased

Europe Middle East and Mrica

Location Principal Use Owned/Leased

Eerbeek Netherlands European Headquarters/Manufacturing Owned

Biassono Italy Manufacturing/Distribution Owned

Hautvillers France Manufacturing Owned

Landau Germany Manufacturing/Distribution Owned

Mery France Manufacturing Owned

Plovdiv Bulgaria Manufacturing Owned

Vildjberg Denmark Manufacturing/Distribution Owned

Virey-Le-Grand France Manufacturing/Distribution Owned

Gardolo Italy Manufacturing Leased

Gödersdorf Austria Manufacturing/Distribution
Leased

Monastir Tunisia Manufacturing Leased

RosiŁres France Manufacturing/Distribution
Leased

Sorgues France Distribution Center Leased

Asia

Location Principal Use Owned/Leased

Shanghai China Asian Headquarters Leased

Ningbo Beilun District China Distribution Center Leased

Ningbo Beilun China Manufacturing Owned

Taizhou Yuhuan China Manufacturing Owned
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Certain of our facilities are subject to mortgages and collateral assignments under loan agreements

with long-term lenders In general we believe that our properties including machinery tools and

equipment are in good condition well maintained and adequate and suitable for their intended uses

Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time involved in various legal and administrative procedures See Item

BusinessProduct Liability Environmental and Other Litigation Matters which is incorporated

herein by reference

Item MINE SAFE TY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART II

Item MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITI RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our Class Common Stock on the

New York Stock Exchange during 2011 and 2010 and cash dividends paid per share

2011 2010

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend

First Quarter $40.75 $34.91 $0.11 $32.94 $27.59 $0.11

Second Quarter 39.04 32.13 0.11 37.00 27.63 0.11

Third Quarter 36.95 24.49 0.11 35.48 27.51 0.11

Fourth Quarter 38.27 24.31 0.11 37.41 32.10 0.11

There is no established public trading market for our Class Common Stock which is held by

members of the Home family The principal holders of such stock are subject to restrictions on transfer

with respect to their shares Each share of our Class Common Stock 10 votes per share is

convertible into one share of Class Common Stock vote per share

On February 2012 we declared quarterly dividend of eleven cents $0.11 per share on each

outstanding share of Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock

Aggregate common stock dividend payments in 2011 were $16.3 million which consisted of $13.3

million and $3.0 million for Class shares and Class shares respectively Aggregate common stock

dividend payments in 2010 were $16.4 million which consisted of $13.3 million and $3.1 million for

Class shares and Class shares respectively While we presently intend to continue to pay

comparable cash dividends the payment of future cash dividends depends upon the Board of Directors

assessment of our earnings financial condition capital requirements and other factors

The number of record holders of our Class Common Stock as of January 31 2012 was 183 The

number of record holders of our Class Common Stock as of January 31 2012 was

We satisfy the minimum withholding tax obligation due upon the vesting of shares of restricted

stock and the conversion of restricted stock units into shares of Class Common Stock by

automatically withholding from the shares being issued number of shares with an aggregate
fair

market value on the date of such vesting or conversion that would satisfy the withholding amount due

The following table includes information with respect to shares of our Class Common Stock

withheld to satisfy withholding obligations during the quarter ended December 31 2011

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum Number or
Total Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Number of Shares or Units Value of Shares or
Shares or Average Purchased as Part of Units that May Yet Be

Units Price Paid per Publicly Announced Purchased Under the

Period Purchased Share or Unit Plans or Programs1 Plans or Programs1

October 2011 October 30 2011 1463 $30.07

October 31 2011 November 27 2011

November 28 2011 December 31 2011 196 $36.83

Total 1659 $30.87

On August 2011 we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized stock repurchase

program for up to one million shares of Class Common Stock We also announced the

discontinuance of the previous stock repurchase program which was originally announced on

November 2007 During the three months ended October 2011 we repurchased the entire
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one million shares of Class Common Stock authorized by our Board of Directors at cost of

$27.2 million As result of such repurchases our August 2011 repurchase program expired by its

terms

Performance Graph

Set forth below is line graph comparing the cumulative total shareholder return on our Class

Common Stock for the last five years with the cumulative return of companies on the Standard

Poors 500 Stock Index and the Russell 2000 Index We chose the Russell 2000 Index because it

represents companies with market capitalization similar to that of Watts The graph assumes that the

value of the investment in our Class Common Stock and each index was $100 at December 31 2006

and that all dividends were reinvested

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULAT1VE TOTAL RETURN
Among Watts Water Technologies Inc the SP 500 Index

and the Russell 2000 Index

$120

$40

$20

$0

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

Watts Water Technologies Inc SP 500 Russell 2000

$100 invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends Fiscal year ending

December 31

Cumulative Total Return

12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11

Watts Water Technologies Inc 100.00 73.34 62.57 78.92 94.70 89.73

500 100.00 105.49 66.46 84.05 96.71 98.75

Russell 2000 100.00 98.43 65.18 82.89 105.14 100.75

The above Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or to

be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission nor shall such information be incorporated by

reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 193 each as

amended except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing
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Item SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated

financial statements related Notes thereto and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations included herein

EWE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Amounts in millions except per share and cash dividend information

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

12/31/1116 12/31/1O26 12/31/0936 12/31/0846 12/31/0756

Statement of operations data

Net sales $1436.6 $1274.6 $1225.9 $1431.4 $1356.3

Net income from continuing operations

attributable to Watts Water

Technologies Inc 64.7 63.1 41.0 45.2 75.7

Income loss from discontinued

operations net of taxes 1.7 4.3 23.6 1.4 1.7

Net income attributable to Watts Water

Technologies Inc 66.4 58.8 17.4 46.6 77.4

DILUTED EPS

Income loss per share attributable to

Watts Water Technologies Inc

Continuing operations 1.73 1.69 1.10 1.23 1.94

Discontinued operations 0.05 0.12 0.63 0.04 0.04

NET INCOME 1.78 1.57 0.47 1.26 1.99

Cash dividends declared per common share 0.44 0.44 0.44 0.44 0.40

Balance sheet data at year end
Total assets $1697.5 $1646.1 $1599.2 $1660.1 $1729.3

Long-term debt net of current portion 397.4 378.0 304.0 409.8 432.2

For the year ended December 31 2011 net income includes the following net pre-tax costs

restructuring charges of $10.0 million intangibles and goodwill impairment charges of $17.4

million pension curtailment charges of $1.5 million separation costs related to our former CEO of

$6.3 million and costs related to our acquisition of Danfoss Soda S.A.S Soda in France of $5.8

million offset by pre-tax gains of $1.2 million for an earn-out adjustment $7.7 million related to

the sale of Tianjin Watts Valve Company Ltd TWVC in China and $1.1 million from legal

settlements Additionally net income includes tax benefit of $4.2 million relating to the sale of

TWVC offset by $1.1 million tax charge in Europe related to our France restructuring The

after-tax cost of these items was $17.0 million

For the
year

ended December 31 2010 net income includes the following net pre-tax costs

restructuring charges of $14.1 million intangible impairment charges of $1.4 million and costs

related to acquisitions and other items of $7.1 million offset by pre-tax gains of $4.5 million

primarily for product liability and workers compensation accrual adjustments Additionally net

income includes tax benefit of $4.3 million related to the release of valuation allowance in

Europe offset by tax charge of $1.5 million relating to the repatriation of earnings recognized

upon our decision to dispose of China subsidiary The after-tax cost of these items was

$10.3 million

For the year ended December 31 2009 net income includes the following net pre-tax costs

restructuring charges of $18.9 million and intangible impairment charges of $3.3 million offset by

pre-tax gains on the sale of Tianjin Tanggu Watts Valve Co Ltd TWT in China of $1.1 million

favorable product liability and workers compensation accrual adjustments of $4.9 million and legal
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settlements of $1.5 million Additionally net income includes tax charge of $3.9 million relating

to previously realized tax benefits which were expected to be recaptured as result of our decision

to restructure our operations in China The after-tax cost of these items was $16.7 million

For the year ended December 31 2008 net income includes the following net pre-tax costs

restructuring charges of $5.7 million goodwill impairment charges of $22.0 million and minority

interest income of $0.2 million The after-tax cost of these items was $21.2 million

For the year ended December 31 2007 net income includes the following net pre-tax costs change

in estimate of workers compensation costs of $2.9 million severance and product line

discontinuance costs in North America of $0.4 million and $3.1 million respectively accelerated

depreciation and asset write-downs product line discontinuance costs and severance costs in Asia

of $2.9 million $0.7 million and $0.4 million respectively and minority interest income of $0.9

million The after-tax cost of these items was $6.9 million

In September 2009 the Companys Board of Directors approved the sale of its investment in CWV
and subsequently sold CWV in January 2010 Results from operation and estimated loss on

disposal are included net of tax for CWV in discontinued operations for 2010 2009 2008 and

2007 In May 2009 the Company liquidated its TEAM Precision Pipework Ltd TEAM business

Results from operation and loss on disposal are included net of tax from the deconsolidation of

TEAM in discontinued operations for 2011 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 In September 1996 we

divested our Municipal Water Group of businesses which included Henry Pratt James Jones

Company and Edward Barber and Company Ltd Costs and expenses related to the Municipal

Water Group for 2011 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 relate to legal and settlement costs associated

with the James Jones Litigation and other miscellaneous costs Discontinued operating income

loss for 2011 and 2010 include an estimated settlement reserve adjustment in connection with the

FCPA investigation at CWV see Note 15 and in 2010 and 2009 includes legal costs associated

with the FCPA investigation Income loss for total discontinued operations net of taxes consists

of $1.7 million $4.3 million $23.6 million $1.4 million and $1.7 million for the
years

ended

December 31 2011 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are leading supplier of products for use in the water quality water safety water flow control

and water conservation markets in both North America and Europe with presence in Asia For over

137 years we have designed and manufactured products that promote the comfort and safety of people

and the quality and conservation of water used in commercial and residential applications We earn

revenue and income almost exclusively from the sale of our products Our principal product lines

include

Residential commercial flow control productsincludes products typically sold into plumbing

and hot water applications such as backflow preventers water pressure regulators temperature

and
pressure

relief valves and thermostatic mixing valves

HVAC gas productsincludes hydronic and electric heating systems for under-floor radiant

applications hydronic pump groups for boiler manufacturers and alternative energy control

packages and flexible stainless steel connectors for natural and liquid propane gas in

commercial food service and residential applications HVAC is an acronym for heating

ventilation and air conditioning

Drains water re-use productsincludes drainage products and engineered rain water

harvesting solutions for commercial industrial marine and residential applications

Water quality productsincludes point-of-use and point-of-entry water filtration conditioning

and scale prevention systems for both commercial and residential applications

Our business is reported in three geographic segments North America Europe and Asia We

distribute our products through three primary distribution channels wholesale do-it-yourself DIY and

original equipment manufacturers OEMs
We believe that the factors relating to our future growth include our ability to continue to make

selective acquisitions both in our core markets as well as in new complementary markets regulatory

requirements relating to the quality and conservation of water safe use of water increased demand for

clean water continued enforcement of plumbing and building codes and healthy economic

environment We have completed 36 acquisitions since divesting our industrial and oil and gas business

in 1999 Our acquisition strategy focuses on businesses that manufacture preferred brand name

products that address our themes of water quality water conservation water safety and water flow

control and related complementary markets We target
businesses that will provide us with one or more

of the following an entry into new markets an increase in shelf space with existing customers new or

improved technology or an expansion of the breadth of our water quality water conservation water

safety and water flow control products for the commercial industrial and residential markets

Products representing majority of our sales are subject to regulatory standards and code

enforcement which typically require that these products meet stringent performance criteria Together

with our commissioned manufacturers representatives we have consistently advocated for the

development and enforcement of such plumbing codes We are focused on maintaining stringent quality

control and testing procedures at each of our manufacturing facilities in order to manufacture products

in compliance with code requirements and take advantage of the resulting demand for compliant

products We believe that the product development product testing capability and investment in plant

and equipment needed to manufacture products in compliance with code requirements represent

competitive advantage for us

In 2011 we experienced many of the same macro challenges that affected our business in the

previous year The commercial marketplace continued to struggle we saw low residential activity and

commodity prices remained volatile Despite the challenging end markets we were able to grow sales

organically by 2.3% and grow income from continuing operations by 2.5% Organic sales growth
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excludes the impacts of acquisitions divestitures and foreign exchange from year-over-year comparisons

We believe this provides investors with more complete understanding of underlying sales trends by

providing sales growth on consistent basis We continued our restructuring programs to right size our

manufacturing footprint and we sustained our continuous improvement initiatives to gain productivity

in our operations

Our performance improved as 2011 progressed During the first half of 2011 increases in the cost

of copper reduced margins for our high copper content products and we encountered operational

inefficiencies as result of our French restructuring efforts Copper costs increased during the later

portion of 2010 and into early 2011 reaching an all-time high in April 2011 We were able to balance

commodity costs through price increases by mid-year providing better results during the second half of

2011 In general we were more successful in North America than in Europe in passing on price

increases to our end customers during the year Europe has and continues to experience uncertainties

regarding its economy driven largely by sovereign debt concerns We believe the economic uncertainty

is affecting how our competitors are pricing in end markets We believe that price increases may
continue to be difficult to achieve in many of our European markets in 2012 Copper costs abated

somewhat during the second half of 2011 but have begun to trend upward again through early

February 2012 We have announced selected price increases for 2012 in certain markets but we cannot

determine whether such initiatives will be successful in the marketplace

We continually review our business and implement restructuring plans as needed We recently

completed restructuring projects in the U.S and Europe which have shut down and consolidated

certain of our operations Please see Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

more detailed explanation of our restructuring activities

In March 2010 in connection with our manufacturing footprint consolidation we closed the

operations of Tianjin Watts Valve Company Ltd TWVC and relocated its manufacturing to other

facilities in North America and China On April 12 2010 we signed definitive equity transfer

agreement with third party to sell our equity ownership and remaining assets of TWVC The sale was

finalized in the fourth quarter of 2011 We received net proceeds of approximately $6.1 million from

the sale We recognized net pre-tax gain of $7.7 million and an after-tax gain of approximately

$11.4 million or $0.30 per share relating mainly to favorable cumulative translation adjustment and

tax benefit related to the reversal of the China tax clawback

In 2009 our Board of Directors approved the sale of our Watts Valve Changsha Co Ltd

CWV subsidiary We also liquidated our TEAM Precision Pipework Ltd TEAM subsidiary through

an administration
process under United Kingdom law as more fully described in Note of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements We classified CWVs and TEAMs results of operations and any

related losses as discontinued operations for all periods presented in this report

Acquisitions

On April 29 2011 the Company completed the acquisition of Danfoss Soda S.A.S Soda and

the related water controls business of certain other entities controlled by Danfoss A/S in share and

asset purchase transaction The aggregate consideration paid was EUR 120.0 million less EUR
3.7 million in working capital and related adjustments The net purchase price of EUR 116.3 million

was financed with cash on hand and euro-based borrowings under our Credit Agreement The net

purchase price is equal to approximately $172.4 million based on the exchange rate of Euro to U.S

dollars as of April 29 2011

Soda is manufacturer of water protection valves and flow control solutions for the water market

and the heating ventilation and air conditioning market Its major product lines include backflow

preventers check valves and pressure reducing valves Soda is based in France and its products are

distributed worldwide for commercial residential municipal and industrial use Sodas annual revenue

for 2010 was approximately $130.0 million Soda strengthens the Companys European residential and

commercial plumbing and flow control products and also adds to its HVAC products

24



Recent Developments

On January 31 2012 we completed the acquisition of tekmar Control Systems tekmar in share

purchase transaction designer and manufacturer of control systems used in heating ventilation and

air conditioning applications tekmar is expected to enhance our hydronic systems product offerings in

the U.S and Canada The initial purchase paid was CAD $18.0 million with an earn-out based on

future earnings levels being achieved The total purchase price will not exceed CAD $26.2 million

Sales for tekmar in 2011 approximated CAD $11.0 million

On February 2012 we declared quarterly dividend of eleven cents $0.11 per share on each

outstanding share of Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2010

Net Sales Our business is reported in three geographic segments North America Europe and

Asia Our net sales in each of these segments for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were as

follows

Year Ended
Ch

December 31 2010
Consolidated

Net Sales Sales Net Sales

Dollars in millions

785.5 61.6% 2.7%

468.3 36.8 9.9

_______
20.8 1.6

_____
0.1

_______
$1274.6 100.0% 12.7%

The change in net sales was attributable to the following

North North North

America Europe Asia Total America Europe Asia Total America Europe Asia

Dollars in millions

8.6 $1.8 29.0 1.8% 0.6% 0.1% 2.3% 2.8%

24.0 0.9 28.0 0.2 1.9 0.1 2.2 0.4

94.6 1.8 105.0 0.7 7.4 0.1 8.2 1.1

$127.2 0.9 $162.0 2.7% 9.9% 0.1% 12.7% 4.3%

Organic net sales in 2011 into the North American wholesale market increased by $26.6 million or

4.3% compared to 2010 This increase was primarily due to improved recovery of commodity costs

across our four principal product lines with larger increases in residential and commercial products

sales of approximately $16.0 million and in drains and water re-use products of approximately

$5.7 million Organic sales into the North American DIY market in 2011 decreased $4.4 million or

2.6% compared to 2010 primarily due to decreased product sales approximating $4.3 million mostly in

residential and commercial products

Organic net sales increased in the European wholesale market by $2.8 million or 1.0% compared

to 2010 Wholesale sales increased marginally due to stronger sales in drains and pre-insulated pipe

products along with increased sales into Eastern Europe and from geographic expansion into the

Middle East Increases were offset partially by lower unit sales into southern Europe especially the

Italian marketplace Organic sales into the European OEM market in 2011 increased by $9.2 million

or 4.9% compared to 2010 primarily due to increased sales in hydronic under-floor manifold packages

Year Ended

December 31 2011

Net Sales Sales

North America 819.4 57.0%

Europe 595.5 41.5

Asia 21.7 1.5

Total $1436.6 100.0%

Change

33.9

127.2

0.9

$162.0

Change As

of Consolidated Net Sales

Organic $22.2

Foreign exchange 3.1

Acquisitions 8.6

Total $33.9

Change As

of Segment Net Sales

.9%8.7%
5.1 4.3

20.2 8.7

27.2% 4.3%
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offset by lower sales in heat pump and solar packages which had been driven by renewable energy
subsidies which either were reduced or had expired

The net increase in sales due to foreign exchange was primarily due to the appreciation of the

euro and the Canadian dollar against the U.S dollar We cannot predict whether these currencies will

continue to appreciate or depreciate against the U.S dollar in future periods or whether future foreign

exchange rate fluctuations will have positive or negative impact on our net sales

Acquired net sales in Europe related to the Soda and Austroflex Rohr-Isoliersysteme GmbH
Austroflex acquisitions and in North America was due to Soda and Blue Ridge Atlantic

Enterprises Inc BRAE acquisitions

Gross Profit Gross profit and gross profit as percent of net sales gross margin for 2011 and

2010 were as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2011 2010

Dollars in millions

Gross profit $515.5 $464.9

Gross margin 35.9% 36.5%

Gross margin decreased 0.6 percentage points in 2011 compared to 2010 for variety of reasons

First we were unable to completely recover commodity cost increases in Europe and in the North

American DIY market Second we incurred acquisition accounting adjustments of $4.7 million in

connection with the Soda acquisition Third we experienced inefficiencies in the first half of 2011 as

our French plant consolidation project was being completed Fourth productivity initiatives were offset

to some extent by higher inbound freight costs

Selling General and Administrative Expenses Selling general and administrative expenses or

SGA expenses for 2011 increased $43.2 million or 12.8% compared to 2010 The increase in SGA
expenses was attributable to the following

in millions Change

Organic 8.4 2.5%

Foreign exchange 6.5 1.9

Acquisitions 28.3 8.4

Total $412 12.8%

The organic increase in SGA expenses was primarily due to separation costs of our former CEO
of $6.3 million an increase of approximately $4.4 million in variable selling costs due to the increase in

year-over-year sales and an increase in IT costs of approximately $3.0 million due primarily to the

implementation of new enterprise resource planning system ERP system and other licensing costs

offset by approximately $7.0 million in lower legal costs The increase in SGA expenses from foreign

exchange was primarily due to the appreciation of the euro against the U.S dollar Acquired SGA
costs related to the Soda Austroflex and BRAE acquisitions Total SGA expenses as percentage of

sales remained constant at 26.4% in both 2011 and 2010

Restructuring and Other Charges In 2011 we recorded net charge of $8.8 million primarily for

severance and other costs incurred as part of our previously announced restructuring programs as

compared to $12.6 million for 2010 For more detailed description of our current restructuring plans

see Notes and of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment Charges In 2011 we recorded asset impairment

charges of $17.4 million including $14.8 million for impairment charges on long-lived assets at

Austroflex $1.4 million in goodwill and long-lived intangible asset impairments at BRAE and
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$1.2 million of impairment charges in certain European trade names The long-lived asset and goodwill

impairments were based on historical results being below our expectations uncertain economic

conditions in Europe related to Austroflex and reduction in the expected future cash flows to be

generated by these entities In 2010 the impairment charges of $1.4 million relate to write-downs of

certain trade names in Europe See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding these impairments

Gain on Disposal of Business In 2011 we recorded net gain of approximately $7.7 million

relating primarily to the recognition of
currency translation adjustments resulting from the sale of

TWVC

Operating Income Operating income by geographic segment for 2011 and 2010 was as follows

Change to

____________________________ Consolidated

Operating
Income

4.9%

13.1
12.2 11.1

35.8
_____ _____

0.4

$117.1 2.5%

The change in operating income was attributable to the following

Change as of

Consolidated Operating Income

_______ ______
Europe Asia Corp

Dollars in millions

Organic 5.4% 3.8% 0.4% 0.4% 1.7%

Foreign

exchange 0.7 2.6 0.2 3.5 0.6 2.3 0.2

Acquisitions 0.1 2.9 0.2 2.8 0.1 2.5 0.2
Restructuring

impairment

charges and

other

Total

The decrease in consolidated organic operating income was due primarily to reduction in gross

margins and an increase in SGA expenses for reasons discussed above Acquired operating income

relates to the Soda Austroflex and BRAE acquisitions

The net increase in operating income from foreign exchange was primarily due to the appreciation

of the euro and Canadian dollar against the U.S dollar We cannot predict whether these currencies

will appreciate or depreciate against the U.S dollar in future periods or whether future foreign

exchange rate fluctuations will have positive or negative impact on our operating income

Interest Expense Interest expense increased $3.0 million or 13.2% in 2011 compared to 2010

primarily due to an increase in the amounts outstanding during the year on our revolving credit facility

that was used to partially finance the Soda acquisition and interest incurred for all 2011 from the June

2010 issuance of $75.0 million of senior notes See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding financing

arrangements

Othe net Other net increased $2.9 million in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily because foreign

currency transactions resulted in net losses in 2011 while in 2010 net gains were recognized

Year Ended

North America

Europe

Asia

Corporate

Total

December 31 December 31
2011 2010 Change

Dollars in millions

$112.0 $106.4 5.6

28.7 43.7 15.0

0.5 12.7

_____ 35.4 0.4

$114.2 2.9

North North

America Europe Asia Corp Total America

$1.8 6.2 4.4 $0.4 $0.4 1.6%

Change as of

Segment Operating Income

North

Total America Europe Asia Corp

14.2% 880.0% 1.1%

3.1 0.7 6.0 40.0

2.4 0.1 6.6 40.0

3.0 14.3 8.3 3.0 2.6 12.5 7.3 2.6 2.8

$5.6 $15.0 $12.7 $0.4 2.9 4.9% 13.1% 11.1% 0.4% 2.5% 5.3%

32.7 1660.0

34.3% 2540.0% 1.1%
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Income Taxes Our effective rate for continuing operations decreased to 29.3% in 2011 from

33.2% in 2010 The primary cause of the decrease was due to the tax benefit realized in connection

with the disposition of our TWVC facility in China

Net Income From Continuing Operation Net income from continuing operations for 2011 was

$64.7 million or $1.73 per common share compared to $63.1 million or $1.69 per common share for

2010 Results for 2011 include an after-tax charge of $6.6 million or $0.18 per common share for

restructuring and other charges compared to an after-tax restructuring and other charge of

$11.2 million or $0.29 per common share for 2010 Additionally 2011 results include an after-tax

charge of $3.9 million or $0.11 per common share related to our former Chief Executive Officers

separation agreement Results for 2011 include an after-tax charge of $13.0 million or $0.35 per

common share for goodwill and asset impairment charges compared to an after-tax asset impairment

charge of $1.2 million or $0.03 per common share for 2010 Results for 2011 include an after-tax gain

related to the sale of TWVC of $11.4 million or $0.30 per common share The appreciation of the

euro and Canadian dollar against the U.S dollar in 2011 resulted in positive impact on our

operations of $0.07 per common share for 2011 compared to 2010 We cannot predict whether the

euro Canadian dollar or Chinese yuan will appreciate or depreciate against the U.S dollar in future

periods or whether future foreign exchange rate fluctuations will have positive or negative impact on

our net income

Income Loss From Discontinued Operations Income from discontinued operations in 2011 was

primarily attributable to reserve adjustment of $1.7 million or $0.05 per common share related to

the FCPA investigation originally recorded in 2010 The adjustment reflects the final disposition of the

FCPA investigation See Notes and 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

discussion of this matter

Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2009

Net Sales Our net sales in each of these segments for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 were as follows

Year Ended Year Ended
Ch

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 Conad
Net Sales Sales Net Sales Sales Change Net Sales

Dollars in millions

North America 785.5 61.6% 738.5 60.2% $47.0 3.8%

Europe 468.3 36.8 466.5 38.1 1.8 0.2

Asia 20.8 1.6 20.9 1.7 0.1

Total $1274.6 100.0% $1225.9 100.0% $48.7 4.0%

The change in net sales was attributable to the following

Change As of Change As of

Consolidated Net Sales Segment Net Sales

North North North

America Europe Asia Total America Europe Asia Total America Europe Asia

Dollars in millions

Organic $38.8 $11.7 $0.2 50.3 3.2% 1.0% 4.2% 5.3% 2.5% 1.0%
Foreign exchange 7.0 20.5 0.1 13.4 0.6 1.7 1.1 0.9 4.4 0.5

Acquisitions 1.2 10.6 11.8 0.9 0.9 0.2 2.3

Total $47.0 1.8 $0.1 48.7 3.8% 0.2% 4.0% 6.4% 0.4% 0.5%

Organic net sales in 2010 into the North American wholesale market increased by $34.6 million or

6.1% compared to 2009 This increase was primarily due to increased unit sales of our plumbing and

heating and backflow product lines Organic sales into the North American DIY market in 2010
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increased $4.2 million or 2.5% compared to 2009 primarily from increased product sales volume

associated with repair and remodeling activity and new product introductions

Organic net sales increased in the European wholesale market by $12.9 million or 5.3% compared

to 2009 This increase was primarily due to stronger repair and remodeling market strong sales in

our drain product line and higher sales into Eastern Europe Organic sales into the European OEM
market in 2010 were essentially flat with 2009 primarily due to increased sales in hydronic under-floor

manifold packages offset by heat pump and solar packages whose lower sales were driven by renewable

energy subsidies which had expired Organic sales into the European DIY market in 2010 increased

$1.5 million or 6.4% compared to 2009 primarily from initial new store sales to major retail

customer

The net decrease in sales due to foreign exchange was primarily due to the depreciation of the

euro partially offset by the appreciation of the Canadian dollar against the U.S dollar

Acquired net sales growth in Europe and North America was due to the inclusion of Austroflex

and BRAE respectively

Gross Profit Gross profit and gross margin for 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2010 2009

Dollars in millions

Gross profit $464.9 $435.1

Gross margin 36.5% 35.5%

Gross margin increased 1.0 percentage point in 2010 compared to 2009 North Americas gross

margin improvement was primarily attributable to increased sales volumes better absorption at the

factories and productivity gains from our Lean and Six Sigma cost savings initiatives partially offset by

increased raw materials costs and inefficiencies due to the relocation of manufacturing operations

related to our restructuring program in the U.S Europes gross margin remained relatively flat as

result of better product mix with the discontinuance of various low-margin products increased sales

volumes and better absorption at the factories was offset by increased commodity costs and

inefficiencies from our restructuring program in France

Selling General and Administrative Expenses SGA expenses for 2010 increased $13.2 million or

4.1% compared to 2009 The increase in SGA expenses was attributable to the following

in millions Change

Organic $12.4 3.8%

Foreign exchange 3.3 1.0

Acquisitions 4.1 1.3

Total $132 4J%

The organic increase in SGA expenses was primarily due to legal due diligence and other

acquisition costs of $8.1 million increased personnel-related costs of $4.4 million and increased variable

selling expenses due to higher sales volumes of $3.4 million partially offset by reduced product liability

costs of $3.5 million Legal costs were higher in 2010 as result of legal settlement we entered into

in 2009 pursuant to which we received $4.1 million which reduced legal expense The decrease in

SGA expenses from foreign exchange was primarily due to the depreciation of the euro against the

U.S dollar Total SGA expenses as percentage of sales remained constant at 26.4% in each of

2010 and 2009

Restructuring and Other Charges In 2010 we recorded charge of $12.6 million primarily for

severance and other costs incurred as part of our previously announced restructuring programs as
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compared to $17.2 million for 2009 Included in the 2009 restructuring and other charges was $1.1

million gain from the 2008 disposition of Tianjin Tanggu Watts Valve Co Ltd TWT The gain was

deferred until all legal and regulatory matters relating to the sale of TWT were resolved For more

detailed description of our current restructuring plans see Notes and of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment Charges We recorded $1.4 million and $3.3

million in 2010 and 2009 respectively for intangible impairment charges related to certain trademarks

and technology See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K for additional information regarding these impairments

Operating Income Operating income by geographic segment for 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Years Ended

December 31 December 31
2010 2009 Change

___________
Dollars in millions

North America 78.6 $27.8

Europe 51.0 7.3
Asia 6.6 6.1

Corporate
______

30.8 4.6

92.2 $22.0

The change in operating income was attributable to the following

North

America Europe

Organic $24.7

Foreign exchange 1.4

Acquisitions 0.6

Restructuring

impairment

charges and

other 2.3

Total $27.8

The increase in consolidated organic operating income was due primarily to increased unit volume

sales and stronger gross margins partially offset by increased SGA expenses The North America

margin increase was primarily due to increased sales volumes better factory absorption levels and the

impact of cost savings initiatives In 2009 our corporate segment recorded the recovery of past legal

expenses which did not recur in 2010

The net decrease in operating income from foreign exchange was primarily due to the depreciation

of the euro against the U.S dollar partially offset by the appreciation of the Canadian dollar against

the U.S dollar

Interest Expense Interest expense increased $0.8 million or 3.6% in 2010 compared to 2009

primarily due to the issuance of $75.0 million of senior notes and higher facility fees on our revolving

credit agreement partially offset by the payment of $50.0 million of outstanding notes See Note 10 of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional

information regarding financing arrangements

Total

$106.4

43.7

0.5

35.4

$114.2

Change to

Consolidated

Operating
Income

30.2%

7.9
6.6

5.0

23.9%

Change as of

Consolidated Operating Income
Change as of

Segment Operating tncome

North North

Asia Corp Total America Europe Asia Corp Total America Europe Asia Corp

Dollars in millions

0.5 $0.7 $4.8 $19.7 26.8% 0.5% 0.7%5.2% 21.4% 31.4% 1.0% I0.6% 15.6%

2.6 1.2 1.5 2.8 1.3 1.8 5.1

1.4 2.0 0.7 1.5 2.2 0.7 2.7

3.8 6.8 0.2 5.5 2.6 4.1 7.3 0.2 6.0 2.9 7.5 103.0 0.7

$7.3 6.1 $4.6 $22.0 30.2% 7.9% 6.6% 5.0% 23.9% 35.4% 14.3% 92.4% 14.9%
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Othe net Other net increased $0.9 million or 75.0% in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily

because foreign currency transactions resulted in net gains in 2010 while in 2009 net losses were

recognized

Income Taxes Our effective tax rate for continuing operations decreased to 33.2% in 2010 from

43.3% in 2009 The decrease was primarily due to reversal of valuation allowance in Europe recorded

during 2010 Also in 2009 we had significant write-down of assets at one of our China facilities on

which we derived no tax benefit Additionally we recorded the reversal of previously recognized tax

benefits in China in 2009 These China-related items did not recur in 2010 This favorable impact was

partially offset by higher European taxes due to mix of income by country and recognition of tax

expense for the repatriation of earnings of TWVC in China upon our decision to dispose of the entity

Net Income From Continuing Operations Net income from continuing operations for 2010 was

$63.1 million or $1.69 per common share compared to $41.0 million or $1.10 per common share for

2009 Results for 2010 include an after-tax charge of $11.2 million or $0.29 per common share for

restructuring and other charges related primarily to severance and accelerated depreciation compared

to an after-tax restructuring and other charge of $18.1 million or $0.49 per common share for 2009

The release of the valuation allowance on net operating losses in Europe as noted above contributed

tax benefit of $0.08 per common share to 2010 Results for 2010 and 2009 included non-cash net

after-tax charge of $0.9 million or $0.03 per share and $2.6 million or $0.07 per share respectively to

write off certain intangible assets The depreciation of the euro partially offset by the appreciation of

Canadian dollar against the U.S dollar resulted in negative impact on our operations of $0.04 per

common share for 2010 compared to the comparable period in 2009

Income Loss From Discontinued Operations The loss from discontinued operations in 2010 was

primarily attributable to estimated profits disgorgement and legal costs related to the FCPA

investigation of our former subsidiary in China The loss from discontinued operations in 2009 was

primarily attributable to the deconsolidation of TEAM and the loss on the disposal and loss from

operations of CWV offset by the resolution of the James Jones Litigation as described in Note of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Liquidity and Capital Resources

2011 Cash Flows

In 2011 we generated $128.2 million of cash from operating activities as compared to $113.4

million in 2010 We generated approximately $106.3 million of free cash flow non-GAAP financial

measure which we reconcile below defined as net cash provided by continuing operating activities

minus capital expenditures plus proceeds from sale of assets compared to free cash flow of $91.0

million in 2010 Free cash flow as percentage of net income from continuing operations was 164.3%

in 2011 as compared to 144.2% in 2010

In 2011 we used $188.3 million of net cash from investing activities primarily for the purchase of

Soda and for capital equipment We anticipate investing approximately $36.0 million in capital

equipment in 2012 to improve our manufacturing capabilities

In 2011 we used $23.9 million of net cash from financing activities Borrowings and repayments

primarily related to funds borrowed under our credit agreement for the purchase of Soda and then

partially repaid Other cash outflows included $27.2 million used to repurchase one million shares of

Class common stock during 2011 and for $16.3 million of dividend payments

On June 18 2010 we entered into credit agreement the Credit Agreement among the

Company certain subsidiaries of the Company who become borrowers under the Credit Agreement

Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent swing line lender and letter of credit issuer and the

other lenders referred to therein The Credit Agreement provides for $300 million five-year senior

unsecured revolving credit facility which may be increased by an additional $150 million under certain
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circumstances and subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement has sublimit

of up to $75 million in letters of credit

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreement bear interest at fluctuating rate per annum

equal to in the case of Eurocurrency rate loans the British Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus

an applicable percentage ranging from 1.70% to 2.30% determined by reference to our consolidated

leverage ratio plus in the case of certain lenders mandatory cost calculated in accordance with the

terms of the Credit Agreement or ii in the case of base rate loans and swing line loans the highest

of the federal funds rate plus 0.5% the rate of interest in effect for such day as announced by

Bank of America N.A as its prime rate and the British Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus

1.0% plus an applicable percentage ranging from 0.70% to 1.30% determined by reference to our

consolidated leverage ratio In addition to paying interest under the Credit Agreement we are also

required to pay certain fees in connection with the credit facility including but not limited to facility

fee and letter of credit fees

The Credit Agreement matures on June 18 2015 We may repay loans outstanding under the

Credit Agreement from time to time without premium or penalty other than customary breakage costs

if any and subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement

As of December 31 2011 we held $250.6 million in cash and cash equivalents Our ability to fund

operations from this balance could be limited by the liquidity in the market as well as possible tax

implications of moving proceeds across jurisdictions Of this amount approximately $99.3 million of

cash and cash equivalents were held by foreign subsidiaries Our U.S operations currently generate

sufficient cash flows to meet our domestic obligations We also have the ability to borrow funds at

reasonable interest rates utilize the committed funds under our Credit Agreement or recall

intercompany loans However if amounts held by foreign subsidiaries were needed to fund operations

in the United States we could be required to accrue and pay taxes to repatriate these funds Such

charges may include federal tax of up to 35.0% on dividends received in the U.S potential state

income taxes and an additional withholding tax payable to foreign jurisdictions of up to 10.0%

However our intent is to permanently reinvest undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and we do

not have any current plans to repatriate them to fund operations in the United States

Covenant compliance

Under the Credit Agreement we are required to satisfy and maintain specified financial ratios and

other financial condition tests The financial ratios include consolidated interest coverage ratio based

on consolidated earnings before income taxes interest expense depreciation and amortization

Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense as defined in the Credit Agreement Our

Credit Agreement defines Consolidated EBITDA to exclude unusual or non-recurring charges and

gains We are also required to maintain consolidated leverage ratio of consolidated funded debt to

Consolidated EBITDA Consolidated funded debt as defined in the Credit Agreement includes all

long and short-term debt capital lease obligations and any trade letters of credit that are outstanding

Finally we are required to maintain consolidated net worth that exceeds minimum net worth

calculation Consolidated net worth is defined as the total stockholders equity as reported adjusted for

any cumulative translation adjustments and goodwill impairments
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As of December 31 2011 our actual financial ratios calculated in accordance with our Credit

Agreement compared to the required levels under the Credit Agreement were as follows

Actual Ratio Required Level

Minimum level

Interest Charge Coverage Ratio 7.13 to 1.00 3.50 to 1.00

Maximum level

Leverage Ratio 1.06 to 1.00 3.25 to 1.00

Minimum level

Consolidated Net Worth $940.8 million $750.0 million

As of December 31 2011 our actual financial ratio calculated in accordance with our senior note

agreements compared to the required ratios therein was as follows

Actual Ratio Required Level

Minimum level

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 5.47 to 1.00 2.00 to 1.00

In addition to the above financial ratios the Credit Agreement and senior note agreements contain

affirmative and negative covenants that include limitations on disposition or sale of assets prohibitions

on assuming or incurring any liens on assets with limited exceptions and limitations on making

investments other than those permitted by the agreements

We have several note agreements as further detailed in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements These note agreements require us to maintain fixed charge coverage ratio of

consolidated EBITDA plus consolidated rent expense during the period to consolidated fixed charges

Consolidated fixed charges are the sum of consolidated interest expense for the period and

consolidated rent expense

As of December 31 2011 we were in compliance with all covenants related to the Credit

Agreement and had $252.4 million of unused and available credit under the Credit Agreement and

$34.6 million of stand-by letters of credit outstanding on the Credit Agreement and $13.0 million in

euro based borrowings under the Credit Agreement at December 31 2011

We used $1.9 million of net cash from operating activities of discontinued operations in 2011

primarily to settle the FCPA investigation

Working capital defined as current assets less current liabilities as December 31 2011 was $531.0

million compared to $578.4 million as of December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily due to cash

used to fund the Soda acquisition offset partially by increases in accounts receivable and inventories

The ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 2.9 to as of December 31 2011 compared to 3.1

to as of December 31 2010

2010 Cash Flows

In 2010 we generated $113.4 million of cash from operating activities as compared to $204.6

million in 2009 We generated approximately $91.0 million of free cash flow compared to free cash

flow of $181.2 million in 2009 Free cash flow as percentage of net income from continuing

operations was 144.2% in 2010 as compared to 442.0% in 2009 The 2009 free cash flow results were

affected by the reduction of investment in accounts receivable and inventory driven by the worldwide

recession

In 2010 we used $57.2 million of net cash from investing activities primarily for the purchase of

Austroflex and for capital equipment We elected to participate
in settlement offer from UBS AG
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UBS for all of our outstanding auction rate securities ARS investments Under the terms of the

settlement offer we were issued rights by UBS entitling the holder to require UBS to purchase the

underlying ARS at par value during the period from June 30 2010 through July 2012 We elected to

exercise this right in 2010 and received $6.5 million from UBS in settlement of all outstanding ARS
investments In addition during 2010 we invested in nine-month certificates of deposits totaling

approximately $4.0 million

In 2010 we generated $6.9 million of net cash from financing activities
primarily from issuing $75.0

million 10-year private placement notes in June the Notes partially offset by the repayment of $50.0

million in private placement notes and $16.4 million of dividend payments

The Notes were issued pursuant to Note Purchase Agreement the 2010 Note Purchase

Agreement We will pay interest on the outstanding balance of the Notes at the rate of 5.05% per

annum payable semi-annually on June 18 and December 18 until the principal on the Notes shall

become due and payable We may at our option upon notice subject to the terms of the 2010 Note

Purchase Agreement prepay at any time all or part of the Notes in an amount not less than $1 million

by paying the principal amount plus make-whole amount as defined in the 2010 Note Purchase

Agreement

The 2010 Note Purchase Agreement includes operational and financial covenants with which we
are required to comply including among others maintenance of certain financial ratios and restrictions

on additional indebtedness liens and dispositions Events of defaults under the 2010 Note Purchase

Agreement include failure to comply with the financial and operational covenants as well as

bankruptcy and other insolvency events If an event of default occurs and is continuing then majority

of the note holders have the right to accelerate and require us to repay all the outstanding notes under

the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement In limited circumstances such acceleration is automatic As of

December 31 2010 we were in compliance with all covenants related to the 2010 Note Purchase

Agreement

2009 Cash Flows

In 2009 we generated $204.6 million of cash from operating activities as compared to

$145.0 million in 2008 We generated approximately $181.2 million of free cash flow which compares

favorably to free cash flow of $119.9 million in 2008 Free cash flow as percentage of net income

from continuing operations was 442.0% in 2009 as compared to 265.3% in 2008 primarily due to better

working capital management temporary decreases in commodity costs cost containment measures and

careful monitoring of our capital spending

In 2009 we used $21.3 million of net cash from investing activities primarily for purchases of

capital equipment We received proceeds of $1.7 million from the sale of auction rate securities We
received $1.1 million of cash for purchase price settlement related to prior-year acquisition We
paid $0.4 million for earn-out payments related to an acquisition from prior years

As of December 31 2009 we held $5.4 million in investments in ARS with total par value of

$6.6 million These auction rate securities were all long-term debt obligations secured by municipal
bonds and student loans During the fourth quarter of 2008 we elected to participate in settlement

offer by UBS We exercised our rights under the settlement in June 2010

We used $77.2 million of net cash from financing activities during 2009 This was primarily due to

payments of debt and dividend payments

We used $21.2 million of net cash from operating activities of discontinued operations in 2009

primarily due to the settlement of $15.3 million related to the James Jones litigation In addition

separate from the settlement we paid our outside counsel an additional $5.0 million for services

rendered in connection with the litigation

We used $0.3 million of net cash from investing activities of discontinued operations in 2009

primarily due to purchasing capital equipment
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We believe free cash flow to be an appropriate supplemental measure of our operating

performance because it provides investors with measure of our ability to generate cash to repay debt

and to fund acquisitions Other companies may define free cash flow differently Free cash flow does

not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP Therefore it should

not be considered an alternative to net cash provided by operations as an indication of our

performance Free cash flow should also not be considered an alternative to net cash provided by

operations as defined by GAAP The cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net income from

continuing operations is also measure of our performance in cash flow generation

reconciliation of net cash provided by continuing operations to free cash flow and calculation of

our cash conversion rate is provided below

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Net cash provided by continuing operations $128.2 $113.4 $204.6

Less additions to property plant and equipment 22.7 24.6 24.2

Plus proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment 0.8 2.2 0.8

Free cash flow $106.3 91.0 $181.2

Net income from continuing operationsas reported 64.7 63.1 41.0

Cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net income from continuing

operations 164.3% 144.2% 442.0%

Our net debt to capitalization ratio non-GAAP financial measure used by management
increased to 13.9% for 2011 from 5.2% for 2010 The increase resulted from cash used for and debt

incurred as part of the Soda acquisition Management believes it to be an appropriate supplemental

measure because it helps investors understand our ability to meet our financing needs and as basis to

evaluate our financial structure Our computation may not be comparable to other companies that may
define net debt to capitalization differently

reconciliation of long-term debt including current portion to net debt and our net debt to

capitalization ratio is provided below

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Current portion of long-term debt 2.0 0.7

Plus long-term debt net of current portion 397.4 378.0

Less cash and cash equivalents 250.6 329.2

Net debt 148.8 49.5

reconciliation of capitalization is provided below

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Net debt 148.8 49.5

Total stockholders equity 919.8 901.5

Capitalization $1068.6 $951.0

Net debt to capitalization ratio 13.9% 5.2%
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Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of December 31 2011 are presented in the following table

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

in millions

Long-term debt obligations including current

maturitiesa $399.4 2.0 79.3 $243.1 75.0

Operating lease obligations 30.6 9.3 13.3 4.8 3.2

Capital lease obligationsa 10.2 1.1 2.2 2.2 4.7

Pension contributions 15.0 1.0 2.0 2.2 9.8

Interestb 104.6 23.0 38.0 28.1 15.5

Earnout paymentsa 1.1 1.1

Otherc 51.2 41 6.9 2.7 0.6

Total $612.1 $77.4 $141.7 $284.2 $108.8

as recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

assumes the balance on the revolving credit facility remains at $13.0 million and the interest rate

remains at approximately 3.0% for the presented periods

includes commodity and capital commitments acquisition of tekmar CEO separation costs and

other benefits at December 31 2011

We maintain letters of credit that guarantee our performance or payment to third parties in

accordance with specified terms and conditions Amounts outstanding were approximately $34.9 million

as of December 31 2011 and 2010 Our letters of credit are primarily associated with insurance

coverage and to lesser extent foreign purchases and generally expire within one year
of issuance

These instruments may exist or expire without being drawn down therefore they do not necessarily

represent future cash flow obligations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except for operating lease commitments we have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or

are reasonably likely to have current or future effect on our financial condition changes in financial

condition revenues or expenses results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital

resources that is material to investors

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Key Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S GAAP requires

management to make judgments assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported critical

accounting estimate is an assumption about highly uncertain matters and could have material effect

on the consolidated financial statements if another also reasonable amount were used or change in

the estimate is reasonably likely from period to period We base our assumptions on historical

experience and on other estimates that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances Actual

results could differ significantly from these estimates There were no changes in our accounting policies

or significant changes in our accounting estimates during 2011 except for change in the amortization

period of pension gains and losses as discussed below under the caption Pension benefits

We periodically discuss the development selection and disclosure of the estimates with our Audit

Committee Management believes the following critical accounting policies reflect its more significant

estimates and assumptions
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Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the following criteria are met we have entered into

binding agreement the product has shipped and title has passed the sales price to the customer

is fixed or is determinable and collectability is reasonably assured We recognize revenue based

upon determination that all criteria for revenue recognition have been met which based on the

majority of our shipping terms is considered to have occurred upon shipment of the finished product

Some shipping terms require the goods to be received by the customer before title passes In those

instances revenues are not recognized until the customer has received the goods We record estimated

reductions to revenue for customer returns and allowances and for customer programs Provisions for

returns and allowances are made at the time of sale derived from historical trends and form portion

of the allowance for doubtful accounts Customer programs which are primarily
annual volume

incentive plans allow customers to earn credit for attaining agreed upon purchase targets from us We

record estimated reductions to revenue made at the time of sale for customer programs based on

estimated purchase targets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established to represent our best estimate of the net

realizable value of the outstanding accounts receivable The development of our allowance for doubtful

accounts varies by region but in general is based on review of past due amounts historical write-off

experience as well as aging trends affecting specific accounts and general operational factors affecting

all accounts In addition factors are developed in certain regions utilizing historical trends of sales and

returns and allowances and cash discount activities to derive reserve for returns and allowances and

cash discounts

We uniformly consider current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when

evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts We also aggressively monitor the

creditworthiness of our largest customers and periodically
review customer credit limits to reduce risk

If circumstances relating to specific customers change or unanticipated changes occur in the general

business environment our estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted

Inventoiy valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with costs determined primarily on first-in

first-out basis We utilize both specific product identification and historical product demand as the basis

for determining our excess or obsolete inventory reserve We identify all inventories that exceed range

of one to four years in sales This is determined by comparing the current inventory balance against

unit sales for the trailing twelve months New products added to inventory within the past twelve

months are excluded from this analysis portion of our products contain recoverable materials

therefore the excess and obsolete reserve is established net of any recoverable amounts Changes in

market conditions lower-than-expected customer demand or changes in technology or features could

result in additional obsolete inventory that is not saleable and could require additional inventory

reserve provisions

In certain countries additional inventory reserves are maintained for potential shrinkage

experienced in the manufacturing process The reserve is established based on the prior years inventory

losses adjusted for any change in the
gross inventory balance

Goodwill and other intangibles

We have made numerous acquisitions over the years which included the recognition of significant

amount of goodwill Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if an event or

circumstance indicates that an impairment loss may have been incurred Application of the goodwill

impairment test requires judgment including the identification of reporting units assignment of assets

and liabilities to reporting units and determination of the fair value of each reporting unit We
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estimate the fair value of our reporting units using an income approach based on the present value of

estimated future cash flows We believe this approach yields the most appropriate evidence of fair value

as our reporting units are not easily compared to other corporations involved in similar businesses

Intangible assets such as purchased technology are generally recorded in connection with

business
acquisition Values assigned to intangible assets are determined by an independent valuation

firm based on our estimates and judgments regarding expectations of the success and life cycle of

products and technology acquired During 2011 2010 and 2009 we recognized non-cash pre-tax charges

of approximately $1.4 million $1.4 million and $3.3 million respectively as an impairment of some of

our indefinite-lived intangible assets In addition during 2011 we recognized non-cash pretax charges

of $13.5 million as an impairment of certain amortizable intangible assets in our Europe segment

In 2011 the Company determined that the prospects for Austroflex
Rohr-Isoliersysteme GmbH

Austroflex part of our Europe segment were lower than originally estimated due to current

operating profits below forecast and tempered future growth expectations Accordingly the Company
performed fair value assessment and as result wrote down the long-lived assets by $14.8 million or

approximately 78% including customer relationships of $12.1 million trade names of $1.4 million and

property plant and equipment of $1.3 million Fair value was based on discounted cash flows using

market participant assumptions and utilized an estimated weighted average cost of capital

Revised accounting guidance issued in September 2011 allows us to review goodwill for impairment

utilizing either qualitative or quantitative analyses We have the option to first assess qualitative factors

to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to determination that it is more

likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after assessing

the totality of events and circumstances we determine it is more likely than not that the fair value of

reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount then performing the two-step quantitative

impairment test is unnecessary

We first identify those reporting units that we believe could pass qualitative assessment to

determine whether further impairment testing is necessary For each reporting unit identified our

qualitative analysis includes

review of the most recent fair value calculation to identify the extent of the cushion

between fair value and carrying amount to determine if substantial cushion existed

review of events and circumstances that have occurred since the most recent fair value

calculation to determine if those events or circumstances would have affected our previous fair

value assessment Items identified and reviewed include macroeconomic conditions industry

and market changes cost factor changes events that affect the reporting unit financial

performance against expectations and the reporting units performance relative to peers

We then compile this information and make our assessment of whether it is more likely than not

that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If we determine it is not more

likely than not then no further quantitative analysis is required We determined we have eight

reporting units in
continuing operations one of which Water Quality has no goodwill In 2011 we

performed qualitative analysis for the Residential and Commercial formerly Regulator Dormont
and Asia reporting units and concluded further impairment testing was not required

The second analysis for goodwill impairment involves quantitative two-step process We

performed quantitative impairment analysis for our Drains and water re-use formerly Orion BRAE
Europe and Blflcher reporting units The first step of the impairment test requires comparison of the

fair value of each of our reporting units to the respective carrying value If the carrying value of

reporting unit is less than its fair value no indication of impairment exists and second
step is not

performed If the carrying amount of reporting unit is higher than its fair value there is an indication

that impairment may exist and second step must be performed In the second step the impairment is

computed by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill with the carrying amount
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of the goodwill If the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill is greater than the implied fair

value of its goodwill an impairment loss must be recognized for the excess and charged to operations

Inherent in our development of the present value of future cash flow projections are assumptions

and estimates derived from review of our operating results business plans expected growth rates

cost of capital and tax rates We also make certain assumptions about future economic conditions and

other market data We develop our assumptions based on our historical results including sales growth

operating profits working capital levels and tax rates

We believe that the discounted cash flow model is sensitive to the selected discount rate We use

third-party valuation specialists to help develop appropriate
discount rates for each reporting unit We

use standard valuation practices to arrive at weighted average cost of capital based on the market and

guideline public companies The higher the discount rate the lower the discounted cash flows While

we believe that our estimates of future cash flows are reasonable different assumptions could

significantly affect our valuations and result in impairments in the future

During the fourth quarter of 2011 we recognized apre-tax non-cash goodwill impairment charge of

$1.2 million related to our BRAE reporting unit within our North America segment

As of our October 30 2011 testing date we had approximately $513.7 million of goodwill on our

balance sheet Our impairment testing indicated that the fair values of the reporting units except for

BRAE exceeded the carrying values thereby resulting in no impairment The results of this

impairment analysis are summarized in the table below

Book value of equity Estimated fair value

Goodwill balance at of reporting unit at implied value of equity

October 30 2011 October 30 2011 at October 30 2011

in millions

Reporting unit

Europe $223.0 $427.2 $464.3

Blücher 81.8 157.9 186.7

Drains water re-use 34.6 57.6 106.7

BRAE 2.6 2.4 1.2

The underlying analyses supporting our fair value assessment related to our outlook of the

business long-term performance which included key assumptions as to the appropriate discount rate

and long-term growth rate In connection with our October 30 2011 impairment test we utilized

discount rates ranging from 12.5% to 28.5% growth rates beyond our planning periods ranging from

3% to 7% and long-term terminal growth rates from 3% to 4%

Operating results for our Europe segment have been hindered by the downturn in the economic

environment in Europe Should Europes sales decline because the European marketplace deteriorates

beyond our current expectations then the reporting units goodwill may be at risk for impairment in

the future Europes goodwill balance as of December 31 2011 was $210.5 million As of October 30

2011 our last impairment analysis date the fair value of Europes reporting unit exceeded the carrying

value by 9%

The Blücher reporting units operating results have also been hindered by the downturn in the

economic environment in Europe Should Blüchers sales decline because the European marketplace

deteriorates beyond our current expectations then the reporting units goodwill may be at risk for

impairment in the future Blüchers goodwill balance as of December 31 2011 was $74.8 million As of

October 30 2011 our last impairment analysis date the fair value of Blüchers reporting unit exceeded

the carrying value by 18%

Product liability and workers compensation costs

Because of retention requirements associated with our insurance policies we are generally

self-insured for potential product liability claims and for workers compensation costs associated with
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workplace accidents We are subject to variety of potential liabilities in connection with product

liability cases and we maintain product liability and other insurance coverage which we believe to be

generally in accordance with industry practices For product liability cases in the U.S management
establishes its product liability accrual by utilizing third party actuarial valuations which incorporates

historical trend factors and our specific claims experience derived from loss reports provided by third-

party administrators In other countries we maintain insurance coverage with relatively high deductible

payments as product liability claims tend to be smaller than those experienced in the U.S Changes in

the nature of claims or the actual settlement amounts could affect the adequacy of this estimate and

require changes to the provisions Because the liability is an estimate the ultimate liability may be

more or less than reported

Workers compensation liabilities in the U.S are recognized for claims incurred including claims

incurred but not reported and for changes in the status of individual case reserves At the time

workers compensation claim is filed liability is estimated to settle the claim The liability for

workers compensation claims is determined based on managements estimates of the nature and

severity of the claims and based on analysis provided by third-party administrators and by various state

statutes and reserve requirements We have developed our own trend factors based on our specific

claims experience discounted based on risk-free interest rates We employ third party actuarial

valuations to help us estimate our workers compensation accrual In other countries where workers

compensation costs are applicable we maintain insurance coverage with limited deductible payments

Because the liability is an estimate the ultimate liability may be more or less than reported and is

subject to changes in discount rates

We determine the trend factors for product liability and workers compensation liabilities based on

consultation with outside actuaries

We maintain excess liability insurance with outside insurance carriers to minimize our risks related

to catastrophic claims in excess of all self-insured positions Any material change in the aforementioned

factors could have an adverse impact on our operating results

Legal contingencies

We are defendant in numerous legal matters including those involving environmental law and

product liability as discussed in more detail in Part Item BusinessProduct Liability

Environmental and Other Litigation Matters As required by GAAP we determine whether an

estimated loss from loss contingency should be accrued by assessing whether loss is deemed

probable and the loss amount can be reasonably estimated net of any applicable insurance proceeds

When it is possible to estimate reasonably possible loss or range of loss above the amount accrued that

estimate is aggregated and disclosed Estimates of potential outcomes of these contingencies are

developed in consultation with outside counsel While this assessment is based upon all available

information litigation is inherently uncertain and the actual liability to fully resolve litigation cannot be

predicted with any assurance of accuracy In the event of an unfavorable outcome in one or more legal

matters the ultimate liability may be in excess of amounts currently accrued if any and may be

material to our operating results or cash flows for particular quarterly or annual period However

based on information currently known to us management believes that the ultimate outcome of all

legal contingencies as they are resolved over time is not likely to have material effect on our

financial position results of operations cash flows or liquidity

Pension benefits

We account for our pension plans in accordance with GAAP which involves recording liability or

asset based on the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets Assumptions are made
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regarding the valuation of benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets The primary

assumptions are as follows

Weighted average discount ratethis rate is used to estimate the current value of future

benefits This rate is adjusted based on movement in long-term interest rates

Expected long-term rate of return on assetsthis rate is used to estimate future growth in

investments and investment earnings The expected return is based upon combination of

historical market performance and anticipated future returns for portfolio reflecting the mix of

equity debt and other investments indicative of our plan assets

Rates of increase in compensation levelsthis rate is used to estimate projected annual pay

increases which are used to determine the wage base used to project employees pension

benefits at retirement

We determine these assumptions based on consultation with outside actuaries and investment

advisors Any variance in these assumptions could have significant impact on future recognized

pension costs assets and liabilities

On October 31 2011 our Board of Directors voted to cease accruals effective December 31 2011

under both the Pension Plan and Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan We recorded curtailment

charge of approximately $1.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2011 in connection with this action

Effective November 2011 we began amortizing the unamortized gains and losses over the remaining

life expectancy of the participants instead of our former policy of average remaining service period

Income taxes

We estimate and use our expected annual effective income tax rates to accrue income taxes

Effective tax rates are determined based on budgeted earnings before taxes including our best estimate

of permanent items that will affect the effective rate for the year Management periodically reviews

these rates with outside tax advisors and changes are made if material variances from expectations are

identified

We recognize deferred taxes for the expected future consequences of events that have been

reflected in the consolidated financial statements Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined

based on differences between the book values and tax bases of particular assets and liabilities using tax

rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance is

provided to offset any net deferred tax assets if based upon the available evidence it is more likely

than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized We consider estimated future

taxable income and ongoing prudent tax planning strategies in assessing the need for valuation

allowance

New Accounting Standards

In June 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards

Update ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income This ASU intends to enhance comparability and

transparency
of other comprehensive income components The guidance provides an option to present

total comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other

comprehensive income in single continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements

This ASU eliminates the option to present other comprehensive income components as part of the

statement of changes in stockholders equity The provisions of this ASU will be applied retrospectively

for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early application is permitted We

early adopted ASU 2011-05 effective for the year ended December 31 2011

In September 2011 accounting guidance was issued by FASB in Accounting Standards Codification

ASC Topic 350 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other This guidance amends the requirements for

goodwill impairment testing The Company has the option to first assess qualitative factors to

determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to determination that it is more

likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after assessing

the totality of events or circumstances the Company determines it is more likely than not that the fair

value of reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount then performing the two-step impairment

test is unnecessary We early adopted this standard for the year ended December 31 2011
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Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We use derivative financial instruments primarily to reduce exposure to adverse fluctuations in

foreign exchange rates interest rates and costs of certain raw materials used in the manufacturing

process We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes As matter of

policy all derivative positions are used to reduce risk by hedging underlying economic exposure The

derivatives we use are instruments with liquid markets See Note 15 of Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2011

Our consolidated earnings which are reported in United States dollars are subject to translation

risks due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates This risk is concentrated in the exchange rate

between the U.S dollar and the euro the U.S dollar and the Canadian dollar and the U.S dollar and

the Chinese yuan

Our foreign subsidiaries transact most business including certain intercompany transactions in

foreign currencies Such transactions are principally purchases or sales of materials and are

denominated in European currencies or the U.S or Canadian dollar We use foreign currency
forward

exchange contracts to manage the risk related to intercompany purchases that occur during the course

of
year

and certain open foreign currency denominated commitments to sell products to third parties

For 2011 we recorded $0.6 million gain in other income associated with the change in the fair value

of such contracts

We have historically had low exposure on the cost of our debt to changes in interest rates

Information about our long-term debt including principal amounts and related interest rates appears in

Note 11 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the
year

ended December 31 2011

We purchase significant amounts of bronze ingot brass rod cast iron steel and plastic which are

utilized in manufacturing our many product lines Our operating results can be adversely affected by

changes in commodity prices if we are unable to pass on related price increases to our customers We

manage this risk by monitoring related market prices working with our suppliers to achieve the

maximum level of stability in their costs and related pricing seeking alternative supply sources when

necessary and passing increases in commodity costs to our customers to the maximum extent possible

when they occur

Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements listed in section of Part IV Item 15 Exhibits and Financial

Statement Schedules of this annual report are incorporated herein by reference

Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

Item 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15b under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or

Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report we carried out an evaluation under

the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures In designing

and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures we recognize that any controls and procedures

no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the

desired control objectives and our management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating and

implementing possible controls and procedures The effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures is also necessarily limited by the staff and other resources available to us and the

geographic diversity of our operations Based upon that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and
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Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this report our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective in that they provide reasonable assurance that

information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and

Exchange Commissions rules and forms and are designed to ensure that information required to be

disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act are accumulated and

communicated to our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

quarter ended December 31 2011 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect our internal control over financial reporting In connection with these rules we will continue to

review and document our disclosure controls and procedures including our internal control over

financial reporting and may from time to time make changes aimed at enhancing their effectiveness

and to ensure that our systems evolve with our business
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Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 The Companys internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles The

Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer assessed the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 In

making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

Based on our assessment and those criteria management believes that the Company maintained

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011

On April 29 2011 the Company completed its acquisition of Danfoss Soda S.A.S and the related

water controls business of certain other entities controlled by Danfoss A/S in share and asset

purchase transaction collectively Soda The audited consolidated financial statements of the

Company include the results of Soda including total assets of $206 million and total revenues of

$95 million but managements assessment does not include an assessment of the internal controls over

financial reporting of Soda

The independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Companys consolidated

financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an audit report

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting That report appears immediately following

this report
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Watts Water Technologies Inc

We have audited Watts Water Technologies Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Watts Water

Technologies Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Watts Water Technologies Inc maintained in all material
respects

effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in

Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission

Watts Water Technologies Inc acquired Danfoss Soda S.A.S and the related water controls

business of certain other entities controlled by Danfoss A/S collectively Soda during 2011 and

management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of Watts Water Technologies Inc.s

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 Sodas internal control over financial

reporting associated with total assets of $206 million and total revenues of $95 million included in the

consolidated financial statements of Watts Water Technologies Inc and subsidiaries as of and for the

year ended December 31 2011 Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Watts Water

Technologies Inc also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Soda

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Watts Water Technologies Inc and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations
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comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31 2011 and our report dated February 28 2012 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those consolidated financial statements

Is KPMG LLP

Boston Massachusetts

February 28 2012

Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to the executive officers of the Company is set forth in Part Item of

this Report under the caption Executive Officers and Directors and is incorporated herein by

reference The information provided under the captions Information as to Nominees for Director

Corporate Governance and Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in our

definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 16 2012 is

incorporated herein by reference

We have adopted Code of Business Conduct applicable to all officers employees and Board

members The Code of Business Conduct is posted in the Investor Relations section of our website

wwwwattswatecom We will provide you with print copy of our Code of Business Conduct free of

charge on written request to Kenneth Lepage Secretary Watts Water Technologies Inc

815 Chestnut Street North Andover MA 01845 Any amendments to or waivers of the Code of

Business Conduct which apply to our chief executive officer chief financial officer corporate controller

or any person performing similar functions will be disclosed on our website promptly following the date

of such amendment or waiver

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information provided under the captions Director Compensation Corporate Governance

Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation Compensation Committee

Interlocks and Insider Participation and Compensation Committee Report in our definitive Proxy

Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 16 2012 is incorporated

herein by reference

The Compensation Committee Report contained in our Proxy Statement shall not be deemed

soliciting material or filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwise subject to

the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nor shall it be deemed incorporated

by reference in any filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the extent

we specifically request that such information be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporate

such information by reference into document filed under the Securities Act or Exchange Act

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the caption Principal Stockholders in our definitive Proxy

Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 16 2012 is incorporated

herein by reference

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31 2011 about the shares of Class

Common Stock that may be issued upon the exercise of stock options issued under the Companys 2004

Stock Incentive Plan 1991 Directors Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan 1996 Stock Option Plan and

2003 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and the settlement of restricted stock units granted
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under our Management Stock Purchase Plan as well as the number of shares remaining for future

issuance under our 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and Management Stock Purchase Plan

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to be available for future issuance

issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise under equity compensation
outstanding options price of outstanding options plan excluding securities

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column
Plan Category

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders 16642371 $27.67 15960822
Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security holders None None None
Total 16642371 $27.67 15960822

Represents 1271892 outstanding options under the 1991 Directors Non-Qualified Stock Option

Plan 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan 2003 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and

2004 Stock Incentive Plan and 392345 outstanding restricted stock units under the Management
Stock Purchase Plan

Includes 999610 shares available for future issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and

596472 shares available for future issuance under the Management Stock Purchase Plan

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information provided under the captions Corporate Governance and Certain Relationships

and Related Transactions in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held on May 16 2012 is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information provided under the caption Ratification of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to

be held on May 16 2012 is incorporated herein by reference
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PART 1V

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following financial statements are included in separate section of this Report commencing

on the page numbers specified below

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 52

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 53

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 54

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 55

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 56

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 57

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 58-98

Schedules

Schedule ITValuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 99

All other required schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations

of the Securities and Exchange Commission are included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits are filed as part of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES INC

By Is DAVID CoGHIkr

David Coghian

Chief Executive Officer

President and Director

DATED February 28 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title Date

Is DAVID COGHLAN Chief Executive Officer President and
February 28 2012

David Coghlan Director

Is WILLIAM MCCARTNEY Chief Financial Officer Principal
February 28 2012

William McCartney
Financial Officer

Is TIMOTHY MACPHEE Treasurer and Chief Accounting Officer
February 28 2012

Timothy MacPhee Principal Accounting Officer

/5/ RoBERT AYERS
Director February 28 2012

Robert Ayers

/5/ Buiu BRT
Director February 28 2012

Bernard Baert

/s/ KENNErr BuEs
Director February 28 2012

Kennett Burnes

/5/ RICHARD CATHcART
Director February 28 2012

Richard Cathcart
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Director

Ralph Jackson Jr
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Craig Kissel
February 28 2012
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Chairman of the Board February 28 2012

John McGillicuddy

/5/ MEIULEE RAINES
Director

Merilee Raines
February 28 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Watts Water Technologies Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Watts Water Technologies Inc

and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of

operations comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31 2011 In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial

statements we also have audited the financial statement Schedule ITValuation and Qualifying

Accounts These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An

audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of Watts Water Technologies Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in

relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Watts Water Technologies Inc.s internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO and our report dated February 28 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness

of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Boston Massachusetts

February 28 2012
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Amounts in millions except per share information

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net sales $1436.6 $1274.6 $1225.9

Cost of goods sold 921.1 809.7 790.8

GROSS PROFIT 515.5 464.9 435.1

Selling general and administrative expenses 379.9 336.7 323.5

Restructuring and other charges net 8.8 12.6 17.2

Goodwill and other long-lived asset impairment charges 17.4 1.4 3.3

Gain on disposal of businesses 7.7 1.1

OPERATING INCOME 117.1 114.2 92.2

Other income expense

Interest income 1.0 1.0 0.9

Interest expense 25.8 22.8 22.0

Other 0.8 2.1 1.2

Total other expense 25.6 19.7 19.9

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME
TAXES 91.5 94.5 72.3

Provision for income taxes 26.8 31.4 31.3

NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 64.7 63.1 41.0

Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes 1.7 4.3 23.6

NET INCOME 66.4 58.8 17.4

Basic EPS

Income loss per share

Continuing operations 1.73 1.69 1.11

Discontinued operations 0.05 0.12 0.64

NET INCOME 1.78 1.58 0.47

Weighted average number of shares 37.3 37.3 37.0

Diluted EPS

Income loss per share

Continuing operations
1.73 1.69 1.10

Discontinued operations
0.05 0.12 0.63

NET INCOME 1.78 1.57 0.47

Weighted average number of shares 37.5 37.4 37.1

Dividends per share 0.44 0.44 0.44

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Amounts in millions

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net income 66.4 58.8 $17.4

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments 16.4 26.7 26.2

Foreign currency adjustment for sale of foreign entity 8.6
Defined benefit pension plans

Net gain loss for the period 4.2 5.3 1.7

Amortization of prior service cost included in net periodic pension cost 0.2 0.2 0.2

Amortization of net losses included in net periodic pension cost 1.7 1.4 1.8

Reduction in obligation related to pension curtailment 8.6

Defined benefit pension plan 63 3.7 3.7

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 18.7 30.4 29.9

Comprehensive income 47.7 28.4 $47.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Amounts in millions except share information

December 31

2011 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 250.6 329.2

Short-term investment securities 4.1 4.0

Trade accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $9.1 million in

2011 and $8.9 million in 2010 207.1 186.9

Inventories net 284.2 265.6

Prepaid expenses and other assets 26.6 18.4

Deferred income taxes 37.4 41.1

Assets held for sale 4.6 10.0

Assets of discontinued operations 1.8

Total Current Assets 814.6 857.0

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NET 226.7 197.5

OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 490.4 428.0

Intangible assets net 154.6 152.6

Deferred income taxes 1.1 0.9

Other net 10.1 10.1

TOTAL ASSETS $1697.5 $1646.1

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 126.5 113.9

Accrued
expenses

and other liabilities 109.2 115.6

Accrued compensation and benefits 45.9 42.6

Current portion of long-term debt 2.0 0.7

Liabilities of discontinued operations 5.8

Total Current Liabilities 283.6 278.6

LONG-TERM DEBT NET OF CURRENT PORTION 397.4 378.0

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 58.2 40.1

OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 38.5 47.9

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred Stock $0.10 par value 5000000 shares authorized no shares issued or

outstanding

Class Common Stock $0.10 par value 80000000 shares authorized vote per

share issued and outstanding 29471414 shares in 2011 and 30102677 shares in

2010 2.9 3.0

Class Common Stock $0.10 par value 25000000 shares authorized 10 votes

per share issued and outstanding 6953680 shares in each of 2011 and 2010 0.7 0.7

Additional paid-in capital 420.1 405.2

Retained earnings 515.1 492.9

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 19.0 0.3

Total Stockholders Equity 919.8 901.5

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $1697.5 $1646.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Amounts in millions except share information

Accumulated
Class Class

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Common Stock

Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Loss Equity

Balance at December 31 2008 29250175 2.9 7293880 $0.7 $386.9 $451.7 0.2 $842.4

Comprehensive income 17.4 29.9 47.3

Shares of Class Common

Stock converted to Class

Common Stock 100000 100000

Shares of Class Common

Stock issued upon the

exercise of stock options 30194 0.1 0.4 0.5

Stock-based compensation 4.9 4.9

Issuance of shares of restricted

Class Common Stock 58454 0.4 0.4

Net change in restricted stock

units 67700 1.5 0.4 1.1

Common Stock dividends
_________ ________

16.2 16.2

Balance at December 31 2009 29506523 3.0 7193880 $0.7 $393.7 $452.1 30.1 $879.6

Comprehensive income loss 58.8 30.4 28.4

Shares of Class Common

Stock converted to Class

Common Stock 240200 240200
Shares of Class Common

Stock issued upon the

exercise of stock options 185470 3.4 3.4

Stock-based compensation 4.7 4.7

Issuance of net shares of

restricted Class Common

Stock 93601 0.5 0.5

Net change in restricted stock

units 76883 3.4 1.1 2.3

Common Stock dividends
_________ ________

16.4 16.4

Balance at December 31 2010 30102677 3.0 6953680 $0.7 $405.2 $492.9 0.3 $901.5

Comprehensive income loss 66.4 18.7 47.7

Shares of Class Common

Stock issued upon the

exercise of stock options 247870 5.4 5.4

Stock-based compensation 8.3 83

Stock repurchase 1000000 0.1 27.1 27.2
Issuance of net shares of

restricted Class Common

Stock 79438 0.5 0.5

Net change in restricted stock

units 41429 1.2 0.3 0.9

Common Stock dividends 163 16.3

Balance at December 31 2011 29471414 2.9 6953680 $0.7 $420.1 $515.1 $19.0 $919.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Amounts in millions

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 66.4 58.8 17.4

Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes 1.7 4.3 23.6

Net income from continuing operations 64.7 63.1 41.0

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net cash provided by

continuing operating activities

Depreciation 33.3 30.5 33.7

Amortization 18.1 14.3 13.1

Loss on disposal and impairment of goodwill property plant and equipment and other 5.2 2.6 12.1

Stock-based compensation 8.3 4.7 4.9

Deferred income tax benefit 0.6 6.9 9.4

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effects from business acquisitions and

divestures

Accounts receivable 3.5 8.2 38.3

Inventories 3.1 0.8 71.5

Prepaid expenses and other assets 8.0 9.0 7.6
Accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities 0.6 3.5 11.8

Net cash provided by continuing operations 128.2 113.4 204.6

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property plant and equipment 22.7 24.6 24.2
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment 0.8 2.2 0.8

Investments in securities 8.1 4.0
Proceeds from sale of securities 8.1 6.5 1.7

Purchase of intangible assets and other 0.9 1.0 0.7

Business acquisitions net of cash acquired 165.5 36.3 0.3

Net cash used in investing activities 188.3 57.2 21.3

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term debt 184.0 75.0 1.7

Payments of long-term debt 168.0 50.9 61.5
Payment of capital leases and other 2.6 1.2 1.3
Proceeds from share transactions under employee stock plans 5.4 3.4 0.4

Tax expense benefit of stock awards exercised 0.8 0.2 0.3
Debt issuance cost 3.2

Payments to repurchase common stock 27.2
Dividends 16.3 16.4 16.2

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 23.9 6.9 77.2

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 73 2.7 8.0

Net cash provided by used in operating activities of discontinued operations 1.9 5.5 21.2
Net cash provided by used in investing activities of discontinued operations 5.1 0.3

INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 78.6 71.0 92

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 329.2 258.2 165.6

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR. 250.6 $329.2 $258.2

NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of businesses

Fair value of assets acquired 225.5 47.6

Cash paid net of cash acquired 165.5 36.3

Liabilities assumed 60.0 $11.3

Acquisitions of fixed assets under financing agreement 4.3

Issuance of stock under management stock purchase plan 0.4 $2.1 $1.5

CASH PAID FOR
Interest 24.7 $21.4 $22.0

Taxes 35.5 $20.3 $36.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Description of Business

Watts Water Technologies Inc the Company designs manufactures and sells an extensive line of

water safety and flow control products primarily for the water quality water conservation water safety

and water flow control markets located predominantly in North America and Europe with presence

in Asia

Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority and

wholly owned subsidiaries Upon consolidation all significant intercompany accounts and transactions

are eliminated

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of instruments with remaining maturities of three months or less at the

date of purchase and consist primarily of certificates of deposit and money market funds for which the

carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

In vestment Securities

Investment securities at December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted primarily of certificates of deposit

with original maturities of
greater

than three months

Trading securities are recorded at fair value The Company determines the fair value by obtaining

market value when available from quoted prices in active markets In the absence of quoted prices the

Company uses other inputs to determine the fair value of the investments All changes in the fair value

as well as any realized gains and losses from the sale of the securities are recorded when incurred to

the consolidated statements of operations as other income or expense

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts includes reserves for bad debts sales returns and allowances and

cash discounts The Company analyzes the aging of accounts receivable individual accounts receivable

historical bad debts concentration of receivables by customer customer credit worthiness current

economic trends and changes in customer payment terms The Company specifically analyzes individual

accounts receivable and establishes specific reserves against financially troubled customers In addition

factors are developed in certain regions utilizing historical trends of sales and returns and allowances

and cash discount activities to derive reserve for returns and allowances and cash discounts

Concentration of Credit

The Company sells products to diversified customer base and therefore has no significant

concentrations of credit risk In 2011 and 2010 no customer accounted for 10% or more of the

Companys total sales

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost using primarily the first-in first-out method or market

Market value is determined by replacement cost or net realizable value Historical usage is used as the

basis for determining the reserve for excess or obsolete inventories
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Assets Held for Sale

The Company accounts for assets held for sale when management has committed to plan to sell

the asset or group of assets is actively marketing the asset or group of assets the asset or group of

assets can be sold in its current condition in reasonable period of time and the plan is not expected

to change As of December 31 2011 the Company was actively marketing two properties In 2010 the

Company recorded estimated losses of $1.0 million to reduce these assets to their estimated fair value

less any costs to sell These amounts are recorded as component of restructuring and other costs in

the consolidated statements of operations See Note for additional information associated with the

Companys restructuring charges

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for acquisitions exceeds the fair value of net

tangible and intangible assets acquired Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

are not amortized but rather are tested annually for impairment The test was performed as of

October 30 2011

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by geographic segment are as follows

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill

Acquired Foreign

Balance During Currency Balance Balance Impairment Balance

January the franslation December 31 January Loss During December 31 December 31

2010 Period and Other 2010 2010 the Period 2010 2010

in millions

North America $210.4 2.7 0.7 $213.8 $22.0 $22.0 $191.8

Europe 228.8 12.3 13.0 228.1 228.1

Asia 7.9 0.2 8.1 8.1

Total $447.1 $15.0 $12.1 $450.0 $22.0 $22.0 $428.0

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill

Acquired Foreign

Balance During Currency Balance Balance Impairment Balance

January the Translation December 31 January Loss During December 31 December 31

2011 Period and Other 2011 2011 the Period 2011 2011

in millions

North America $213.8 1.8 $215.6 $22.0 $1.2 $23.2 $192.4

Europe 228.1 72.8 15.6 285.3 285.3

Asia 8.1 4.2 0.4 12.7 12.7

Total $450.0 $78.8 $15.2 $513.6 $22.0 $1.2 $23.2 $490.4

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances

indicate that it is more likely than not that goodwill might be impaired such as change in business

conditions The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment assessment in the fourth quarter of

each year
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The Company determined that the future
prospects for its Blue Ridge Atlantic Enterprises Inc

BRAF reporting unit in North America were lower than originally estimated as future sales growth

expectations have been reduced since the 2010 acquisition of BRAE The Company recorded pre-tax

goodwill impairment charge of $1.2 million for that reporting unit The impairment charge was offset

by the reduction in anticipated earnout payment of $1.2 million The Company estimated the fair value

of the reporting unit using the expected present value of future cash flows

Intangible assets with estimable lives and other long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset

group may not be recoverable Recoverability of intangible assets with estimable lives and other

long-lived assets is measured by comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group to

future net undiscounted pretax cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or asset group If these

comparisons indicate that an asset is not recoverable the impairment loss recognized is the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset or asset group exceeds the related estimated fair value

Estimated fair value is based on either discounted future
pretax operating cash flows or appraised

values depending on the nature of the asset The Company determines the discount rate for this

analysis based on the weighted average cost of capital based on the market and guideline public

companies for the related businesses and does not allocate interest charges to the asset or asset group

being measured Judgment is required to estimate future operating cash flows

Intangible assets include the following

December 31

2011 2010

Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

in millions

Patents 16.5 $10.8 5.7 $16.6 9.6 7.0

Customer relationships 135.8 57.7 78.1 120.5 43.1 77.4

Technology 19.8 7.1 12.7 19.8 5.6 14.2

Trade names 13.4 0.8 12.6 4.4 4.4

Other 8.5 5.4 3.1 8.7 5.7 3.0

Total amortizable intangibles 194.0 81.8 112.2 170.0 64.0 106.0

Indefinite-lived intangible assets 42.4 42.4 46.6 46.6

Total $236.4 $81.8 $154.6 $216.6 $64.0 $152.6

Aggregate amortization expense for amortized intangible assets for 2011 2010 and 2009 was

$18.1 million $14.3 million and $13.1 million respectively Additionally future amortization expense on

amortizable intangible assets is expected to be $15.4 million for 2012 $14.3 million for 2013
$14.3 million for 2014 $14.0 million for 2015 and $13.5 million for 2016 Amortization expense is

provided on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets The weighted-

average remaining life of total amortizable intangible assets is 10.6 years Patents customer

relationships technology trade names and other amortizable intangibles have weighted-average

remaining lives of 7.2 years 7.4 years 14.2 years 12.7 years and 43.2 years respectively Indefinite-lived

intangible assets primarily include trade names and trademarks

In 2011 the Company determined that the prospects for Austroflex Rohr-Isoliersysteme GmbH
Austroflex part of our Europe segment were lower than originally estimated due to current
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operating profits being below plan and tempered future growth expectations Accordingly the Company

performed an evaluation of the asset group utilizing the undiscounted cash flows and determined the

carrying value of the assets were no longer recoverable The Company performed fair value

assessment and as result wrote down the long-lived assets including customer relationships trade

names and property plant and equipment by $14.8 million Fair value was based on discounted cash

flows using market participant assumptions and utilized an estimated weighted average cost of capital

Adjustments to indefinite-lived intangible assets during the
year

ended December 31 2011 relate

primarily to recording the value of an additional trade name in connection with the acquisition of

Danfoss Soda S.A.S Soda offset by an impairment of certain trade names in our European and

North America segments and reassessment of $6.1 million of trade names in our North America and

Europe segments to amortizable intangibles

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation is provided on straight-line

basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and

improvements and to 15 years
for machinery and equipment

Taxes Other than Income Taxes

Taxes assessed by governmental authorities on sale transactions are recorded on net basis and

excluded from sales in the Companys consolidated statements of operations

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and

operating loss and tax credit carry forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences

are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

The Company accounts for tax benefits when the item in question meets the more-likely-than-not

greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities threshold

The Company reduced unrecognized tax benefits during 2011 by approximately $2.0 million of which

$1.0 million related to federal state and foreign audit settlements and $1.0 million to reduced

exposures in Europe The Company estimates that it is reasonably possible that portion of the

currently remaining unrecognized tax benefit may be recognized by the end of 2012 as result of the

conclusion of foreign income tax audits The amount of expense accrued for penalties and interest is

$0.7 million worldwide

As of December 31 2011 the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of approximately

$1.8 million approximately $1.6 million of which if recognized would affect the effective tax rate The

difference between the amount of unrecognized tax benefits and the amount that would affect the

effective tax rate consists of the federal tax benefit of state income tax items
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reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits and accrued

interest related to the unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

in millions

Balance at January 2011 3.8

Decreases related to prior year tax positions 1.0
Settlements 1.0

Balance at December 31 2011 $1.8

In February 2012 the United States Internal Revenue Service commenced an audit of the

Companys 2009 and 2010 tax years The Company does not anticipate any material adjustments to

arise as result of the audit The Company conducts business in variety of locations throughout the

world resulting in tax filings in numerous domestic and foreign jurisdictions The Company is subject to

tax examinations regularly as part of the normal course of business The Companys major jurisdictions

are the U.S Canada China Netherlands U.K Germany Italy and France With few
exceptions the

Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations for

years before 2005

The Company accounts for interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as component
of income tax expense

The statute of limitations in our major jurisdictions is open in the U.S for the
year

2008 and later

in Canada for 2007 and later and in the Netherlands for 2006 and later

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of subsidiaries located outside the United States generally are measured

using the local currency as the functional currency Balance sheet accounts including goodwill of

foreign subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars at year-end exchange rates Income and

expense items are translated at weighted average exchange rates for each period Net translation gains

or losses are included in other comprehensive income separate component of stockholders equity
The Company does not provide for U.S income taxes on foreign currency translation adjustments since

it does not provide for such taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries Gains and losses

from foreign currency transactions of these subsidiaries are included in net earnings

Stock-Based Compensation and Chief Executive Officer Separation Costs

The Company records compensation expense in the financial statements for share-based awards

based on the grant date fair value of those awards Stock-based compensation expense includes an

estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is recognized over the requisite service periods of the awards on

straight-line basis which is generally commensurate with the vesting term The benefits associated

with tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost are reported as financing cash flow

At December 31 2011 the Company had three stock-based compensation plans with total

unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested stock-based compensation arrangements of

approximately $10.6 million and total weighted average remaining term of 2.4 years For 2011 2010

and 2009 the Company recognized compensation costs related to stock-based programs of

approximately $5.3 million $4.7 million and $4.9 million respectively in selling general and

administrative expenses The Company recorded approximately $0.6 million of tax benefits during 2011
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2010 and 2009 for the compensation expense relating to its stock options For 2011 2010 and 2009 the

Company recorded approximately $1.5 million $1.2 million and $1.2 million respectively of tax benefit

for its other stock-based plans For 2011 2010 and 2009 the recognition of total stock-based

compensation expense impacted both basic and diluted net income per common share by $0.09 $0.08

and $0.08 respectively

On January 26 2011 Patrick OKeefe resigned from his positions as Chief Executive Officer

President and Director Pursuant to separation agreement the Company recorded charge of

$6.3 million consisting of $3.3 million in expected cash severance and non-cash charge of $3.0 million

for the modification of stock options and restricted stock awards

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding The calculation of diluted income per share assumes the

conversion of all dilutive securities see Note 13

Net income and number of shares used to compute net income per share basic and assuming full

dilution are reconciled below

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Per Per Per

Net Share Net Share Net Share

Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount

Amounts in millions except per share information

Basic EPS $66.4 37.3 $1.78 $58.8 37.3 $1.58 $17.4 37.0 $0.47

Dilutive securities principally common
stock options 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

Diluted EPS $66.4 37.5 $1.78 $58.8 37.4 $1.57 $17.4 37.1 $0.47

The computation of diluted net income per share for the years ended December 31 2011 2010

and 2009 excludes the effect of the potential exercise of options to purchase approximately 0.7 million

0.5 million and 0.9 million shares respectively because the exercise price of the option was greater

than the average market price of the Class Common Stock and the effect would have been

anti-dilutive

On August 2011 the Board of Directors authorized stock repurchase program Under the

program the Company was authorized to repurchase up to one million shares of our Class Common
Stock During the three months ended October 2011 the Company repurchased the entire one

million shares at cost of $27.2 million

Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business the Company manages risks associated with commodity prices

foreign exchange rates and interest rates through variety of strategies including the use of hedging

transactions executed in accordance with the Companys policies The Companys hedging transactions

include but are not limited to the use of various derivative financial and commodity instruments As

matter of policy the Company does not use derivative instruments unless there is an underlying

exposure Any change in value of the derivative instruments would be substantially offset by an

opposite change in the value of the underlying hedged items The Company does not use derivative

instruments for trading or speculative purposes
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Derivative instruments may be designated and accounted for as either hedge of recognized

asset or liability fair value hedge or hedge of forecasted transaction cash flow hedge For fair

value hedge both the effective and ineffective portions of the change in fair value of the derivative

instrument along with an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item for fair value changes

attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings For cash flow hedge changes in the fair

value of the derivative instrument that are highly effective are deferred in accumulated other

comprehensive income or loss until the underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings There were

no cash flow hedges as of December 31 2011

If fair value or cash flow hedge were to cease to qualify for hedge accounting or be terminated

it would continue to be carried on the balance sheet at fair value until settled but hedge accounting

would be discontinued prospectively If forecasted transaction were no longer probable of occurring

amounts previously deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income would be recognized

immediately in earnings On occasion the Company may enter into derivative instrument that does

not qualify for hedge accounting because it is entered into to offset changes in the fair value of an

underlying transaction which is required to be recognized in earnings natural hedge These

instruments are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value with changes in fair value

recognized in earnings

Foreign currency derivatives include forward foreign exchange contracts primarily for Canadian

dollars Metal derivatives included commodity swaps for copper During 2009 the Company used

copper swap as means of hedging exposure to metal prices see Note 15

Portions of the Companys outstanding debt are exposed to interest rate risks The Company

monitors its interest rate exposures on an ongoing basis to maximize the overall effectiveness of its

interest rates

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer

liability an exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date An entity is required to

maximize the use of observable inputs where available and minimize the use of unobservable inputs

when measuring fair value

The Company has certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on

recurring basis and certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities that may be measured at fair value on

nonrecurring basis The fair value disclosures of these assets and liabilities are based on three-level

hierarchy which is defined as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity has

the ability to access at the measurement date

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets

or liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the

full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities
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Assets and liabilities subject to this hierarchy are classified in their entirety based on the lowest

level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement The Companys assessment of the

significance of particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and

considers factors specific to the asset or liability

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling costs included in selling general and administrative expense amounted to

$38.1 million $33.5 million and $31.4 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

Research and Development

Research and development costs included in selling general and administrative expense amounted

to $21.2 million $18.6 million and $17.8 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following criteria have been met the Company
has entered into binding agreement the product has been shipped and title passes the sales price to

the customer is fixed or is determinable and collectability is reasonably assured Provisions for

estimated returns and allowances are made at the time of sale and are recorded as reduction of sales

and included in the allowance for doubtful accounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The Company
records provisions for sales incentives primarily volume rebates as an adjustment to net sales at the

time of sale based on estimated purchase targets

Basis of Presentation

Certain amounts in the 2010 and 2009 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to

permit comparison with the 2011 presentation These reclassifications had no effect on reported results

of operations or stockholders equity

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period

Actual results could differ from those estimates

New Accounting Standards

In June 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards

Update ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income This ASU intends to enhance comparability and

transparency of other comprehensive income components The guidance provides an option to present

total comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other

comprehensive income in single continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements

This ASU eliminates the option to present other comprehensive income components as part of the

statement of changes in stockholders equity The provisions of this ASU will be applied retrospectively
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for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early application is permitted The

Company early adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-05 and opted to present separate statement of

comprehensive income

In September 2011 accounting guidance was issued by FASB in ASC Topic 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other This guidance amends the requirements for goodwill impairment testing The

Company has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events

or circumstances leads to determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of

reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances

the Company determines it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is greater than

its carrying amount then performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary The Company early

adopted this new standard effective with its annual goodwill impairment testing date of October 30 for

the year ended December 31 2011

Discontinued Operations

In the first quarter
of 2010 the Company recorded an estimated reserve of $5.3 million in

discontinued operations in connection with its investigation of potential violations of the Foreign

Corrupt Practices Act FCPAat Watts Valve Changsha Co Ltd CWV former indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company in China On October 13 2011 the Company entered into

settlement for $3.8 million with the Securities and Exchange Commission to resolve allegations

concerning potential violations of the FCPA at CWV See Note 14

In May 2009 the Company liquidated its TEAM business located in Ammanford U.K TEAM
custom designed and manufactured manipulated pipe and hose tubing assemblies and served the

heating ventilation and air conditioning and automotive markets in Western Europe Management

determined the business no longer fit strategically with the Company and that sale of TEAM was not

feasible On May 22 2009 the Company appointed an administrator for TEAM under the United

Kingdom Insolvency Act of 1986 During the administration process the administrator had sole control

over and responsibility for TEAMs operations assets and liabilities The Company deconsolidated

TEAM when the administrator obtained control of TEAM The deconsolidation resulted in the

recognition of $18.1 million pre-tax non-cash loss The Company evaluated the operations of TEAM
and determined that it would not have continuing involvement in TEAMs operations and cash flows

As result of the loss of control TEAMs cash flows and operations were eliminated from the

continuing operations of the Company As such the Company classified TEAMs results of operations

and the loss from deconsolidation as discontinued operations for all periods presented

66



Operating income lossTEAM
Operating income lossCWV
Costs and expensesMunicipal Water Group

Write down of net assetsCWV

Adjustments to reserves for litigationMunicipal Water

Group 0.1 9.5

Gain loss on disposalTEAM 0.2 0.1 18.0

Income loss before income taxes 6.0 22.9

Income tax benefit expense 1.7 0.7

Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes $4.3 $23.6

The Company did not recognize any tax benefits on the write down of net assets of CWV as the

Company does not believe that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits would be realized

Revenues reported in discontinued operations are as follows

RevenuesCWV
RevenuesTEAM

Total revenuesdiscontinued operations

The carrying amounts of major classes of assets and liabilities at December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 associated with discontinued operations are as follows

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Deferred income taxes

Assets of discontinued operations

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations

Restructuring and Other Charges Net

The Companys Board of Directors approves all major restructuring programs that involve the

discontinuance of product lines or the shutdown of facilities From time to time the Company takes

additional restructuring actions including involuntary terminations that are not part of major

Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries
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Condensed operating statements for discontinued operations are summarized below

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

$0.3
1.7 5.7 5.3

0.3

0.1 8.5

1.9

0.2

1.7

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

$11.5

2.6

$14.1

0.4

1.4

$1.8

5.8

$5.8
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program The Company accounts for these costs in the period that the individual employees are

notified or the liability is incurred These costs are included in restructuring and other charges in the

Companys consolidated statements of operations In 2011 the Board approved an integration program

in association with the acquisition of Soda The program was designed to integrate certain operations

and management structures in the Watts and Soda organizations with total estimated pre-tax cost of

$6.4 million with costs being incurred through 2012 As of December 31 2011 the Company revised its

forecast to $5.1 million due to reduced expected severance costs

During 2011 the Company initiated several other actions that were not part of major program
In September 2011 the Company announced plan of termination that would result in reduction of

approximately 10% of North American non-direct payroll costs The Company recorded charge of

$1.1 million for severance in connection with the plan during the year ended December 31 2011 Also

in 2011 the Company initiated restructuring activities with respect to the Companys operating facilities

in Europe which included the closure of facility The Europe restructuring activities are expected to

include
pre-tax costs of approximately $2.6 million including costs for severance and shut down costs

The total net after-tax charge is $1.8 million with costs being incurred through 2012 Total costs

incurred during 2011 were $2.5 million primarily for severance In addition the Company recorded

income in restructuring and other charges related to the reduction in the contingent liability for the

anticipated earnout payment in connection with the BRAE acquisition of $1.2 million

summary of the pre-tax cost by restructuring program is as follows

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Restructuring costs

2007 Actions $1.0 3.2

2009 Actions 1.8 9.3

2010 Actions 3.3 11.1 4.6

2011 Actions 3.1

Other Actions 3.6 0.2 1.8

Total restructuring costs incurred 10.0 14.1 18.9

Income related to contingent liability reduction 1.2
Less amounts included in cost of goods sold 1.5 1.7

Total restructuring and other charges $8.8 $12.6 $17.2

The Company recorded net pre-tax restructuring and other charges in its business segments as

follows

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

North America 1.2 4.1 4.3

Europe 8.6 9.2 5.9

Asia ft8 8.7

Total $10.0 $14J $19
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Also during 2011 the Company recorded tax charge of $1.1 million related to restructuring in

France offset by tax benefit of $4.2 million realized in connection with the disposition of TWVC

2011 Actions

The following table summarizes the total expected incurred and remaining pre-tax costs for the

2011 Soda integration program

Total Incurred Remaining

Expected through Costs at

Reportable Segment Costs December 31 2011 December 31 2011

in millions

Europe $4.9 $2.9 $2.0

Asia 0.2 0.2

Total $5.1 $3.1 $2JJ

The Company expects to spend the remaining costs by the end of 2012

Details of the Companys 2011 Soda integration reserves for the year ended December 31 2011

are as follows

Facility exit

Severance and other Total

in millions

Balance at December 31 2010

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 3.1 3.1

Utilization and foreign currency impact 2.7 2.7

Balance at December 31 2011 $0.4 $0.4

The Company expects to exhaust the remaining reserve by mid-2012

The following table summarizes expected incurred and remaining costs for 2011 Soda integration

actions by type

Facility exit

Severance and other Total

in millions

Expected costs 5.1 5.1

Costs Incurred2011 3.1 3.1

Remaining costs at December 31 2011 $2.0 $2.0

2010 Actions

On February 2010 the Board approved restructuring program with respect to the Companys

operating facilities in France The restructuring program included the consolidation of five facilities into

two facilities The program was originally expected to include pre-tax charges totaling approximately

$12.5 million including costs for severance relocation clean-up and certain asset write-downs The

Company revised its forecast to $16.5 million primarily to reflect additional severance and legal costs
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The Company recorded certain severance costs related to this program in 2009 as the amounts related

to contractual or statutory obligations This program is complete

On September 13 2010 the Board approved restructuring program with respect to certain of the

Companys operating facilities in the United States The restructuring program included the shutdown

of two manufacturing facilities in North Carolina Operations at these facilities have been consolidated

into the Companys manufacturing facilities in New Hampshire Missouri and other locations The

program originally included pre-tax charges totaling approximately $4.9 million including costs for

severance shutdown costs and equipment write-downs and pre-tax training and pre-production set-up

costs of approximately $2.0 million The Company revised its forecast to $2.5 million due to reduced

shutdown costs The total net after-tax charge for this restructuring program was approximately

$1.5 million The restructuring program is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2012

The following table summarizes the total expected incurred and remaining pre-tax costs for the

2010 Europe and North America footprint consolidation-restructuring programs by the Companys

reportable segments

Additional Costs

Total Expected Incurred through incurred through
Costs December 31 2010 December 31 2011 Remaining Costs

in millions

Europe $16.5 $13.7 $2.8

North America 2.5 2.0 0.5

Total $19AJ $153 $33

Details of the Companys 2010 Europe and North America footprint consolidation-restructuring

program reserves through December 31 2011 are as follows

Asset write Facility exit

Severance downs and other Total

in millions

Balance at December 31 2008

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 4.2 0.4 4.6

Utilization and foreign currency impact 0.4 0.4

Balance at December 31 2009 4.2 4.2

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 4.9 1.7 4.5 11.1

Utilization and foreign currency impact 1.7 1.7 4.5 7.9

Balance at December 31 2010 7.4 7.4

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 1.5 0.5 1.3 3.3

Utilization and foreign currency impact 6.0 0.5 1.3 7.8

Balance at December 31 2011 $2.9 $2.9
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The following table summarizes expected incurred and remaining costs for the Companys
2010 Europe and North America footprint consolidation-restructuring actions by type

Asset write- Facility exit

Severance downs and other Total

in millions

Expected costs $10.6 2.2 6.2 $19.0

Costs incurred2009 4.2 0.4 4.6
Costs incurred2010 4.9 1.7 4.5 11.1
Costs incurred2011 1.5 0.5 1.3 3.3

Remaining costs at December 31 2011

2009 Actions

In February 2009 the Board approved plan to consolidate its manufacturing footprint in North

America and Asia The final plan provided for the closure of two plants with those operations being
moved to existing facilities in either North America or Asia or relocated to new central facility in the

United States The project was completed in 2010

The following table summarizes the total estimated
pre-tax charges expected incurred and

remaining cost for the footprint consolidation- restructuring program initiated in 2009 by the

Companys reportable segments

Total Expected Incurred through

Costs December 31 2010 Remaining Costs

in millions

North America 1.9 1.9

Asia 9.2 9.2

Total $11.1

Details of the Companys footprint consolidation-restructuring program through December 31
2010 are as follows

Asset write- Facility exit

Severance downs and other Total

in millions

Balance at December 31 2008

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 1.7 7.5 0.1 9.3

Utilization 1.7 7.5 0.1 9.3

Balance at December 31 2009

Net pre-tax restructuring charges 0.7 0.1 1.0 1.8

Utilization 07 0.1 1.0 1.8

Balance at December 31 2010
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Soda

On April 29 2011 the Company completed the acquisition
of Danfoss Soda S.A.S and the related

water controls business of certain other entities controlled by Danfoss A/S in share and asset

purchase transaction collectively Soda The aggregate
consideration paid was EUR 120.0 million

less EUR 3.7 million in working capital and related adjustments The net purchase price of EUR 116.3

million was financed with cash on hand and euro-based borrowings under our Credit Agreement The

net purchase price was equal to approximately $172.4 million based on the exchange rate of Euro to

U.S dollars as of April 29 2011

Soda is manufacturer of water protection valves and flow control solutions for the water market

and the heating ventilation and air conditioning market Its major product lines include backflow

preventers check valves and pressure reducing valves Soda is based in France and its products are

distributed for commercial residential municipal and industrial use Sodas annual revenue for 2010

was approximately $130.0 million Soda strengthens the Companys European plumbing and flow

control products and also adds to its HVAC product line

The Company is accounting for the transaction as business combination The Company

completed preliminary purchase price allocation that resulted in the recognition of $78.8 million in

goodwill and $40.6 million in intangible assets Intangible assets consist primarily of customer

relationships with estimated lives of 10 years
and trade names with either 20-year lives or indefinite

lives The goodwill is attributable to the workforce of Soda and the synergies that are expected to arise

as result of the acquisition The goodwill
is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes The

following table summarizes the preliminary
value of the assets and liabilities acquired in millions

Cash 7.4

Accounts receivable 28.2

Inventory
24.6

Fixed assets 46.8

Other assets
6.5

Intangible assets
40.6

Goodwill 78.8

Accounts payable 8.2

Accrued expenses and other 19.2

Deferred tax liability 22.3

Debt 10.8

Purchase price
$172.4

The purchase price allocation for the acquisition noted above is preliminary pending the final

determinations of fair values of intangible assets and certain assumed assets and liabilities

The consolidated statement of operations includes the results of Soda since the acquisition date

and includes $94.8 million of revenues and $1.6 million of operating income which includes acquisition

accounting charges of $4.7 million and restructuring charges of $2.7 million
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Supplemental pro-forma information unaudited

Had the Company completed the acquisition of Soda at the beginning of 2010 net sales net

income from continuing operations and earnings per share from continuing operations would have been

as follows

Year Ended

December 31 December 31

Amounts in millions except per share information
2011 2010

Net sales $1484.0 $1404.4

Net income from continuing operations 70.7 67.1

Net income per share

Basic EPScontinuing operations 1.90 1.80

Diluted EPScontinuing operations 1.89 1.79

Net income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 2011 and December 31

2010 was adjusted to include $0.7 million and $2.1 million respectively of net interest expense related

to the financing and $0.8 million and $2.3 million respectively of net amortization expense resulting

from the estimated allocation of purchase price to amortizable tangible and intangible assets Net

income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 was

also adjusted to exclude $4.3 million and $1.5 million respectively of net acquisition-related charges

and third-party costs

Austroflex

On June 28 2010 the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of Austroflex for

approximately $33.7 million Austroflex is an Austrian-based manufacturer of pre-insulated flexible pipe

systems for district heating solar applications and under-floor radiant heating systems The acquisition

of Austroflex provides the Company with full range of pre-insulated PEX tubing pre-insulated solar

tubes under-floor heating insulation and distribution capability and positions the Company as major

supplier of pre-insulated pipe systems in Europe The Company completed purchase price allocation

that resulted in the recognition of $17.2 million of intangible assets and $12.3 million of goodwill

Intangible assets were based on fair value estimates and are comprised primarily of customer

relationships with estimated useful lives of years and trade names with indefinite lives Goodwill is

expected to be tax deductible up to certain limit established under Austrian tax rules Austroflex had

annual sales prior to the acquisition of approximately $23.0 million In 2011 the Company determined

that the prospects for Austroflex part of the Europe segment were lower than originally estimated due

to current operating profits being below plan and tempered future growth expectations See Note

BRAE

On April 13 2010 the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of BRAE located in

Oakboro North Carolina for up to $5.3 million net of cash acquired Of the total purchase price $0.5

million was paid at closing and the remaining $4.8 million is contingent upon BRAE achieving certain

performance metric during the year ending December 31 2014 which to the extent achieved is

expected to be paid in cash in 2015 The Company recognized liability of $1.9 million as an estimate

of the acquisition date fair value of the contingent consideration based on the net present value of $3.7

million which is derived from the weighted probability of achievement of the performance metric as of

the date of the acquisition Failure to meet the performance metric would reduce this liability to $0
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while complete achievement would increase this liability to the full remaining purchase price of $4.8

million Any change in the fair value of the acquisition-related contingent consideration subsequent to

the acquisition date is recognized in earnings in the period the estimated fair value changes The excess

fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net assets acquired of $2.7 million

was allocated to goodwill and trade name None of the goodwill is expected to be tax deductible

BRAE is provider of engineered rain water harvesting solutions and addresses the commercial

industrial and residential markets BRAE had annual sales prior to the acquisition of approximately

$2.0 million In 2011 the Company determined that the future prospects for BRAE were lower than

originally estimated as future sales growth expectations have been tempered since the acquisition See

Note

The results of operations for BRAE are included in the Companys North America segment and

the results of operations of Austroflex are included in the Companys Europe segment since their

respective acquisition dates and were not material to the Companys consolidated financial statements

The results of Soda are included in all three operating segments since acquisition date with the

majority of its operations recorded in the European segment

In March 2010 in connection with the Companys manufacturing footprint consolidation the

Company closed the operations of Tianjin Watts valve Company Ltd TWVC and relocated its

manufacturing to other facilities On April 12 2010 the Company signed definitive equity transfer

agreement with third party to sell the Companys equity ownership and remaining assets of TWVC
The sale was finalized in the fourth quarter of 2011 The Company received net proceeds of

approximately $6.1 million from the sale The Company recognized net pre-tax gain of $7.7 million

and an after-tax gain of approximately $11.4 million or $0.30 per share relating mainly to the

recognition of cumulative translation adjustment and tax benefit related to the reversal of tax

clawback in China

Inventories net

Inventories consist of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Raw materials $107.7 $101.9

Work in process
28.7 19.9

Finished goods 147.8 143.8

$284.2 $265.6

Raw materials work-in-process and finished goods are net of valuation reserves of $26.2 million

and $23.9 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Finished goods of $13.3 million and

$14.7 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively were consigned
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Property plant and equipment consist of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Land 15.6 13.3

Buildings and improvements 153.7 132.1

Machinery and equipment 318.0 297.8

Construction in progress 7.5 7.3

494.8 450.5

Accumulated depreciation 268.1 253.0

226.7 $197.5

Income Taxes

The significant components of the Companys deferred income tax liabilities and assets are as

follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Deferred income tax liabilities

Excess tax over book
depreciation 21.0 $13.7

Intangibles 33.6 29.3

Other 15.6 128

Total deferred tax liabilities 70.2 55.8

Deferred income tax assets

Accrued expenses 17.9 17.9

Net operating loss carry-forward 6.5 8.1

Inventory reserves 8.1 9.4

Pensionaccumulated other comprehensive income 12.0 15.8

Other 15.1 15.6

Total deferred tax assets 59.6 66.8

Less valuation allowance 9.1 9.1

Net deferred tax assets 50.5 57.7

Net deferred tax assets liabilities $19.7 $1.9
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The provision for income taxes from continuing operations is based on the following pre-tax

income

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Domestic $40.0 $43.5 $21.5

Foreign _i
$91.5 $94.5 $72.3

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations consists of the following

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Current tax expense

Federal 7.2 $12.0 $1.9

Foreign 18.6 20.5 23.5

State 1.9 2.9 0.6

27.7 35.4 26.0

Deferred tax expense benefit

Federal 5.3 1.6 6.8

Foreign 7.3 5.9 3.3
State 1.1 0.3 1.8

0.9 4.0 5.3

$26.8 $31.4 $31.3

Actual income taxes reported from continuing operations are different than would have been

computed by applying the federal statutory tax rate to income from continuing operations before

income taxes The reasons for this difference are as follows

Years Ended
December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Computed expected federal income expense $32.0 $33.0 $25.3

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 2.0 2.1 1.5

Foreign tax rate differential 2.6 3.3 2.5

China tax clawback 4.2

Other net 0.4 0.4 2.0

$26.8 $31.4 $31.3

At December 31 2011 the Company has foreign net operating loss carry forwards of $24.4 million

for income tax purposes $2.4 million of the losses can be carried forward indefinitely $7.4 million of

the losses expire in 2016 $5.4 million expire in 2017 and $9.2 million expire between 2018-2020 The

net operating losses consist of $2.4 million related to Austrian operations $19.2 million to Dutch

operations and $2.8 related to Chinese operations
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At December 31 2011 the Company had valuation allowance of $9.1 million all of which relates

to U.S capital losses Management believes it is not more likely than not that the Company would use

such losses within the applicable carry forward period The Company does not have valuation

allowance with respect to other deferred tax assets as management believes that it is more likely than

not that the Company will recover the net deferred tax assets

Enacted changes in income tax laws had no material effect on the Company in 2011 2010 or 2009

Undistributed earnings of the Companys foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $282.2

million at December 31 2011 $313.0 million at December 31 2010 and $320.3 million at

December 31 2009 Those earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and accordingly no

provision for U.S federal and state income taxes has been recorded thereon Upon distribution of

those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise the Company will be subject to withholding taxes

payable to the various foreign countries Determination of the amount of U.S income tax liability that

would be incurred is not practicable because of the complexities associated with its hypothetical

calculation however unrecognized foreign tax credits may be available to reduce some portion of any
U.S income tax liability Withholding taxes of approximately $7.8 million would be payable upon
remittance of all previously unremitted

earnings at December 31 2011

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Commissions and sales incentives payable 39.5 35.9

Accrued product liability and workers compensation 30.5 29.4

Other
39.0 43.0

Income taxes payable 0.2 7.3

$109.2 $115.6
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Long-term debt consists of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

5.85% notes due April 2016 $225.0 $225.0

5.47% notes due May 2013 75.0 75.0

5.05% notes due June 2020 75.0 75.0

Revolving credit facilityEurocurrency loans accruing at LIBOR

or Euro Libor plus an applicable percentage 2.96% as of

December 31 2011 13.0

Otherconsists primarily
of European borrowings at interest rates

ranging from 5.0% to 6.0% 11.4 3.7

399.4 378.7

Less Current Maturities 2.0 0.7

$397.4 $378.0

Principal payments during each of the next five years and thereafter are due as follows in

millions 2012$2.0 2013$77.1 2014$2.2 2015$18.1 2016$225.0 and thereafter$75.0

The Company maintains letters of credit that guarantee its performance or payment to third

parties in accordance with specified terms and conditions Amounts outstanding were approximately

$34.9 million as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 The Companys letters of credit are

primarily
associated with insurance coverage and to lesser extent foreign purchases The Companys

letters of credit generally expire within one year
of issuance and are drawn down against the revolving

credit facility These instruments may exist or expire without being drawn down Therefore they do not

necessarily represent future cash flow obligations

On June 18 2010 the Company entered into note purchase agreement with certain institutional

investors the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement Pursuant to the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement the

Company issued senior notes of $75.0 million in principal
due June 18 2020 The Company will pay

interest on the outstanding balance of the Notes at the rate of 5.05% per annum payable

semi-annually on June 18 and December 18 until the principal on the Notes shall become due and

payable The Company may at its option upon notice and subject to the terms of the 2010 Note

Purchase Agreement prepay at any time all or part
of the Notes in an amount not less than $1 million

by paying the principal amount plus make-whole amount as defined in the 2010 Note Purchase

Agreement The 2010 Note Purchase Agreement includes operational and financial covenants with

which the Company is required to comply including among others maintenance of certain financial

ratios and restrictions on additional indebtedness liens and dispositions As of December 31 2011 the

Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement

On June 18 2010 the Company entered into credit agreement the Credit Agreement among

the Company certain subsidiaries of the Company who become borrowers under the Credit

Agreement Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent swing line lender and letter of credit

issuer and the other lenders referred to therein The Credit Agreement provides for $300 million

five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility which may be increased by an additional $150

million under certain circumstances and subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement The Credit

Agreement has sublimit of up to $75.0 million in letters of credit Borrowings outstanding under the
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Credit Agreement bear interest at fluctuating rate per annum equal to in the case of Eurocurrency
rate loans the British Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus an applicable percentage ranging from

1.70% to 2.30% determined by reference to the Companys consolidated leverage ratio plus in the

case of certain lenders mandatory cost calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit

Agreement or ii in the case of base rate loans and swing line loans the highest of the federal

funds rate plus 0.5% the rate of interest in effect for such day as announced by Bank of America
N.A as its prime rate and the British Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus 1.0% plus an

applicable percentage ranging from 0.70% to 1.30% determined by reference to the Companys
consolidated leverage ratio In addition to paying interest under the Credit Agreement the Company is

also required to pay certain fees in connection with the credit facility including but not limited to

facility fee and letter of credit fees The Credit Agreement expires on June 18 2015 The Company
may repay loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement from time to time without premium or

penalty other than customary breakage costs if any and subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement

Under the Credit Agreement the Company is required to satisfy and maintain specified financial

ratios and other financial condition tests As of December 31 2011 the Company was in compliance
with all covenants related to the Credit Agreement and had $252.4 million of unused and available

credit under the Credit Agreement $34.6 million of stand-by letters of credit outstanding on the Credit

Agreement and $13.0 million in euro-based borrowings under the Credit Agreement

On April 27 2006 the Company completed private placement of $225.0 million of 5.85% senior

unsecured notes due April 2016 the 2006 Note Purchase Agreement The 2006 Note Purchase

Agreement includes operational and financial covenants with which the Company is required to

comply including among others maintenance of certain financial ratios and restrictions on additional

indebtedness liens and dispositions Events of default under the 2006 Note Purchase Agreement
include failure to comply with its financial and operational covenants as well as bankruptcy and other

insolvency events The Company may at its option upon notice to the note holders prepay at any time

all or part of the Notes in an amount not less than $1.0 million by paying the principal amount plus

make-whole amount which is dependent upon the yield of respective U.S Treasury securities As of

December 31 2011 the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the 2006 Note

Purchase Agreement The payment of interest on the senior unsecured notes is due semi-annually on

April 30th and October 30th of each year

On May 15 2003 the Company completed private placement of $125.0 million of senior

unsecured notes consisting of $50.0 million principal amount of 4.87% senior notes due 2010 and $75.0

million principal amount of 5.47% senior notes due May 2013 The payment of interest on the senior

unsecured notes is due semi-annually on May 15th and November 15th of each year In May 2010 the

Company repaid $50.0 million in principal of 4.87% senior notes due upon maturity As of

December 31 2011 the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the note purchase

agreement

11 Common Stock

The Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock have equal dividend and liquidation

rights Each share of the Companys Class Common Stock is entitled to one vote on all matters

submitted to stockholders and each share of Class Common Stock is entitled to ten votes on all such

matters Shares of Class Common Stock are convertible into shares of Class Common Stock on

one-to-one basis at the option of the holder As of December 31 2011 the Company has reserved
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total of 3260320 of Class Common Stock for issuance under its stock-based compensation plans and

6953680 shares for conversion of Class Common Stock to Class Common Stock

On August 2011 the Company announced that the Board of Directors had authorized stock

repurchase program for up to one million shares of Class Common Stock The Company also

announced the discontinuance of the previous stock repurchase program which was originally

announced on November 2007 During the three months ended October 2011 the Company

repurchased the entire one million shares of Class Common Stock authorized by the Board of

Directors at cost of $27.2 million As result of such repurchases the Companys August 2011

repurchase program expired by its terms

12 Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31 2011 the Company maintained three stock incentive plans under which key

employees and outside directors have been granted incentive stock options ISOs and nonqualified

stock options NSO5 to purchase the Companys Class Common Stock Only one plan the 2004

Stock Incentive Plan is currently available for the grant of new equity awards which are currently

being granted only to employees Stock options granted under prior plans became exercisable over

five-year period at the rate of 20% per year and expire ten years
after the date of grant Under the

2004 Stock Incentive Plan options become exercisable over four-year period at the rate of 25% per

year and expire ten years
after the grant date ISOs and NSOs granted under the plans may have

exercise prices of not less than 100% and 50% of the fair market value of the Class Common Stock

on the date of grant respectively The Companys current practice is to grant
all options at fair market

value on the grant date At December 31 2011 1596082 shares of Class Common Stock were

authorized for future grants of new equity awards under the Companys stock incentive plans

The Company grants shares of restricted stock to key employees and non-employee members of

the Companys Board of Directors under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan which vest either immediately

over one-year period or over three-year period at the rate of one-third per year The restricted

stock awards are amortized to expense on straight-line basis over the vesting period

The Company also has Management Stock Purchase Plan that allows for the granting of

restricted stock units RSU5 to key employees On an annual basis key employees may elect to receive

portion of their annual incentive compensation in RSUs instead of cash Each RSU provides the key

employee with the right to purchase share of Class Common Stock at 67% of the fair market value

on the date of grant RSUs vest ratably over three-year period from the grant date An aggregate of

2000000 shares of Class Common Stock may be issued under the Management Stock Purchase Plan

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

At December 31 2011 total unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested stock options

was approximately $4.9 million with total weighted average remaining term of 3.0 years For 2011

2010 and 2009 the Company recognized compensation cost of $1.6 million $1.7 million and $1.7

million respectively in selling general and administrative expenses The Company recognized

additional stock compensation expense in 2011 related to unvested stock options of approximately $2.2

million in connection with the modification of our former CEOs options
related to his separation

agreement
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The following is summary of stock option activity and related information

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Intrinsic Exercise

Value Options Price

Options in thousands

1300 $26.25

282 33.65

94 23.33

185 19.69

$3.78 1303 $29.00

769 $27.56

Upon exercise of options the Company issues shares of Class Common Stock

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at December 31 2011

Options_Outstanding __________________________

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number Remaining Contractual Exercise

Outstanding Life years Price

Options in thousands

16 1.56 $17.46

247 5.86 25.88

406 8.60 29.15

603 6.55 33.60

The fair value of each option granted under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan is estimated on the date

of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model based on the following weighted average assumptions

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Expected life years 6.0 6.0 6.0

Expected stock price volatility
40.9% 41.3% 41.2%

Expected dividend yield
1.5% 1.3% 1.7%

Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 1.9% 2.8%

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 1303 $29.00

Granted 295 29.39

Cancelled/Forfeitures 78 30.38

Exercised 248 21.68

Outstanding at end of year 1272 $30.43

Exercisable at end of year
745 $30.61 $3.60

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

1216

214

101
29

1300

882

$26.07

26.34

27.63

14.23

$26.25

$24.98

As of December 31 2011 the aggregate intrinsic values of exercisable options were approximately

$2.7 million representing the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the Companys closing Class

Common Stock price of $34.21 as of December 31 2011 which would have been received by the

option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date The total intrinsic value of

options exercised for 2011 2010 and 2009 was approximately $3.9 million $2.7 million and $0.3 million

respectively

Range of Exercise Prices

$14.09$17.60

$17.61$28.16

$28.17$31.68

$31.69$35.21

Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Number Exercise

Exercisable Price

1272 7.03

16

180

106

443

745$30.43

$17.46

25.71

29.35

33.51

$30.61
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The risk-free interest rate is based upon the U.S Treasury yield curve at the time of grant for the

respective expected life of the option The expected life estimated period of time outstanding of

options and volatility were calculated using historical data The expected dividend yield of stock is the

Companys best estimate of the expected future dividend yield The Company applied an estimated

forfeiture rate of 6.75% for 2011 2010 and 2009 for its stock options These rates were calculated

based upon historical activity and are an estimate of granted shares not expected to vest If actual

forfeitures differ from the expected rates the Company may be required to make additional

adjustments to compensation expense in future periods

The above assumptions were used to determine the weighted average grant-date fair value of stock

options of $10.19 $12.36 and $9.70 for the
years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

The following is summary of unvested restricted stock activity and related information

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Shares in thousands

Unvested at beginning of year 162 $31.39 117 $28.20 115 $31.28

Granted 115 29.51 105 33.65 86 26.21

Cancelled/Forfeitures 14 31.12 28.09 16 29.15

Vested 110 30.94 53 29.24 68 30.62

Unvested at end of
year 153 $30.33 162 $31.39 117 $28.20

The total fair value of shares vested during 2011 2010 and 2009 was $2.5 million $1.5 million and

$2.1 million respectively At December 31 2011 total unrecognized compensation cost related to

unvested restricted stock was approximately $3.8 million with total weighted average remaining term

of 2.2 years For 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company recognized compensation costs of $2.4 million

$1.8 million and $2.0 million respectively in selling general and administrative expenses The

Company recognized additional stock compensation expense in 2011 related to restricted stock of

approximately $0.8 million in connection with the modification of our former CEOs stock awards

related to his separation agreement

The Company applied an estimated forfeiture rate of 9.0% 9.75% and 5.2% for 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively for restricted stock issued to key employees The aggregate intrinsic value of

restricted stock granted and outstanding approximated $5.5 million representing the total pre-tax

intrinsic value based on the Companys closing Class Common Stock price of $34.21 as of

December 31 2011

Management Stock Purchase Plan

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested RSUs was approximately $1.9 million at

December 31 2011 with total weighted average remaining term of 1.7 years For 2011 2010 and 2009

the Company recognized compensation cost of $1.3 million $1.2 million and $1.2 million respectively

in selling general and administrative expenses Dividends declared for RSUs that are paid to

individuals that remain unpaid at December 31 2011 total approximately $0.3 million

82



Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

12 Stock-Based Compensation Continued

summary of the Companys RSU activity and related information is shown in the following

table

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average

Purchase Intrinsic Purchase Purchase

RSUs Price Value RSUs Price RSUs Price

RSUs in thousands

Outstanding at beginning of period 361 $16.92 350 $18.13 297 $21.86

Granted 99 25.15 159 19.87 150 13.25

Cancelled/Forfeitures 10 20.92 21 16.68 18.08

Settled 58 18.01 127 23.95 90 22.31

Outstanding at end of period 392 $18.74 $15.47 361 $16.92 350 $18.13

Vested at end of period 157 $15.57 $18.64 105 $15.21 131 $21.12

As of December 31 2011 the aggregate intrinsic values of outstanding and vested RSUs were

approximately $6.1 million and $2.9 million respectively representing the total pre-tax
intrinsic value

based on the Companys closing Class Common Stock price of $34.21 as of December 31 2011

which would have been received by the RSUs holders had all RSUs settled as of that date The total

intrinsic value of RSUs settled for 2011 2010 and 2009 was approximately $1.2 million $0.7 million

and $0.1 million respectively Upon settlement of RSUs the Company issues shares of Class

Common Stock

The following table summarizes information about RSUs outstanding at December 31 2011

RSUs Outstanding RSUs Vested

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number Remaining Contractual Purchase Number Purchase

Range of Purchase Prices Outstanding Life years Price Vested Price

RSUs in thousands

$7.04$10.56 17 2.1 $10.38 17 $10.38

$10.57$17.60 123 0.2 13.25 82 13.25

$17.61$21.11 150 1.2 19.86 51 19.84

$21.12$24.64 3.3 22.42 22.42

$24.65$25.73 99 2.3 25.17 25.73

392 1.2 $18.74 157 $15.57
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The fair value of each share issued under the Management Stock Purchase Plan is estimated on

the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model based on the following weighted average

assumptions

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Expected life years 3.0 3.0 3.0

Expected stock price volatility 44.9% 45.6% 45.0%

Expected dividend yield 1.2% 1.5% 2.2%

Risk-free interest rate 1.2% 1.5% 1.4%

The risk-free interest rate is based upon the U.S Treasury yield curve at the time of grant for the

respective expected life of the RSUs The expected life estimated period of time outstanding of RSUs
and volatility were calculated using historical data The expected dividend yield of stock is the

Companys best estimate of the expected future dividend yield The Company applied an estimated

forfeiture rate of 6.3% 6.3% and 5.2% for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively for its RSUs These rates

were calculated based upon historical activity and are an estimate of granted shares not expected to

vest If actual forfeitures differ from the expected rates the Company may be required to make

additional adjustments to compensation expense in future periods

The above assumptions were used to determine the weighted average grant-date fair value of

RSUs granted of $16.25 $12.81 and $8.14 during 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Company distributed dividends of $0.44 per share for each of 2011 2010 and 2009 on the

Companys Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock

13 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors funded and unfunded non-contributing defined benefit pension plans that

together cover substantially all of its domestic employees Benefits are based primarily on years of

service and employees compensation The funding policy of the Company for these plans is to

contribute an annual amount that does not exceed the maximum amount that can be deducted for

federal income tax purposes

On October 31 2011 the Companys Board of Directors voted to cease accruals effective

December 31 2011 under both the Companys Pension Plan and Supplemental Employees Retirement

Plan The Company recorded curtailment charge of approximately $1.5 million to write-off previously

unrecognized prior service costs and reduced the projected benefit obligation by $12.5 million The

Board of Directors also voted to enhance the Companys existing 401 Savings Plan The net effect

of these plan changes is expected to reduce future retirement plans expense by approximately $2.0

million annually
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The funded status of the defined benefit plans and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance

sheet are as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Change in projected benefit obligation

Balance at beginning of the year $112.6 96.1

Service cost 5.3 4.6

Administration cost 0.6 1.0
Interest cost 6.0 5.7

Actuarial loss 13.6 10.2

Benefits paid 3.2 3.0
Curtailment adjustment 12.5

Balance at end of
year $121.2 $112.6

Change in fair value of plan assets

Balance at beginning of the year 90.3 66.6

Actual gain on assets 14.1 7.4

Employer contributions 7.8 20.3

Administration cost 0.6 1.0
Benefits paid 3.2 3.0

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year $108.4 90.3

Funded status at end of year 12.8 22.3

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Current liabilities 0.2 0.1
Noncurrent liabilities 12.6 22.2

Net amount recognized $12.8 $22.3

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Net actuarial loss $31.1 $39.3

Prior service cost 1.7

Net amount recognized $31.1 $41.0
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Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets are

as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

$13.7 $112.6

$13.7 $102.8

$90.3

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Information for pension plans with plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligation are as

follows

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows

Service costbenefits earned

Interest costs on benefits obligation

Expected return on assets

Prior service cost amortization

Net actuarial loss amortization

Curtailment charge

Net periodic benefit cost

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

$107.6

$107.6

$108.4

Years Ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

$5.3 $4.6 $4.1

6.0 5.7 5.2

7.5 6.0 4.0
03 0.3 0.3

2.7 2.3 3.0

1.5

$8.3 $6.9 $8.6

The estimated net actuarial loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next year
is $0.6

million

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations

December 31

2011 2010

Discount rate 4.80% 5.50%

Rate of compensation increase N/A 4.00%
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.50%/4.70% 6.00% 6.00%

Long-term rate of return on assets 7.75% 8.50% 8.50%

Rate of compensation increase N/A 4.00% 4.00%

Discount rates are selected based upon rates of return at the measurement date utilizing bond

matching approach to match the expected benefit cash flows In selecting the expected long-term rate

of return on assets the Company considers the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested

or to be invested to provide for the benefits of this plan This includes considering the trusts asset

allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the plan This basis is consistent

with the prior year The original 2011 discount rate of 5.5% was revised to 4.70% at October 31 2011

the curtailment date of the plans

Plan assets

The weighted average asset allocations by asset category are as follows

December 31

Asset Category 2011 2010

Equity securities 13.4% 42.5%

Debt securities 77.4 40.2

Other 17.3

Total 100.0% lOft 0%

The Companys written Retirement Plan Investment Policy sets forth the investment policy

objectives and constraints of the Watts Water Technologies Inc Pension Plan This Retirement Plan

Investment Policy set forth by the Pension Plan Committee defines general investment principles and

directs investment management policy addressing preservation of capital risk aversion and adherence

to investment discipline Investment managers are to make reasonable effort to control risk and are

evaluated quarterly against commonly accepted benchmarks to ensure that the risk assumed is

commensurate with the given investment style and objectives

The portfolio is designed to achieve balanced return of current income and modest growth of

capital while achieving returns in excess of the rate of inflation over the investment horizon in order to

preserve purchasing power of Plan assets All Plan assets are required to be invested in liquid

securities Derivative investments are not allowed

Prohibited investments include but are not limited to the following futures contracts private

placements options limited partnerships venture-capital investments interest-only JO principal-only

P0 and residual tranche CMOs and Watts Water Technologies Inc stock

Prohibited transactions include but are not limited to the following short selling and margin

transactions

Allowable assets include cash equivalents fixed income securities equity securities mutual funds

and GICs
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Specific guidelines regarding allocation of assets are followed using liability driven investment

LDI strategy Under LDI strategy investments are made based on the expected cash flows required

to fund the pension plans liabilities This cash flow matching technique requires plans asset

allocation to be heavily weighted toward fixed income securities The Companys current allocation

target is 80% fixed income 20% equities and other investments With the recent plan curtailment the

Company expects this allocation target to increase to 90% or more in fixed income in 2012 Investment

performance is monitored on regular basis and investments are re-allocated to stay within specific

guidelines The securities of any one company or government agency should not exceed 10% of the

total fund and no more than 20% of the total fund should be invested in any one industry Individual

treasury securities may represent 50% of the total fund while the total allocation to treasury bonds and

notes may represent up to 100% of the Plans aggregate
bond position

The following table presents the investments in the pension plan measured at fair value at

December 31 2011 and 2010

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Level Level Level Level Level Level

Total Total

in millions

Money market funds 4.9 4.9 $10.1 $10.1

Equity securities

U.S equity securitiesa 8.0 8.0 12.5 12.5

Non-U.S equity securitiesa 2.3 2.3 9.0 9.0

Other equity securitiesb 4.1 4.1 16.9 16.9

Debt securities

U.S government 19.9 19.9 10.1 10.1

U.S and non-U.S corporatec 63.3 63.3 26.2 26.2

Other investmentsd 4.9 1.0 5.9 5.2 0.3 5.5

Total investments $39.2 $69.2 $108.4 $53.7 $36.6 $90.3

Includes investments in common stock from diverse industries

Includes investments in index and exchange-traded funds

Includes investment grade bonds from diverse industries

Includes investments in real estate investment funds exchange-traded funds commodity mutual

funds and accrued interest

Cash flows

The information related to the Companys pension funds cash flow is as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Employer Contributions $7.8 $20.3

Benefit Payments $3.2 3.0

The Company expects to contribute approximately $0.6 million in 2012
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Expected benefit payments to be paid by the pension plans are as follows

in millions

During fiscal year ending December 31 2012 4.2

During fiscal year ending December 31 2013 4.5

During fiscal year ending December 31 2014 4.9

During fiscal year ending December 31 2015 5.2

During fiscal year ending December 31 2016 5.5

During fiscal year ending December 31 2017 through December 31

2021 $32.0

Additionally substantially all of the Companys domestic employees are eligible to participate in

certain 401k savings plans Under these plans the Company matches specified percentage of

employee contributions subject to certain limitations The Companys match contributions included in

selling general and administrative expense for the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was

$0.5 million in each year The Companys largest 401k plan will be enhanced beginning January

2012 Under the revised plan the Company will provide base contribution of 2% of an employees

salary regardless of whether the employee participates
in the plan Further the Company will make

matching contribution of up to 100% of the first 4% of an employees contribution Charges for

European pension plans approximated $6.2 million $3.5 million and $2.8 million for the years
ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively
These costs relate to plans administered by certain

European subsidiaries with benefits calculated according to government requirements and paid out to

employees upon retirement or change of employment

The Company entered into Supplemental Compensation Agreement the Agreement with

Timothy Home on September 1996 Per the Agreement upon ceasing to be an employee of the

Company Mr Home must make himself available as requested by the Board to work minimum of

300 but not more than 500 hours per year as consultant in return for certain annual compensation as

long as he is physically able to do so If Mr Home complies with the consulting provisions of the

agreement above he shall receive supplemental compensation on an annual basis of $0.4 million per

year subject to cost of living increases each year in exchange for the services performed as long as he

is physically able to do so In the event of physical disability subsequent to commencing consulting

services for the Company Mr Home will continue to receive this payment annually The payment for

consulting services provided by Mr Home will be expensed as incurred by the Company Mr Home

retired effective December 31 2002 and therefore the Supplemental Compensation period began on

January 2003 In accordance with GAAI the Company accrues for the future post-retirement

disability benefits over the period from January 2003 to the time in which Mr Home becomes

physically unable to perform his consulting services the period in which the disability benefits are

earned Mr Home is still active as consultant in accordance with the terms of the Agreement
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Accrual and Disclosure Policy

The Company is defendant in numerous legal matters arising from its ordinary course of

operations including those involving product liability environmental matters and commercial disputes

The Company reviews its lawsuits and other legal proceedings on an ongoing basis and follows

appropriate accounting guidance when making accrual and disclosure decisions The Company
establishes accruals for matters when the Company assesses that it is probable that loss has been
incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonable estimated net of any applicable insurance

proceeds The Company does not establish accruals for such matters when the Company does not
believe both that it is probable that loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonable estimated The Companys assessment of whether loss is probable is based on its

assessment of the ultimate outcome of the matter following all appeals

There may continue to be exposure to loss in excess of any amount accrued When it is possible to
estimate the

reasonably possible loss or range of loss above the amount accrued for the matters

disclosed that estimate is aggregated and disclosed

As of December 31 2011 the Company estimates that the aggregate amount of reasonably

possible loss in excess of the amount accrued for its legal contingencies is approximately $3.3 million

pre-tax With
respect to the estimate of reasonably possible loss management has estimated the upper

end of the range of reasonably possible loss based on the amount of money damages claimed where

applicable ii the allegations and factual development to date iii available defenses based on the

allegations and/or iv other potentially liable parties This estimate is based upon currently available

information and is subject to significant judgment and variety of assumptions and known and
unknown uncertainties The matters underlying the estimate will change from time to time and actual

results may vary significantly from the current estimate In the event of an unfavorable outcome in one
or more of the matters described below the ultimate liability may be in excess of amounts currently
accrued if any and may be material to the Companys operating results or cash flows for particular

quarterly or annual period However based on information currently known to it management believes

that the ultimate outcome of all matters described below as they are resolved over time is not likely to

have material effect on the financial position of the Company

James Jones Litigation

The Company was party to lawsuit filed by Nora Armenta in California Superior Court against
the Company James Jones Company Mueller Co and Tyco International the Armenta case and

separate lawsuit filed in California Superior Court on behalf of the City of Banning California and 42
other cities and water districts in California against the Company James Jones Company and

Mueller Co the City of Banning case At mediation session held with the California Superior
Court on June 9-10 2009 the parties to the Armenta case and the City of Banning case agreed in

principle to settle both cases An agreement in principle also was reached in 2009 to settle the related

insurance coverage cases Watts Industries Inc vs Zurich American Insurance Company et al and
Zurich American Insurance Company vs Watts Industries Inc et al pending in California Superior
Court and Zurich American Insurance Company vs Watts Industries Inc and James Jones Company
pending in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois Eastern Division The
settlement of the insurance coverage cases was effective and binding upon approval of the settlement of

the underlying Armenta case and City of Banning case
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The settlement agreement was approved by the plaintiffs in both the Armenta and City of Banning

cases and at the fairness hearing held November 2009 the California Superior Court approved the

settlement of the Armenta case and City of Banning case Based on the contemporaneous final

settlement of the underlying insurance coverage cases the Companys contribution to the settlement

was $15.3 million As result of the settlements all lawsuits and all claims were dismissed In addition

separate from the settlement the Company paid its outside counsel an additional $5.0 million for

services rendered in connection with the above described litigation

As result of the settlement of the above described litigation the Company recorded non-cash

pre-tax gain in discontinued operations of approximately $9.5 million in 2009 to reduce previously

recorded estimates of the loss and related fees to the amounts noted above

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA Settlement

On October 13 2011 the Company entered into settlement with the SEC to resolve allegations

concerning potential violations of the FCPA at CWV former indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company in China Under the terms of the settlement without admitting or denying the SECs

allegations the Company consented to entry of an administrative cease-and-desist order under the

books and records and internal controls provisions of the FCPA The Company also agreed to pay to

the SEC $3.6 million in disgorgement and prejudgment interest and $0.2 million in penalties

The amounts paid by the Company in connection with the settlement were fully accrued by the

Company as of December 31 2010 The Company believes that this settlement resolves all government

investigations concerning CWVs sales practices and potential FCPA violations

Product Liability

The Company is subject to variety of potential liabilities in connection with product liability

cases The Company maintains product liability and other insurance coverage which the Company
believes to be generally in accordance with industry practices For product liability cases in the U.S

management establishes its product liability accrual by utilizing third-party actuarial valuations which

incorporate historical trend factors and the Companys specific claims experience derived from loss

reports provided by third-party administrators In other countries the Company maintains insurance

coverage with relatively high deductible payments as product liability claims tend to be smaller than

those experienced in the U.S

Environmental Remediation

The Company has been named as potentially responsible party with respect to limited number of

identified contaminated sites The levels of contamination
vary significantly from site to site as do the

related levels of remediation efforts Environmental liabilities are recorded based on the most probable

cost if known or on the estimated minimum cost of remediation Accruals are not discounted to their

present value unless the amount and timing of expenditures are fixed and reliably determinable The

Company accrues estimated environmental liabilities based on assumptions which are subject to

number of factors and uncertainties Circumstances that can affect the reliability and precision of these

estimates include identification of additional sites environmental regulations level of cleanup required

technologies available number and financial condition of other contributors to remediation and the time

period over which remediation may occur The Company recognizes changes in estimates as new

remediation requirements are defined or as new information becomes available

91



Watts Water Technologies Inc and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

14 Contingencies and Environmental Remediation Continued

Asbestos Litigation

The Company is defending approximately 47 lawsuits in different jurisdictions alleging injury or

death as result of exposure to asbestos The complaints in these cases typically name large number

of defendants and do not identify and particular Watts products as source of asbestos exposure To

date the Company has obtained dismissal in every case before it has reached trial because discovery

has failed to yield evidence of substantial exposure to any Watts products

Other Litigation

Other lawsuits and proceedings or claims arising from the ordinary course of operations are also

pending or threatened against the Company

15 Financial Instruments

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents short-term investments trade receivables and

trade payables approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these financial instruments

The fair value of the Companys 5.47% senior notes due 2013 5.85% senior notes due 2016 and

5.05% senior notes due 2020 is based on quoted market prices of similar notes level The fair value

of the Companys variable rate debt approximates its carrying value The carrying amount and the

estimated fair market value of the Companys long-term debt including the current portion are as

follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Carrying amount $399.4 $378.7

Estimated fair value $440.5 $407.5

Financial Instruments

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on recurring basis

including foreign currency derivatives deferred compensation plan assets and related liability There
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are no cash flow hedges as of December 31 2011 The fair value of these certain financial assets and

liabilities were determined using the following inputs at December 31 2011 and 2010

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2011 Using

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

in millions

Assets

Plan asset for deferred compensation1 $4.0 $4.0

Total assets $4.0 $4.0

Liabilities

Plan liability for deferred compensation2 $4.0 $4.0

Contingent consideration2 1.1 11

Total liabilities $5.1 $4.0 $1.1

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2010 Using

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

in millions

Assets

Plan asset for deferred compensation1 $3.7 $3.7

Total assets $3.7 $3.7

Liabilities

Plan liability for deferred compensation2 $3.7 $3.7

Contingent consideration2 1.9 1.9

Total liabilities $5.6 $3.7 $1.9

Included in other net on the Companys consolidated balance sheet

Included in other noncurrent liabilities on the Companys consolidated balance sheet

The table below provides summary of the changes in fair value of all financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs Level for

the period December 31 2010 to December 31 2011

Total realized and

unrealized gains

losses included in
Balance Purchases Balance

December 31 sales Comprehensive December 31
2010 settlements net Earnings income 2011

in millions

Contingent consideration $1.9 $0.8 $1.1
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As discussed in Note in 2010 contingent liability of $1.9 million was recognized as an estimate

of the acquisition date fair value of the contingent consideration in the BRAE acquisition This liability

was classified as Level under the fair value hierarchy as it was based on the weighted probability of

achievement of future performance metric as of the date of the acquisition which was not observable

in the market During the
year

ended December 31 2011 the estimate of the fair value of the

contingent consideration was reduced to $1.1 million based on the revised probability of achievement of

the future performance metric The gain resulting from the decrease in the contingent liability was

classified in operating earnings as restructuring and other charges net

At December 31 2009 the Company had short term investments of $6.5 million in auction rate

securities ARS The Company elected to participate in settlement offer from UBS AB UBS for

all of its outstanding ARS investments Under the terms of the settlement offer the Company was

issued rights by UBS entitling the Company to require UBS to purchase the underlying ARS at par

value during the period from June 30 2010 through July 2012 The Company elected to exercise this

right and on July 2010 received $6.3 million from UBS in settlement of all outstanding ARS
investments

Short-term investment securities as of December 31 2011 consist of certificate of deposit with

remaining maturity of
greater

than three months at the date of purchase for which the carrying

amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

Cash equivalents consist of instruments with remaining maturities of three months or less at the

date of purchase and consist primarily of certificates of deposit and money market funds for which the

carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

The Company uses financial instruments from time to time to enhance its ability to manage risk

including foreign currency and commodity pricing exposures which exist as part of its ongoing business

operations The use of derivatives exposes the Company to counterparty credit risk for nonperformance

and to market risk related to changes in currency exchange rates and commodity prices The Company

manages its exposure to counterparty credit risk through diversification of counterparties The

Companys counterparties in derivative transactions are substantial commercial banks with significant

experience using such derivative instruments The impact of market risk on the fair value and cash

flows of the Companys derivative instruments is monitored and the Company restricts the use of

derivative financial instruments to hedging activities The Company does not enter into contracts for

trading purposes nor does the Company enter into any contracts for speculative purposes The use of

derivative instruments is approved by senior management under written guidelines

The Company has exposure to number of foreign currency rates including the Canadian Dollar

the Euro the Chinese Yuan and the British Pound To manage this risk the Company generally uses

layering methodology whereby at the end of any quarter the Company has generally entered into

forward exchange contracts which hedge approximately 50% of the projected intercompany purchase

transactions for the next twelve months The Company primarily uses this strategy for the purchases

between Canada and the U.S The average volume of contracts can vary
but generally approximates $9

to $15 million in open contracts at the end of any given quarter At December 31 2011 the Company

had contracts for notional amounts aggregating approximately $9.0 million The Company accounts for

the forward exchange contracts as an economic hedge Realized and unrealized gains and losses on the

contracts are recognized in other income expense in the consolidated statement of operations These

contracts do not subject the Company to significant market risk from exchange movement because they

offset gains and losses on the related foreign currency denominated transactions In 2008 the Company
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entered into series of copper swaps to fix the price per pound for copper from October 2008 through

September 2009 for million pounds to be delivered over 12 months for one customer The Company

determined that these copper swaps did not qualify for hedge accounting and accounted for these

financial instruments as an economic hedge Therefore any changes in the fair value of the copper

swaps were recorded immediately in the consolidated statement of operations The Company does not

enter into swap or forward contracts for speculative purposes As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the

Company had no outstanding swaps

The Company recorded income loss of approximately $0.6 million $0.5 million and $0.8 million

in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively to other income expense in the consolidated statement of

operations
from the impact of derivative instruments

Leases

The Company leases certain manufacturing facilities sales offices warehouses and equipment

Generally the leases carry
renewal provisions and require the Company to pay maintenance costs

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases as of

December 31 2011 are as follows

Capital Leases Operating Leases

in millions

2012 $1.4 9.3

2013 1.3 7.6

2014 1.3 5.8

2015 1.3 3.6

2016 1.3 1.2

Thereafter 5.0 3.1

Total $11.6 $30.6

Less amount representing interest at rates ranging from 4.2% to 8.7% 1.4

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 10.2

Less current installments of obligations under capital leases 1.1

Obligations under capital leases excluding installments $9.1

Carrying amounts of assets under capital lease include

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Buildings
$16.5 $17.0

Machinery and equipment
2.1 1.7

18.6 18.7

Less accumulated depreciation
4.8 3.7

$13.8 $15.0
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The Company operates in three geographic segments North America Europe and Asia Each of

these segments sells similar products is managed separately and has separate financial results that are

reviewed by the Companys chief operating decision-maker All intercompany sales transactions have

been eliminated Sales by region are based upon location of the entity recording the sale The

accounting policies for each segment are the same as those described in the summary of significant

accounting policies see Note

The following is summary of the Companys significant accounts and balances by segment
reconciled to its consolidated totals

December 31

Net Sales

North America 819.4

Europe 595.5

Asia 21.7

$1436.6

Operating income loss
North America

Europe

Asia

Consolidated operating income

Interest income

Interest expense

Other

Identifiable Assets at end of period

North America
831.8

Europe 773.2

Asia
92.5

Discontinued operations

Consolidated identifiable assets
$1697.5

Long-Lived Assets at end of period

North America

Europe
Asia

Consolidated
long-lived assets

Capital Expenditures

North America

Europe
Asia

Consolidated capital expenditures

Depreciation and Amortization

North America

Europe

Asia

Consolidated depreciation and amortization

Corporate expenses are primarily for compensation expense Sarbanes-Oxley compliance professional fees including legal and

audit expenses shareholder services and benefit administration costs These costs are not allocated to the geographic segments
as they are viewed as corporate functions that support all activities Corporate costs in 2011 include $6.3 million in charges
related to the separation agreement with the Companys former CEO

Consolidated net sales

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Subtotal reportable segments

Corporate

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

112.0

28.7

12.2

152.9

35.8

117.1

1.0

25.8

0.8

91.5

785.5

468.3

20.8

$1274.6

106.4

43.7

0.5

149.6

35.4

114.2

1.0

22.8
2.1

94.5

871.8

692.8

79.7

1.8

$1646.1

77.4

104.6

15.5

197.5

9.1

14.8

0.7

24.6

17.9

24.9

2.0

44.8

738.5

466.5

20.9

$1225.9

78.6

51.0

6.6

123.0

30.8

92.2

0.9

22.0
1.2

72.3

804.7

686.0

85.4

23.1

$1599.2

81.5

108.5

16.5

206.5

9.3

14.4

0.5

24.2

17.9

23.1

5.8

46.8

78.4

133.3

15.0

226.7

8.4

13.6

0.7

22.7

19.2

30.2

2.0

51.4
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

16 Segment Information Continued

The following includes U.S net sales and U.S property plant and equipment of the Companys

North American segment

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

U.S net sales $741.4 $712.2 $672.6

U.S property plant and equipment net at end of

period 73.5 72.4 74.8

The following includes intersegment sales for North America Europe and Asia

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Intersegment Sales

North America 3.3 3.6 3.6

Europe 8.4 7.6 5.8

Asia 132.9 115.8 110.4

Intersegment sales $144.6 $127.0 $119.8

The Company sells its products into various end markets around the world and groups net sales to

third parties into four product categories Because many of the Companys sales are through

distributors and third-party manufacturers representatives portion of the product categorization is

based on managements understanding of final product use and as such allocations have been made to

align sales into product category Net sales to third parties for the four product categories are as

follows

December 31

2011 2010 2009

in millions

Net Sales

Residential commercial flow control 755.4 652.2 623.4

HVAC gas
475.7 433.4 423.5

Drains water re-use 135.2 122.2 117.6

Water quality
70.3 66.8 61.4

Consolidated net sales $1436.6 $1274.6 $1225.9
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17 Quarterly Financial Information unaudited

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

in millions except per share information

Year ended December 31 2011

Net sales $329.9 $375.7 $370.8 $360.2

Gross profit 121.0 130.3 135.7 128.5

Income from continuing operations 11.1 12.9 23.6 17.1

Net income 11.1 14.6 23.7 17.0

Per common share

Basic

Income from continuing operations 0.30 0.34 0.63 0.47

Net income 0.30 0.39 0.63 0.46

Diluted

Income from continuing operations 0.29 0.34 0.63 0.46

Net income 0.29 0.39 0.63 0.46

Dividends per common share 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11

Year ended December 31 2010

Net sales $319.3 $324.0 $314.6 $316.7

Gross profit 117.6 120.6 113.8 112.9

Income from continuing operations 12.2 22.2 17.3 18.4

Net income 8.1 22.1 17.3 11.3

Per common share

Basic

Income from continuing operations 0.33 0.60 0.46 0.30

Net income 0.22 0.59 0.46 0.30

Diluted

Income from continuing operations 0.33 0.59 0.46 0.30

Net income 0.22 0.59 0.46 0.30

Dividends per common share 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11

18 Subsequent Events

On January 31 2012 the Company completed the acquisition of tekmar Control Systems tekmar
in share purchase transaction designer and manufacturer of control systems used in heating

ventilation and air conditioning application tekmar is expected to enhance the Companys hydronic

systems product offerings in the U.S and Canada The initial purchase price paid was CAD $18.0

million with an earn-out based on future earnings levels being achieved The total purchase price will

not exceed CAD $26.2 million Sales for tekmar in 2011 approximated CAD $11.0 million

On February 2012 the Company declared quarterly dividend of eleven cents $0.11 per share

on each outstanding share of Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock
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Schedule 11Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Amounts in millions

For the Three Years Ended December 31

Balance At Additions Additions Balance At

Beginning of Charged To Charged To End of

Period Expense Other Accounts Deductions Period

Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts 9.6 0.6 0.6 2.1 7.5

Allowance for excess and obsolete

inventories $26.0 7.8 0.5 8.6 $25.7

Year Ended December 31 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7.5 2.7 1.3 8.9

Allowance for excess and obsolete

inventories $25.7 4.4 0.4 6.6 $23.9

Year Ended December 31 2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts 8.9 1.1 0.3 1.2 9.1

Allowance for excess and obsolete

inventories $23.9 6.1 1.3 5.1 $26.2
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Purchasers named in Schedule thereto relating to the Registrants $50000000 4.87%

Senior Notes Series due May 15 2010 and $75000000 5.47% Senior Notes
Series due May 15 2013

10.12 Form of 5.47% Senior Note due May 15 2013

10.13 Watts Water Technologies Inc Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan 24
10.14 Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements 11
10.15 Watts Water Technologies Inc Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan as Amended

and Restated Effective May 2004 First Amendment and Second Amendment 20
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10.17 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Watts Water

Technologies Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan 19
10.18 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Employees under the Watts Water

Technologies Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Incremental Vesting 19
10.19 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Employees under the Watts Water

Technologies Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Cliff Vesting 18
10.20 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the Watts

Water Technologies Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan 17
10.21 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of April 27 2006 between the Registrant and the

Purchasers named in Schedule thereto relating to the Registrants $225000000
5.85% Senior Notes due April 30 2016

10.22 Form of 5.85% Senior Note due April 30 2016
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10.23 Subsidiary Guaranty dated as of April 27 2006 in connection with the Registrants 5.85%

Senior Notes due April 30 2016 executed by the subsidiary guarantors party thereto

including the form of Joinder to Subsidiary Guaranty

10.24 First Amendment dated as of April 27 2006 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of

May 15 2003 among the Registrant and the purchasers named therein

10.25 Credit Agreement dated as of June 18 2010 among the Registrant certain subsidiaries

of the Registrant as Borrowers Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent Swing

Line Lender and L/C Issuer and the other lenders referred to therein 21
10.26 Guaranty dated as of June 18 2010 by the Registrant and the Subsidiaries of the

Registrant set forth therein in favor of Bank of America N.A and other lenders

referred to therein 21
10.27 Note Purchase Agreement dates as of June 18 2010 between the Registrant and

Purchasers named in Schedule thereto relating to the Registrants $75000000 5.05%

Senior Notes due June 18 2020 21
10.28 Form of 5.05% Senior Note due June 18 2020 21
10.29 Form of Subsidiary Guaranty in connection with the Registrants 5.05% Senior Notes due

June 18 2020 including the form of Joinder to Subsidiary Guaranty 21
10.30 Separation Agreement dated January 26 2011 between the Registrant and Patrick

OKeefe 22
11 Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings per Common Share 13
21 Subsidiaries

23 Consent of KPMG LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a or Rule 15d-14a

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a or Rule 15d-14a

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 12 2010

File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 14

1991 File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2002 File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 27 2006

File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Form S-i No 33-6515 as part
of the Second

Amendment to such Form S-i dated August 21 1986

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for the quarter

ended October 2011 File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15 2003

File No 001-11499
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Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008

File No 001-11499

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended

June 30 1996 File No 001-11499

10 Incorporated by reference to Amendment No to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the
year

ended June 30 1992 File No 001-11499

11 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009 File No 001-11499

12 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended

June 30 1997 File No 001-11499

13 Incorporated by reference to notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note of this Report

14 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended July 2005 File No 001-11499

15 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for
year ended

June 30 1999 File No 001-11499

16 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter ended

September 30 2000 File No 001-11499

17 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter

ended July 2010 File No 001-11499

18 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 26 2004 File No 001-11499

19 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended July 2007 File No 001-11499

20 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended

December 31 2007 File No 001-11499

21 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 18 2010

File No 001-11499

22 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 26 2011

File No 001-11499

23 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 2011 File
No 001-11499

24 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended

December 31 2010 File No 001-11499

25 Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 2011

File No 001-11499

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following formatted in XBRL Extensible Business

Reporting Language Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 2010 and December 31
2009 ii Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 iii Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss
for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 iv Consolidated Statements of Cash

Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 and Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S- the XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this

Annual Report on Form 10-K is deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of

the Exchange Act and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections
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This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 All statements that relate to prospective events or

developments are forward-looking statements Also words such as intend believe antici

pate plan expect and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements We cannot

assure investors that our assumptions and expectations will prove to have been correct There are

number of important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those
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as result of new information future events or otherwise

For additional information on Watts Water Technologies Inc visit our website at wwwwattswater.com



FSC

MX
Paper from

morpormbo roomoom

FSC C002933

Printed on Recycled Paper

wTs

NYSEWATER TECHNOLOGES

Annual Report 1216 ojww.wattswateccorn


